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As filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 29, 2022
Registration No. 333-262663

UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

Amendment No. 1
to
FORM S-4

REGISTRATION STATEMENT
UNDER
THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933

Gores Holdings VIII, Inc.

(Exact Name of Registrant as Specified in its Certificate of Incorporation)

Delaware 6770 85-3010982
(State or Other Jurisdiction of (Primary Standard Industrial (IRS Employer
Incorporation or Organization) Classification Code Number) Identification Number)
6260 Lookout Road

Boulder, Colorado 80301
(303) 531-3100
(Address, including Zip Code, and Telephone Number, including Area Code, of Principal Executive Offices)

Alec Gores
Chairman
6260 Lookout Road
Boulder, Colorado 80301
Telephone: (303) 531-3100
Facsimile: (303) 531-3200
(Name, Address, including Zip Code, and Telephone Number, including Area Code, of Agent for Service)

Copies to:

James R. Griffin, Esq. Kyle C. Krpata, Esq. Stephen T. Burdumy, Esq. Adam D. Phillips, P.C., Esq. Robert M. Hayward, P.C., Esq.
Weil, Gotshal & Manges LLP Weil, Gotshal & Manges LLP Managing Director and Chief Edward J. Lee, P.C., Esq. Michael P. Keeley, Esq.
200 Crescent Court, Suite 300 201 Redwood Shores Parkway Legal Officer Kirkland & Ellis LLP Kirkland & Ellis LLP

Dallas, TX 75201 Redwood Shores, CA 94065 Footprint International Holdco, 3330 Hillview Avenue 300 N LaSalle Drive
(214) 746-7779 (650) 802-3093 Inc. Palo Alto, CA 94303 Chicago, IL 60654
250 E. Germann Road 650) 859-7000 (312) 862-2133

Gilbert, AZ 85297
(480) 209-1064

Approximate date of commencement of proposed sale to the public: As soon as practicable after the effectiveness of this registration statement.

If the securities being registered on this form are being offered in connection with the formation of a holding company and there is compliance with General
Instruction G, check the following box. O

If this form is filed to register additional securities for an offering pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act, check the following box and list the Securities
Act registration statement number of the earlier effective registration statement for the same offering. O

If this form is a post-effective amendment filed pursuant to Rule 462(d) under the Securities Act, check the following box and list the Securities Act registration
statement number of the earlier effective registration statement for the same offering. O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, a smaller reporting company, or emerging

growth company. See the definitions of “large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer,” “smaller reporting company,” and “emerging growth company” in Rule 12b-2 of the
Exchange Act.
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Large accelerated filer O Accelerated filer
Non-accelerated filer Smaller reporting company
Emerging Growth Company

If an emerging growth company, indicate by check mark if the registrant has elected not to use the extended transition period for complying with any new or
revised financial accounting standards provided pursuant to Section 7(a)(2)(B) of the Securities Act. O

If applicable, place an X in the box to designate the appropriate rule provision relied upon in conducting this transaction:
Exchange Act Rule 13e-4(i) (Cross-Border Issuer Tender Offer) O
Exchange Act Rule 14d-1(d) (Cross Border Third-Party Tender Offer) O

Copyright © 2022 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document


https://www.secdatabase.com

Table of Contents

The information contained in this document is subject to completion or amendment. A registration statement relating to these securities has
been filed with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission. These securities may not be sold nor may offers to buy be accepted
prior to the time the registration statement becomes effective. This document is not an offer to sell these securities and it is not soliciting an
offer to buy these securities, nor shall there be any sale of these securities, in any jurisdiction in which such offer, solicitation or sale is not
permitted or would be unlawful prior to registration or qualification under the securities laws of any such jurisdiction.

PRELIMINARY — SUBJECT TO COMPLETION, DATED APRIL 29, 2022
EXPLANATORY NOTE

This proxy statement/prospectus relates to an Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated December 13, 2021 (as it may be amended from time to time,
the “Merger Agreement’), by and among Gores Holdings VIII, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“we,” “us,” “our” or the “Company’), Frontier Merger
Sub, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“First Merger Sub”), Frontier Merger Sub II, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“Second Merger Sub”), and

Footprint International Holdco, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“Footprint”), a copy of which is attached to this proxy statement/prospectus as Annex A.

Pursuant to the Merger Agreement and in connection therewith, among other things and subject to the terms and conditions contained therein, at
the closing of the Business Combination, First Merger Sub will merge with and into Footprint, with Footprint continuing as the surviving corporation
(the “First Merger”), and, immediately following the First Merger and as part of the same overall transaction as the First Merger, the surviving
corporation will merge with and into Second Merger Sub, with Second Merger Sub continuing as the surviving entity (the “Second Merger” and,
together with the First Merger, the “Mergers,” and, together with the other transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement, the “Business
Combination™).

In connection with the Business Combination, holders of shares of common stock or preferred stock of Footprint (“Footprint Stockholders™),
holders of Footprint warrants and options and holders of any convertible promissory note that entitles the holder thereof to convert outstanding amounts
thereunder into common stock or preferred stock of Footprint (such holders collectively, the “Footprint Equity Holders”) will collectively receive in
exchange for their shares or equity awards, an aggregate of 161,776,650 shares, or equity awards exercisable for shares, of Class A common stock, par
value $0.0001 per share, of the Company (“Class A Stock”) (deemed to have a value of $10.00 per share). In addition, holders of Footprint common
stock, Footprint Class A Preferred Stock or Footprint warrants (collectively, “Footprint Securityholders”) may additionally receive a portion of an
aggregate of up to 17,584,125 shares of Class A Stock to be issued following the Business Combination upon the occurrence of certain triggering
events, subject to adjustment in connection with redemptions of shares of Class A Stock in connection with the Business Combination.

In addition, and in connection with the foregoing and concurrently with the execution of the Merger Agreement, the Company entered into
subscription agreements with certain investors, including certain individuals, institutional investors, KSP Footprint Investments, LLC and Gores
Sponsor VIII LLC (our “Sponsor” and, such agreements collectively, the “Subscription Agreements” and such investors party thereto collectively, the
“Subscribers”), pursuant to which the Subscribers, including our Sponsor, have agreed to purchase an aggregate of 31,055,000 shares of Class A Stock
in a private placement for $10.00 per share (the “PIPE Investment”).

This proxy statement/prospectus serves as:

. a proxy statement for the special meeting of the Company in lieu of the 2022 annual meeting of the Company being held on [e], 2022
(including any adjournment or postponement thereof, the “Special Meeting”), where Company stockholders will vote on, among other
things, proposals to approve the Merger Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereby, including the Business Combination; and

. a prospectus for the Class A Stock that Footprint Stockholders who did not deliver a written consent adopting the Merger Agreement in
connection with the execution of the Merger Agreement will receive in the Business Combination.

This proxy statement/prospectus does not serve as a prospectus for the Class A Stock that our Sponsor and current independent directors
(collectively, our “Initial Stockholders”) or Footprint Stockholders who delivered a written consent adopting the Merger Agreement in connection with
the execution of the Merger Agreement will receive in the Business Combination.
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The units (“Public Units”) issued as part of the Company’s IPO, comprising one share of Class A stock (“Public Share”) and one-eighth of a

warrant (“Public Warrant”), as well as the Public Shares and the Public Warrants are currently listed on Nasdaq under the symbols “GIIXU,” “GIIX”
and “GIIXW,” respectively. We intend to apply to continue the listing of our Class A Stock and Public Warrants on Nasdaq under the symbols “FOOT”
and “FOOTW,” respectively, upon the closing of the Business Combination. Additionally, in connection with the closing of the Business Combination,
the name of the Company will be changed to Footprint International, Inc.

Upon consummation of the Business Combination and without giving effect to any issuance of Earn Out Shares, the exercise of warrants of the

Company or any issuance pursuant to the any incentive plans, it is expected that the holders (“Public Stockholder”) of Public Shares, our Initial
Stockholders and Footprint Equity Holders will hold shares of the Company as set forth below:

Contractual Charter
No Illustrative Maximum Redemption
Redemption % of Redemption % of Redemption % of Limitation % of

Holders _Scenario® ___ Total _Scenario®  _ Total _Scenario®  _ Total _Scenario® _ Total

Public Stockholders 34,500,000 14.7% 21,722,102 9.8% 8,944,204 4.3% 499,956 0.2%

Initial Stockholders (including Sponsor)® 16,623,350 7.1% 16,623,350 7.5% 16,623,350 8.0% 16,623,350 8.3%

Subscribers (Aggregate; excluding

Sponsor)© 21,555,000 9.2% 21,555,000 9.7% 21,555,000 10.3% 21,555,000 10.8%
Footprint Equity Holders(? 161,776,650 69.0% 161,776,650 73.0% 161,776,650 77.4% 161,776,650 80.7%
Total Shares Outstanding Excluding Earn out

Shares and Warrants 234,455,000 100% 221,677,102 100% 208,899,204 100% 200,454,956 100%
Total Equity Value Post-Redemptions and

PIPE Investment ($ in millions) $ 2,345 $ 2,217 $ 2,089 $ 2,005

Per Share Value $ 10.00 $ 10.00 $ 10.00 $ 10.00

1) This scenario assumes that no Class Stock is redeemed from our Public Stockholders.

2) This scenario assumes that approximately 12,777,898 shares of Class A Stock are redeemed from our Public Stockholders.

3) This scenario assumes that approximately 25,555,796 shares of Class A Stock are redeemed from our Public Stockholders, which, based on the amount of $345,030,739 in the Trust
Account as of December 31, 2021, represents the maximum amount of redemptions that would still enable us to have sufficient cash to satisfy the cash closing conditions in the
Merger Agreement.

“4) This scenario assumes that approximately 34,000,044 shares of Class A Stock are redeemed from our Public Stockholders, which, based on the amount of $345,030,739 in the Trust
Account as of December 31, 2021, represents the maximum amount of redemptions that would still enable us to have sufficient cash to satisfy the provision in the Current Company
Certificate that prohibits us from redeeming shares of our Class A Stock in an amount that would result in our failure to have net tangible assets exceeding $5,000,000.

5) This row includes 9,500,000 shares of Class A Stock to be purchased by the Sponsor in the PIPE Investment pursuant to the Sponsor Subscription Agreement.

(6) This row reflects the aggregate of 21,555,000 shares of Class A Stock to be purchased by the Subscribers, and excludes 9,500,000 shares of Class A Stock to be purchased by the
Sponsor as part of the PIPE Investment pursuant to the Sponsor Subscription Agreement.

(7) This row assumes (a) inclusion of the Rollover Options, assuming an Option Exchange Ratio equal to the Per Share Footprint Common Stock Consideration and excluding any
additional Discounted Earn Out Option Amount, which will be determined on or prior to the consummation of the Business Combination (please see the section titled
“Summary—Treatment of Footprint Equity Awards”) and (b) the exercise of all outstanding Footprint Warrants and the conversion of all outstanding Footprint Convertible Notes into
Class A Stock in connection with the consummation of the Business Combination. This row excludes the Earn Out Shares identified in the row titled “Earn Out Shares to Footprint
Securityholders” that may be issuable to Footprint Securityholders upon the realization of all of the benchmark share prices in the earn out.

®) Percentages may not sum due to rounding.
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You are urged to read carefully this proxy statement/prospectus, including the Annexes and the accompanying
financial statements of the Company and Footprint, carefully and in their entirety. In particular, you are urged to read
carefully the section entitled “Risk Factors” beginning on page 70 of this proxy statement/prospectus.

NEITHER THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION NOR ANY STATE SECURITIES REGULATORY AGENCY HAS
APPROVED OR DISAPPROVED THE TRANSACTIONS DESCRIBED IN THIS PROXY STATEMENT/PROSPECTUS, PASSED UPON
THE MERITS OR FAIRNESS OF THE BUSINESS COMBINATION OR RELATED TRANSACTIONS OR PASSED UPON THE
ADEQUACY OR ACCURACY OF THE DISCLOSURE IN THIS PROXY STATEMENT/PROSPECTUS. ANY REPRESENTATION TO
THE CONTRARY CONSTITUTES A CRIMINAL OFFENSE.
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LETTER TO STOCKHOLDERS OF GORES HOLDINGS VIII, INC.

6260 Lookout Road
Boulder, Colorado 80301
(303) 531-3100

Dear Gores Holdings VIII, Inc. Stockholder:

We cordially invite you to attend a special meeting in lieu of the 2022 annual meeting of the stockholders of Gores Holdings VIII, Inc., a
Delaware corporation (“we,” “us,” “our” or the “Company”), which, in light of public health concerns regarding the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic,
will be held via live webcast at [®], on [®], 2022, at [e]. The Special Meeting can be accessed by visiting [®], where you will be able to listen to the

meeting live and vote during the meeting. Please note that you will only be able to access the Special Meeting by means of remote communication.

On December 13, 2021, the Company, Frontier Merger Sub, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“First Merger Sub”) and a direct, wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Second Merger Sub (as defined below), Frontier Merger Sub II, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company and a direct, wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company (“Second Merger Sub”), and Footprint International Holdco, Inc. (“Footprint”), entered into an Agreement and Plan of
Merger (the “Merger Agreement’), which provides for, among other things: (a) the merger of First Merger Sub with and into Footprint, with Footprint
continuing as the surviving corporation (the “First Merger”); and (b) immediately following the First Merger and as part of the same overall transaction
as the First Merger, the merger of Footprint with and into Second Merger Sub, with Second Merger Sub continuing as the surviving entity (the “Second
Merger” and, together with the First Merger, the “Mergers” and, together with the other transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement, the
“Business Combination™). As a result of the First Merger, Second Merger Sub will own 100% of the outstanding capital stock of Footprint as the
surviving corporation of the First Merger and each share of capital stock of Footprint will be cancelled and converted into the right to receive the merger
consideration in accordance with the terms of the Merger Agreement. As a result of the Second Merger, the Company following the Business
Combination (the “Post-Combination Company”) will own 100% of the outstanding interests in the surviving entity of the Second Merger (the
“Surviving Entity”). Pursuant to the terms of the Merger Agreement, the holders of existing shares of Common Stock of Footprint, par value $0.000001
per share (“Footprint Common Stock™), will receive shares of the Class A common stock of the Company, par value $0.0001 per share (“Class A Stock,”
and such shares of the Company following the closing of the Business Combination, and after the effectiveness of the Second Amended and Restated
Certificate of Incorporation and the conversion of the Class F Stock in accordance with the Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation
of the Company, the “Post-Combination Company Stock”). Following the closing of the Business Combination, the Company will own, directly or
indirectly, all of the issued and outstanding equity interests in the Surviving Entity and its subsidiaries, and the stockholders of Footprint as of
immediately prior to the effective time of the First Merger (the “Footprint Stockholders”) are expected to hold approximately 69.0% of the Post-
Combination Company Stock. You are being asked to vote on the Business Combination.

Subject to the terms of the Merger Agreement and customary adjustments set forth therein, the aggregate merger consideration to be paid in
connection with the Business Combination is expected to be 161,776,650 shares, or equity awards exercisable for shares, of Class A Stock (deemed to
have a value of $10.00 per share). Each share of Footprint Common Stock will be converted into the right to receive a number of newly issued shares of
Class A Stock (“Per Share Footprint Common Stock Consideration”) equal to: (a) (i) 161,776,650 shares of Class A Stock (deemed to have a value of
$10.00 per share) minus (ii) the aggregate number of shares of Class A Stock issuable to holders of Footprint Class B Preferred Stock minus (iii) the
aggregate number of shares of Class A Stock issuable to holders of Footprint Class C Preferred Stock minus (iv) the number of shares of Class A Stock
issuable to holders of Footprint Convertible Promissory Notes pursuant to the terms thereof divided by (b) (i) the aggregate number of shares of
Footprint Common Stock issued and outstanding and issuable upon conversion (whether or not then actually convertible) of Footprint Class A Preferred
Stock issued and outstanding, in each case as of immediately prior to the Effective Time (including, for the avoidance of doubt, after giving effect to the
exercise of the Footprint Warrants in accordance with the terms of the Warrant
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Exercise Agreements, but excluding, for the avoidance of doubt, any shares of Footprint Common Stock underlying the Footprint Class C Preferred
Stock, the Footprint Class B Preferred Stock, or the Footprint Convertible Promissory Notes), plus (ii) the aggregate number of shares of Footprint
Common Stock issuable upon exercise or settlement of all Footprint Stock Options (whether vested or unvested) outstanding as of immediately prior to
the Effective Time. Assuming the Business Combination closes on June 30, 2022 and capitalization of Footprint as of March 31, 2022, the Per Share
Footprint Common Stock Consideration is equal to approximately 6.39 shares of Class A Stock.

Each share of Footprint Class A Preferred Stock will be converted into the right to receive a number of newly issued shares of Class A Stock (the
“Per Share Footprint Class A Preferred Stock Consideration”) equal to: (a) the Per Share Footprint Common Stock Consideration multiplied by (b) the
number of shares of Footprint Common Stock issuable upon conversion of such share of Footprint Class A Preferred Stock as of immediately prior to
the Effective Time and pursuant to the Footprint Certificate of Incorporation. Based on the current Class A Conversion Rate (as defined in the Footprint
Certificate of Incorporation) and assuming the Business Combination closes on June 30, 2022 and capitalization of Footprint as of March 31, 2022, the
Per Share Footprint Class A Preferred Stock Consideration is equal to approximately 5,378.32 shares of Class A Stock.

Each share of Footprint Class B Preferred Stock will be converted into the right to receive a number of newly issued shares of Class A Stock (the
“Per Share Footprint Class B Preferred Stock Consideration”) equal to: (a) $12,915.89 (such amount as may be adjusted pursuant to the Footprint
Certificate of Incorporation) divided by (b) $8.50. Based on the foregoing amounts and assuming the Business Combination closes on June 30, 2022 and
capitalization of Footprint as of March 31, 2022, the Per Share Footprint Class B Preferred Stock Consideration is equal to approximately 1,277.74
shares of Class A Stock.

Each share of Footprint Class C Preferred Stock will be converted into the right to receive a number of newly issued shares of Class A Stock (the
“Per Share Footprint Class C Preferred Stock Consideration,” and the Per Share Footprint Class A Preferred Stock Consideration, Per Share Footprint
Class B Preferred Stock Consideration and/or Per Share Footprint Class C Preferred Stock Consideration, as applicable, the “Per Share Footprint
Preferred Stock Consideration”) equal to: (a) the Class C Liquidation Preference (as defined in the Footprint Certificate of Incorporation) as of the
closing date of the Business Combination, divided by (b) $9.09. Based on the foregoing amounts and assuming the Business Combination closes on
June 30, 2022 and capitalization of Footprint as of March 31, 2022, the Per Share Footprint Class C Preferred Stock Consideration is equal to
approximately 2,750.28 shares of Class A Stock.

In addition to the consideration to be paid at the closing of the Business Combination, Footprint Securityholders will be entitled to receive their
pro rata share of a portion of up to 17,584,125 shares of Class A Stock allocable to the Footprint Securityholders from the Post-Combination Company
(“Earn Out Shares”) upon the occurrence of certain triggering events, subject to adjustment in connection with redemptions of shares of Class A Stock
in connection with the Business Combination.

In order to facilitate the Business Combination, on December 13, 2021, the Company and each holder of Class F common stock of the Company,
par value $0.0001 per share (such stock, “Class F Stock” and, together with the Class A Stock, the “Common Stock” and such holders of Class F Stock,
including our Sponsor, Gores Sponsor VIII LLC (the “Sponsor”), the “Class F' Holders”) entered into a waiver and share surrender agreement (the
“Waiver and Share Surrender Agreement”), pursuant to which (a) the Class F Holders agreed to waive certain of the anti-dilution rights in respect of
their Class F Stock and (b) Sponsor agreed to irrevocably surrender 1,501,650 shares of Class F Stock, out of a total of 8,625,000 shares issued to it
prior to the Company IPO (such remaining 7,123,350 shares, the “Founder Shares™) in each case, in connection with, and subject to, the closing of the
Business Combination.

In addition, and in connection with the foregoing and concurrently with the execution of the Merger Agreement, the Company entered into
subscription agreements (each, a “Subscription Agreement” and collectively, the “Subscription Agreements”) with certain investors, including certain
individuals (each, an “Individual Investor Subscription Agreement”), institutional investors (each, an “Institutional Investor
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Subscription Agreement”), Koch Preference Subscriber (the “KSP Subscription Agreement”) and Gores Sponsor VIII LLC (the “Sponsor Subscription
Agreement’), pursuant to which the investors, including our Sponsor, have agreed to purchase an aggregate of 31,055,000 shares of Class A Stock in a
private placement for $10.00 per share (the “PIPE Investment”).

In connection with the closing of the Business Combination, upon the effectiveness of the Second Amended and Restated Certificate of
Incorporation, the Founder Shares held by our Sponsor and certain other stockholders will be converted into shares of Post-Combination Company
Stock on a one-for-one basis.

At the Special Meeting, our stockholders will be asked to consider and vote upon a proposal (the “Business Combination Proposal” or “Proposal
No. 17) to approve the Merger Agreement, a copy of which is attached to the accompanying proxy statement/prospectus as Annex A, and the
transactions contemplated thereby, including the Business Combination. In addition, you are being asked to consider and vote upon: (i) a proposal to
approve, for purposes of complying with applicable Nasdaq listing rules, the issuance of more than 20% of the Company’s issued and outstanding
Common Stock in connection with the Business Combination (the “Nasdag Proposal” or “Proposal No. 27); (ii) a proposal to adopt the Second
Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Company (the “Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation”) in the form
attached hereto as Annex B (the “Charter Proposal” or “Proposal No. 3”); (iii) a separate proposal with respect to certain governance provisions in the
Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, which are being separately presented in accordance with SEC requirements and which will
be voted upon on a non-binding advisory basis (the “Governance Proposals” or “Proposal No. 47); (iv) a proposal to approve the 2022 Omnibus
Incentive Plan (the “Incentive Plan”), including the authorization of the initial share reserve under the Incentive Plan (the “Incentive Plan Proposal” or
“Proposal No. 5”); (v) a proposal to approve the Founder Performance Incentive and Parent Earn Out Plan (the “Performance Plan”), including the
authorization of the initial share reserve under the Performance Plan (the “Performance Plan Proposal” or “Proposal No. 6), (vi) a proposal to elect
four directors to serve on our Board until the earlier of the consummation of the Business Combination and the 2023 annual meeting of stockholders,
and until their respective successors are duly elected and qualified (the “Director Election Proposal” or “Proposal No. 7”) and (vii) a proposal to allow
the chairman of the Special Meeting to adjourn the Special Meeting to a later date or dates, if necessary, to permit further solicitation and vote of proxies
if there are insufficient votes for, or otherwise in connection with, the approval of the Business Combination Proposal, the Nasdaq Proposal, the Charter
Proposal, the Incentive Plan Proposal or the Performance Plan Proposal but no other proposal if the Business Combination Proposal, the Nasdaq
Proposal and the Charter Proposal, the Incentive Plan and the Performance Plan are approved (the “Adjournment Proposal” or “Proposal No. 8”).

Each of these proposals is more fully described in this proxy statement/prospectus, which each stockholder is encouraged to read carefully.

Our Public Shares, Public Units and Public Warrants are currently listed on Nasdaq under the symbols “GIIX,” “GIIXU” and “GIIXW,”
respectively. We intend to apply to continue the listing of our Class A Stock and Public Warrants on Nasdaq under the symbols “FOOT” and “FOOTW,”
respectively, upon the closing of the Business Combination. Additionally, in connection with the closing of the Business Combination, the name of the
Company will be changed to Footprint International, Inc.

Pursuant to the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Company, dated February 24, 2021 (the “Current Company
Certificate”), we are providing our Public Stockholders with the opportunity to redeem, upon the closing of the Business Combination, shares of
Class A Stock then held by them for cash equal to the quotient obtained by dividing (i) the aggregate amount on deposit (as of two business days prior to
the closing of the Business Combination) in our trust account (the “7Trust Account”) that holds the proceeds of the Company IPO (including interest not
previously released to the Company to fund regulatory compliance requirements and other costs related thereto, subject to an annual limit of $900,000,
for a maximum of 24 months, using funds released to the Company from the Trust Account (“Regulatory Withdrawals”) and/or to pay its franchise and
income taxes), by (ii) the total number of then-outstanding Public Shares. The per-share amount we will distribute to investors who properly redeem
their shares will not be reduced by the deferred
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underwriting commission totaling $12,075,000 that we will pay to the underwriters of the Company IPO or transaction expenses incurred in connection
with the Business Combination. For illustrative purposes, based on the balance of the Trust Account of $345,030,739 as of December 31, 2021, the
estimated per share redemption price would have been $10.00. Public Stockholders may elect to redeem their shares even if they vote for the Business
Combination. A Public Stockholder, together with any of his, her or its affiliates or any other person with whom it is acting in concert or as a “group”
(as defined under Section 13 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended), will be restricted from redeeming in the aggregate his, her or its
shares or, if part of such a group, the group’s shares, in excess of 15% of the shares of Class A Stock included in the Public Units sold in the Company
IPO. We refer to this as the “15% threshold.” We have no specified maximum redemption threshold under our current certificate of incorporation, other
than the aforementioned 15% threshold. Each redemption of shares of Class A Stock by our Public Stockholders will reduce the amount in the Trust
Account.

The Merger Agreement provides that the obligation of Footprint to consummate the Business Combination is conditioned on the total of (i) the
amount in the Trust Account, after giving effect to redemptions of Public Shares, (ii) the proceeds from the PIPE Investment plus $150,000,000, which
represents the gross proceeds from the Footprint Class C Financing and (iii) all funds held by us outside of the Trust Account and immediately available
to us, equaling or exceeding $550,000,000. This condition to closing in the Merger Agreement is for the sole benefit of Footprint and may be waived by
Footprint. If, as a result of redemptions of Class A Stock by our Public Stockholders, this condition is not met (or waived), then Footprint may elect not
to consummate the Business Combination. In addition, in no event will we redeem shares of our Class A Stock in an amount that would result in the
Company’s failure to have net tangible assets equaling or exceeding $5,000,001. Holders of our outstanding Public Warrants do not have redemption
rights in connection with the Business Combination. Unless otherwise specified, the information in the accompanying proxy statement/prospectus
assumes that none of our Public Stockholders exercise their redemption rights with respect to their shares of Class A Stock. Our Sponsor and current
independent directors (collectively, our “Initial Stockholders™), as well as our officers and other current directors, have agreed to waive their redemption
rights with respect to their shares of Common Stock in connection with the consummation of the Business Combination, and the Founder Shares will be
excluded from the pro rata calculation used to determine the per-share redemption price. Our Initial Stockholders have also agreed to waive their right to
a conversion price adjustment with respect to any shares of our Common Stock they may hold in connection with the consummation of the Business
Combination. Currently, our Initial Stockholders own 20% of our issued and outstanding shares of Common Stock, including all of the Founder Shares.
Our Initial Stockholders, directors and officers have agreed to vote any shares of our Common Stock owned by them in favor of the Business
Combination. The Founder Shares are subject to transfer restrictions.

We are providing the accompanying proxy statement/prospectus and accompanying proxy card to our stockholders in connection with the
solicitation of proxies to be voted at the Special Meeting (including following any adjournments or postponements of the Special Meeting). Information
about the Special Meeting, the Business Combination and other related business to be considered by our stockholders at the Special Meeting is included
in this proxy statement/prospectus. Whether or not you plan to attend the Special Meeting via the virtual meeting website, we urge all our
stockholders to read this proxy statement/prospectus, including the Annexes and the accompanying financial statements of the Company and
Footprint, carefully and in their entirety. In particular, we urge you to read carefully the section titled “Risk Factors” beginning on page 70 of
this proxy statement/prospectus.

After careful consideration, our Board has unanimously approved the Merger Agreement and the transactions contemplated therein, and
unanimously recommends that our stockholders vote “FOR” the approval of the Merger Agreement and approval of the transactions contemplated
thereby, including the Business Combination, and “FOR” all other proposals presented to our stockholders in the accompanying proxy statement/
prospectus. When you consider our Board’s recommendation of these proposals, you should keep in mind that our directors and officers have interests in
the Business Combination that may conflict with your interests as a stockholder. Please see the section titled “The Business Combination — Interests of
Certain Persons in the Business Combination — Interests of the Company Initial Stockholders and the Company’s Other Current Officers and
Directors” for additional information.
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Approval of the Business Combination Proposal requires the affirmative vote of a majority of the votes cast by holders of our outstanding shares
of Common Stock represented in person via the virtual meeting platform or by proxy and entitled to vote at the Special Meeting. Approval of the
Nasdaq Proposal requires the affirmative vote of a majority of the votes cast by holders of our outstanding shares of Common Stock represented in
person via the virtual meeting platform or by proxy and entitled to vote at the Special Meeting. Approval of the Charter Proposal requires (i) the
affirmative vote of holders of a majority of our outstanding shares of Common Stock entitled to vote thereon at the Special Meeting and (ii) the
affirmative vote of holders of a majority of our outstanding shares of Class F Stock, voting separately as a single class, entitled to vote thereon at the
Special Meeting. Approval of the Governance Proposals requires the affirmative vote of a majority of the votes cast by holders of our outstanding shares
of Common Stock represented in person via the virtual meeting platform or by proxy and entitled to vote thereon at the Special Meeting. Approval of
the Incentive Plan Proposal and the Performance Plan Proposal requires the affirmative vote of a majority of the votes cast by holders of our outstanding
shares of Common Stock represented in person via the virtual meeting platform or by proxy and entitled to vote at the Special Meeting. Approval of the
Director Election Proposal requires the affirmative vote of a plurality of votes cast by holders of our outstanding shares of Class F Stock, voting
separately as a single class, represented in person via the virtual meeting platform or by proxy and entitled to vote thereon at the Special Meeting.
Approval of the Adjournment Proposal requires the affirmative vote of a majority of the votes cast by holders of our outstanding shares of Common
Stock represented in person via the virtual meeting platform or by proxy and entitled to vote thereon at the Special Meeting.

Your vote is very important. Whether or not you plan to attend the Special Meeting, please vote as soon as possible by following the instructions
in this proxy statement/prospectus to make sure that your shares are represented at the Special Meeting. If you hold your shares in “street name” through
a bank, broker or other nominee, you will need to follow the instructions provided to you by your bank, broker or other nominee to ensure that your
shares are represented and voted at the Special Meeting. The transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement will be consummated only if the
Business Combination Proposal, the Nasdaq Proposal, the Charter Proposal and the Performance Plan Proposal are approved at the Special Meeting.
The closing of the Business Combination is conditioned upon the approval of the Business Combination Proposal, the Nasdaq Proposal, the Charter
Proposal and the Performance Plan Proposal. If we fail to obtain the requisite stockholder approval for any of the Business Combination Proposal, the
Nasdaq Proposal, the Charter Proposal or the Performance Plan Proposal, we will not satisfy the conditions to closing of the Merger Agreement and we
may be prevented from closing the Business Combination. Each of the proposals other than the Business Combination Proposal, the Nasdaq Proposal,
the Charter Proposal and the Performance Plan Proposal, is conditioned on the approval of the Business Combination Proposal, the Nasdaq Proposal, the
Charter Proposal and the Performance Plan Proposal, other than the Governance Proposals and the Adjournment Proposal, which are not conditioned on
the approval of any other proposal set forth in this proxy statement/prospectus. Additionally, the Director Election Proposal is not conditioned on the
approval of the Business Combination Proposal, the Nasdaq Proposal, the Charter Proposal, the Performance Plan Proposal or any other proposal set
forth in this proxy statement/prospectus.

If you sign, date and return your proxy card without indicating how you wish to vote, your proxy will be voted “FOR” each of the proposals
presented at the Special Meeting. If you fail to return your proxy card or fail to instruct your bank, broker or other nominee how to vote, and do not
attend the Special Meeting in person via the virtual meeting platform, the effect will be that your shares will not be counted for purposes of determining
whether a quorum is present at the Special Meeting. If you are a stockholder of record and you attend the Special Meeting and wish to vote in person via
the virtual meeting platform, you may withdraw your proxy and vote in person via the virtual meeting platform.

TO EXERCISE YOUR REDEMPTION RIGHTS, YOU MUST DEMAND THAT THE COMPANY REDEEM YOUR SHARES FOR A PRO
RATA PORTION OF THE FUNDS HELD IN THE TRUST ACCOUNT AND TENDER YOUR SHARES TO THE COMPANY’S TRANSFER
AGENT AT LEAST TWO BUSINESS DAYS PRIOR TO THE VOTE AT SUCH MEETING. YOU MAY TENDER YOUR SHARES BY EITHER
DELIVERING YOUR SHARE CERTIFICATE TO THE TRANSFER AGENT OR BY DELIVERING YOUR SHARES ELECTRONICALLY USING
DEPOSITORY TRUST COMPANY’S ATOP (AUTOMATED
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TENDER OFFER PROGRAM) SYSTEM. IF THE BUSINESS COMBINATION IS NOT COMPLETED, THEN THESE SHARES WILL NOT BE
REDEEMED FOR CASH. IF YOU HOLD THE SHARES IN STREET NAME, YOU WILL NEED TO INSTRUCT THE ACCOUNT EXECUTIVE

AT YOUR BANK OR BROKER TO WITHDRAW THE SHARES FROM YOUR ACCOUNT IN ORDER TO EXERCISE YOUR REDEMPTION
RIGHTS.

On behalf of our Board, I would like to thank you for your support of Gores Holdings VIII, Inc. and look forward to a successful completion of
the Business Combination.

Sincerely,

Alec Gores
Chairman of the Board of Directors

NEITHER THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION NOR ANY STATE SECURITIES REGULATORY AGENCY HAS
APPROVED OR DISAPPROVED THE TRANSACTIONS DESCRIBED IN THIS PROXY STATEMENT/PROSPECTUS, PASSED UPON THE
MERITS OR FAIRNESS OF THE BUSINESS COMBINATION OR RELATED TRANSACTIONS OR PASSED UPON THE ADEQUACY OR
ACCURACY OF THE DISCLOSURE IN THIS PROXY STATEMENT/PROSPECTUS. ANY REPRESENTATION TO THE CONTRARY
CONSTITUTES A CRIMINAL OFFENSE.

This proxy statement/prospectus is dated [®], 2022, and is expected to be first mailed or otherwise delivered to Company stockholders on or about
[e], 2022.
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

No person is authorized to give any information or to make any representation with respect to the matters that this proxy statement/
prospectus describes other than those contained in this proxy statement/prospectus, and, if given or made, the information or representation
must not be relied upon as having been authorized by the Company or Footprint. This proxy statement/prospectus does not constitute an offer
to sell or a solicitation of an offer to buy securities or a solicitation of a proxy in any jurisdiction where, or to any person to whom, it is unlawful
to make such an offer or a solicitation. Neither the delivery of this proxy statement/prospectus nor any distribution of securities made under
this proxy statement/prospectus will, under any circumstances, create an implication that there has been no change in the affairs of the
Company or Footprint since the date of this proxy statement/prospectus or that any information contained herein is correct as of any time
subsequent to such date.
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NOTICE OF SPECIAL MEETING OF GORES HOLDINGS VIII, INC.
IN LIEU OF 2022 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF GORES HOLDINGS VIII, INC.

TO BE HELD [e], 2022
To the Stockholders of Gores Holdings VIII, Inc.:

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a special meeting (the “Special Meeting”) in lieu of the 2022 annual meeting of the stockholders of Gores Holdings
VIII, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“we,” “us,” “our” or the “Company’), which, in light of public health concerns regarding the coronavirus
(COVID-19) pandemic, will be held via live webcast at [®], on [e], 2022, at [e]. The Special Meeting can be accessed by visiting [@], where you will be
able to listen to the meeting live and vote during the meeting. Please note that you will only be able to access the Special Meeting by means of remote

communication. You are cordially invited to attend the Special Meeting to conduct the following items of business:

1. Business Combination Proposal— To consider and vote upon a proposal to approve the Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of December 13,
2021 (as it may be amended from time to time, the “Merger Agreement”), by and among the Company, Frontier Merger Sub, Inc., a Delaware
corporation (“First Merger Sub”), Frontier Merger Sub II, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“Second Merger Sub”), and Footprint
International Holdco, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“Footprint”), a copy of which is attached to this proxy statement/prospectus as Annex A, and
approve the transactions contemplated thereby, including, among other things, (i) the merger of First Merger Sub with and into Footprint, with
Footprint continuing as the surviving corporation (the “First Merger”), and (ii) immediately following the First Merger and as part of the same
overall transaction as the First Merger, the merger of Footprint with and into Second Merger Sub, with Second Merger Sub continuing as the
surviving entity (the “Second Merger” and, together with the First Merger, the “Mergers,” and, together with the other transactions contemplated
by the Merger Agreement, the “Business Combination”) (Proposal No. 1);

2. Nasdaq Proposal—To consider and vote upon a proposal to approve, for purposes of complying with applicable Nasdaq listing rules, the issuance
of more than 20% of the Company’s issued and outstanding shares of Class A common stock, par value $0.0001 per share, of the Company (the
“Class A Stock”) and Class F common stock, par value $0.0001 per share, of the Company (the “Class F Stock” and, together with the Class A
Stock, the “Common Stock™) in connection with the Business Combination (as defined below) (Proposal No. 2);

3. Charter Proposal—To consider and act upon a proposal to adopt the proposed Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the
Company in the form attached hereto as Annex B (Proposal No. 3);

4. Governance Proposals—To consider and act upon, on a non-binding advisory basis, a separate proposal with respect to certain governance
provisions in the Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation in accordance with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission
(“SEC”) requirements (Proposal No. 4);

5. Incentive Plan Proposal—To consider and vote upon a proposal to approve the 2022 Omnibus Incentive Plan (the “Incentive Plan”), including the
authorization of the initial share reserve under the Incentive Plan (Proposal No. 5);

6.  Performance Plan Proposal — To consider and vote upon a proposal to approve the Founder Performance Incentive and Parent Earn Out Plan (the
“Performance Plan”), including the authorization of the initial share reserve under the Performance Plan (Proposal No. 6);

7. Director Election Proposal—To consider and vote upon a proposal to elect four directors to serve on the Company’s Board until the earlier of the
consummation of the Business Combination and the 2023 annual meeting of stockholders, and until their respective successors are duly elected
and qualified (Proposal No. 7); and

8. Adjournment Proposal—To consider and vote upon a proposal to allow the chairman of the Special Meeting to adjourn the Special Meeting to a
later date or dates, if necessary, to permit further solicitation and vote of
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proxies in the event that there are insufficient votes for, or otherwise in connection with, the approval of the Business Combination Proposal, the
Nasdaq Proposal, the Charter Proposal or the Performance Plan Proposal but no other proposal if the Business Combination Proposal, the Nasdaq
Proposal, the Charter Proposal and the Performance Plan Proposal are approved (Proposal No. 8).

The above matters are more fully described in this proxy statement/prospectus, which also includes, as Annex A, a copy of the Merger Agreement.
We urge you to read carefully this proxy statement/prospectus in its entirety, including the Annexes and accompanying financial statements of
the Company and Footprint.

The record date for the Special Meeting is [®], 2022. Only stockholders of record at the close of business on that date may vote at the Special
Meeting or any adjournment thereof. A complete list of our stockholders of record entitled to vote at the Special Meeting will be available for ten days
before the Special Meeting at our principal executive offices for inspection by stockholders during ordinary business hours for any purpose germane to
the Special Meeting.

Gores Sponsor VIII LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (our “Sponsor”), and Mr. Randall Bort, Mr. William Patton and Mr. Jeffrey Rea,
the Company’s independent directors (collectively, together with our Sponsor, our “Initial Stockholders™), officers and other current directors have
agreed to vote any of the shares of Class F Stock that are currently owned by our Initial Stockholders (the “Founder Shares”) and any Public Shares
purchased during or after our initial public offering (the “Company IPO”) in favor of the Business Combination. Currently, our Initial Stockholders own
20% of our issued and outstanding shares of Common Stock, including all of the Founder Shares.

Pursuant to the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Company, dated February 24, 2021 (the “Current Company
Certificate”), we will provide our Public Stockholders with the opportunity to redeem, upon the closing of the Business Combination, shares of the
Company’s Class A Stock then held by them for cash equal to their pro rata share of the aggregate amount on deposit (as of two business days prior to
the closing of the Business Combination) in our trust account (the “Trust Account”) that holds the proceeds of the Company IPO (including interest not
previously released to the Company to fund regulatory compliance requirements and other costs related thereto, subject to an annual limit of $900,000,
for a maximum of 24 months, using funds released to the Company from the Trust Account (“Regulatory Withdrawals”) and/or to pay its franchise and
income taxes). The per-share amount we will distribute to our stockholders who properly redeem their shares will not be reduced by the deferred
underwriting commission totaling $12,075,000 that we will pay to the underwriters of the Company IPO or other transaction expenses incurred in
connection with the Business Combination. For illustrative purposes, based on the balance of our Trust Account of $345,030,739 as of December 31,
2021, the estimated per share redemption price would have been approximately $10.00. Public Stockholders may elect to redeem their shares even if
they vote “FOR” the Business Combination. A Public Stockholder, together with any of his, her or its affiliates or any other person with whom he,
she or it is acting in concert or as a “group” (as defined under Section 13 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended), will be restricted from
redeeming in the aggregate his, her or its shares or, if part of such a group, the group’s shares, in excess of 15% of the shares of Common Stock included
in the Public Units sold in the Company IPO. Each redemption of shares of Class A Stock by our Public Stockholders will reduce the amount in the
Trust Account. In addition, in no event will we redeem shares of our Class A Stock in an amount that would result in the Company’s failure to have net
tangible assets equaling or exceeding $5,000,001. Other than the foregoing, we have no additional specified maximum redemption thresholds under our
Current Company Certificate. The Merger Agreement provides that the obligation of Footprint to consummate the Business Combination is conditioned
on the total of (i) the amount in the Trust Account, after giving effect to redemptions of Public Shares, (ii) the proceeds from the PIPE Investment plus
$150,000,000, which represents the gross proceeds from the Footprint Class C Financing and (iii) all funds held by us outside of the Trust Account and
immediately available to us, equaling or exceeding $550,000,000. This condition to closing in the Merger Agreement is for the sole benefit of Footprint
and may be waived by Footprint. If, as a result of redemptions of Class A Stock by our Public Stockholders, this condition is not met (or waived), then
Footprint may elect not to consummate the Business Combination. Holders of our outstanding Public Warrants do not have redemption rights in
connection with the Business Combination.
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Our Initial Stockholders, current officers and current directors have agreed to waive their redemption rights with respect to their shares of our
Common Stock in connection with the consummation of the Business Combination, and the Founder Shares will be excluded from the pro rata
calculation used to determine the per-share redemption price. Our Initial Stockholders have also agreed to waive their right to a conversion price
adjustment with respect to any shares of our Common Stock they may hold in connection with the consummation of the Business Combination.

The Business Combination is conditioned on the approval of the Business Combination Proposal, the Nasdaq Proposal, the Charter Proposal and
the Performance Plan Proposal at the Special Meeting. If we fail to obtain sufficient votes for any of the Business Combination Proposal, the Nasdaq
Proposal, the Charter Proposal or the Performance Plan Proposal, we will not satisfy the conditions to closing of the Merger Agreement and we may be
prevented from closing the Business Combination. Each of the proposals other than the Business Combination Proposal, the Nasdaq Proposal, the
Charter Proposal and the Performance Plan Proposal is conditioned on the approval of the Business Combination Proposal, the Nasdaq Proposal, the
Charter Proposal and the Performance Plan Proposal, other than the Governance Proposals and the Adjournment Proposal, which are not conditioned on
the approval of any other proposal set forth in this proxy statement/prospectus. Additionally, the Director Election Proposal is not conditioned on the
approval of the Business Combination Proposal, the Nasdaq Proposal, the Charter Proposal, the Performance Plan Proposal or any other proposal set
forth in this proxy statement/prospectus.

A majority of the issued and outstanding shares of our Common Stock entitled to vote as of the record date at the Special Meeting must be
present, in person via the virtual meeting platform or represented by proxy, at the Special Meeting to constitute a quorum and in order to conduct
business at the Special Meeting. The approval of the Business Combination Proposal requires the affirmative vote of a majority of the votes cast by
holders of our outstanding shares of Common Stock represented in person via the virtual meeting platform or by proxy and entitled to vote at the Special
Meeting. The approval of the Nasdaq Proposal requires the affirmative vote of a majority of the votes cast by holders of our outstanding shares of
Common Stock represented in person via the virtual meeting platform or by proxy and entitled to vote at the Special Meeting. The approval of the
Charter Proposal requires (i) the affirmative vote of holders of a majority of our outstanding shares of Common Stock entitled to vote thereon at the
Special Meeting and (ii) the affirmative vote of holders of a majority of our outstanding shares of Class F Stock, voting separately as a single class,
entitled to vote thereon at the Special Meeting. The approval of the Governance Proposals requires the affirmative vote of a majority of the votes cast by
holders of our outstanding shares of Common Stock represented in person via the virtual meeting platform or by proxy and entitled to vote thereon at the
Special Meeting. Approval of each of the Incentive Plan Proposal and the Performance Plan Proposal requires the affirmative vote of a majority of the
votes cast by holders of our outstanding shares of Common Stock represented in person via the virtual meeting platform or by proxy and entitled to vote
at the Special Meeting. Approval of the Director Election Proposal requires the affirmative vote of a plurality of votes cast by holders of our outstanding
shares of Class F Stock, voting separately as a single class, represented in person via the virtual meeting platform or by proxy and entitled to vote
thereon at the Special Meeting. Approval of the Adjournment Proposal requires the affirmative vote of a majority of the votes cast by holders of our
outstanding shares of Common Stock represented in person via the virtual meeting platform or by proxy and entitled to vote thereon at the Special
Meeting. Our Board unanimously recommends that you vote “FOR” each of these proposals.

By Order of the Board of Directors

Alec Gores

Chairman of the Board of Directors
Boulder, Colorado

[e], 2022
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FREQUENTLY USED TERMS

In this proxy statement/prospectus:

“Additional Dilution Sources” means specified sources of potential dilution, including Earn Out Shares, Public Warrants, Private Placement
Warrants, the Incentive Plan and the Performance Plan, which are described in the risk factor titled “—Qur Public Stockholders will experience dilution
as a consequence of, among other transactions, the issuance of Class A Stock as consideration in the Business Combination. Having a minority share
position may reduce the influence that our current stockholders have on the management of the Post-Combination Company” beginning on page 101.

“Adjusted Aggregate Footprint Stock Consideration” means a number of shares of Class A Stock equal to (a) 161,776,650 shares of Class A
Stock, minus (b) the number of shares of Class A Stock issuable to the holders of Footprint Class B Preferred Stock, minus (c) the number of shares of
Class A Stock issuable to the holders of Footprint Class C Preferred Stock, minus (d) the number of shares of Class A Stock issuable to the holders of
Footprint Convertible Promissory Notes.

“Aggregate Earn Out Shares Amount” means the product of (a) 17,584,125 multiplied by (b) (i) one minus (ii) the result of (A) the number of
shares of Class A Stock redeemed divided by (B) (I) the number of shares of Class A Stock outstanding as of immediately following the Effective Time,
plus (II) the number of shares of Class A Stock subject to the aggregate number of Rollover Options to be issued pursuant to the Merger Agreement

after the Effective Time, plus (III) the number of shares of Class A Stock redeemed.

“Amended and Restated Bylaws” means the proposed Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Post-Combination Company, a form of which is
attached hereto as Annex C, which will become the Post-Combination Company’s bylaws assuming the consummation of the Business Combination.

“Antitrust Division” means the Antitrust Division of the U.S. Department of Justice.
“Board” means the board of directors of the Company, prior to the Business Combination.

“Business Combination” means the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement, including among other things the Mergers, and the other
transactions contemplated by the other transaction documents contemplated by the Merger Agreement.

“Class A Stock” means the shares of Class A common stock, par value $0.0001 per share, of the Company, and following the Business
Combination, of the Post-Combination Company.

“Class F Stock” means the shares of Class F common stock, par value $0.0001 per share, of the Company, and following the Business
Combination, of the Post-Combination Company.

“Common Stock” means the Class A Stock and the Class F Stock.
“Company” means Gores Holdings VIII, Inc., prior to the Business Combination.

“Company IPO” means the Company’s initial public offering, consummated on March 1, 2021, through the sale of 34,500,000 Public Units
(including 4,500,000 Public Units sold pursuant to the underwriters’ full exercise of their over-allotment option) at $10.00 per Public Unit.

“Company Warrants” means, collectively, the Private Placement Warrants and the Public Warrants.

“Consenting Footprint Stockholders” means those Footprint Stockholders, as applicable, who delivered a written consent adopting the Merger
Agreement in connection with the execution of the Merger Agreement.

“Court of Chancery” means the Court of Chancery in the State of Delaware.

1
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“Current Company Certificate” means the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Company, dated February 24, 2021.

“Deferred Discount” means any deferred underwriting commissions, which amount will be payable upon consummation of an initial business
combination.

“Deloitte” means Deloitte & Touche LLP, an independent registered accounting firm.

“DGCL” means the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware.

“Discounted Earn Out Option Amount” means the value, as measured at the closing of the First Merger, of the Earn Out Shares that would have
been payable in respect of each share of Footprint Common Stock issuable upon exercise of all Footprint Stock Options outstanding as of immediately
prior to the closing of the First Merger, had each such share of Footprint Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of all Footprint Stock Options been
entitled to receive its applicable Earn Out Pro Rata Share (as defined in the Merger Agreement) of the Earn Out Shares, taking into account, among
other factors, the likelihood such amounts will be paid and the time value thereof. The Discounted Earn Out Option Amount will be determined prior to

the closing of the First Merger by Footprint’s board of directors in accordance with the procedures set forth in the Merger Agreement.

“Earn Out Period” means the period beginning on the 180th day following the closing date of the Business Combination and ending on the fifth
anniversary of such date.

“Earn Out Shares” means shares of Class A Stock to be issued to the Footprint Securityholders as of immediately prior to the Effective Time in
accordance with their respective pro rata share and equitably adjusted for stock splits, reverse stock splits, stock dividends, reorganizations,
recapitalizations, reclassifications, combinations, exchanges of shares or any other like change or transaction with respect to Class A Stock occurring at
or after the Closing, upon the occurrence of a Triggering Event.

“Effective Time” means the effective time of the First Merger.

“Exchange Act” means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, together with the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder.

“FINRA” means the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority.

“First Merger” means the merger of First Merger Sub with and into Footprint, with Footprint continuing as the Surviving Corporation.

“First Merger Sub” means Frontier Merger Sub, Inc., a Delaware corporation and wholly-owned, direct subsidiary of Second Merger Sub.

“Footprint” means Footprint International Holdco, Inc., a Delaware corporation, and, unless the context otherwise requires, its consolidated
subsidiaries.

“Footprint Board” means the board of directors of Footprint, prior to the Business Combination.

“Footprint Certificate of Incorporation” means the Third Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Footprint, filed with the Secretary
of State of the State of Delaware on the date of the Merger Agreement.

“Footprint Class A Preferred Stock” means Footprint’s Class A Non-Participating Preferred Stock, par value $0.001 per share.

“Footprint Class B Preferred Stock” means Footprint’s Class B Non-Participating Preferred Stock, par value $0.001 per share.
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“Footprint Class C Preferred Stock” means Footprint’s Class C Non-Participating Preferred Stock, par value $0.001 per share.
“Footprint Class C Financing” means the transactions contemplated by that certain stock purchase agreement pursuant to which Footprint sold
6,000 shares of Footprint Class C Preferred Stock at a purchase price of $25,000 per share for an aggregate purchase price of $150,000,000 to KSP

Footprint Investments, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“Koch Preference Subscriber”).

“Footprint Closing Certificate” means that certain closing certificate delivered by Footprint to the Company no sooner than five nor later than two
business days prior to the Business Combination, in accordance with the Merger Agreement.

“Footprint Common Stock” means Footprint’s common stock, par value $0.000001 per share.
“Footprint Common Stockholders” means stockholders of Footprint that hold Footprint Common Stock, solely in their capacity as such.

“Footprint Convertible Promissory Notes” means any convertible promissory note that entitles the holder thereof to convert outstanding amounts
thereunder into shares of Footprint Stock.

“Footprint Preferred Stock” means, collectively, the Footprint Class A Preferred Stock, Footprint Class B Preferred Stock and Footprint Class C
Preferred Stock.

“Footprint Preferred Stockholders” means stockholders of Footprint that hold Footprint Preferred Stock.

“Footprint Security” means any share of Footprint Common Stock, share of Footprint Class A Preferred Stock or Footprint Warrant.

“Footprint Securityholder” means the holder of any Footprint Security.

“Footprint Stock” means, collectively, the Footprint Common Stock and the Footprint Preferred Stock.

“Footprint Stock Adjusted Fully Diluted Shares” means the sum of (without duplication) (a) the aggregate number of shares of Footprint Common
Stock issued and outstanding and issuable upon conversion (whether or not then actually convertible) of Footprint Class A Preferred Stock issued and
outstanding, in each case as of immediately prior to the Effective Time (including, for the avoidance of doubt, after giving effect to the exercise of the
Footprint Warrants in accordance with the terms of the Warrant Exercise Agreements, but excluding, for the avoidance of doubt, any shares of Footprint
Common Stock underlying the Footprint Class C Preferred Stock, the Footprint Class B Preferred Stock, or the Footprint Convertible Promissory
Notes), plus (b) the aggregate number of shares of Footprint Common Stock issuable upon exercise or settlement of all Footprint Stock Options
(whether vested or unvested) outstanding as of immediately prior to the Effective Time.

“Footprint Stock Options” means the options to purchase Footprint Common Stock granted pursuant to the Footprint Stock Plan.

“Footprint Stock Plan” means Footprint’s 2019 Stock Option Plan, as amended.

“Footprint Stockholders” means, collectively, the Footprint Common Stockholders and the Footprint Preferred Stockholders.

“Footprint Warrants” means any warrant to purchase shares of Footprint Stock.

“Founder Shares” means the 7,123,350 shares of Class F Stock that are currently owned by the Initial Stockholders.

“FTC” means the U.S. Federal Trade Commission.
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“HSR Act” means the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976, as amended.
“Incentive Plan” means the 2022 Omnibus Incentive Plan, a copy of which is attached hereto as Annex D.

“initial business combination” or “Initial Business Combination” means a merger, capital stock exchange, asset acquisition, stock purchase,
reorganization or similar business combination involving the Company and one or more businesses.

“Initial Stockholders” means, collectively, Mr. Randall Bort, Mr. Jeffrey Rea and Mr. William Patton, the Company’s independent directors, and
Sponsor.

“Investment Company Act” means the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended.
“IPO Closing Date” means March 1, 2021.

“IRS” means the U.S. Internal Revenue Service.

“JOBS Act” means the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act of 2012.

“K&E” means Kirkland & Ellis LLP, counsel to Footprint.

“KPMG” means KPMG LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm.

“Merger Agreement” means that certain Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of December 13, 2021 (as it may be amended from time to time),
by and among the Company, First Merger Sub, Second Merger Sub and Footprint, which is attached hereto as Annex A.

“Mergers” means, collectively, the First Merger and the Second Merger.
“Moelis” means Moelis & Company LLC.
“Nasdaq” means the National Association of Securities Dealers Automated Quotations Capital Market.

“Per Share Footprint Class A Preferred Stock Consideration” means, with respect to each share of Footprint Class A Preferred Stock, a number of
shares of Class A Stock equal to the product of (a) the Per Share Footprint Common Stock Consideration multiplied by (b) the number of shares of
Footprint Common Stock issuable upon conversion of such share of Footprint Class A Preferred Stock as of immediately prior to the Effective Time.

“Per Share Footprint Class B Preferred Stock Consideration” means, with respect to each share of Footprint Class B Preferred Stock, such
number of shares of Class A Stock as set forth on the Footprint Closing Certificate and as calculated pursuant to the Footprint Certificate of
Incorporation.

“Per Share Footprint Class C Preferred Stock Consideration” means, with respect to each share of Footprint Class C Preferred Stock, such
number of shares of Class A Stock as set forth on the Footprint Closing Certificate and as calculated pursuant to the Footprint Certificate of
Incorporation.

“Per Share Footprint Common Stock Consideration” means, with respect to each share of Footprint Common Stock, a number of shares of
Class A Stock equal to the result of (a) the Adjusted Aggregate Footprint Stock Consideration divided by (b) the number of Footprint Stock Adjusted
Fully Diluted Shares.

“Per Share Footprint Preferred Stock Consideration” means the Per Share Footprint Class A Preferred Stock Consideration, the Per Share
Footprint Class B Preferred Stock Consideration and/or the Per Share Footprint Class C Preferred Stock Consideration, as applicable.
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“Performance Plan” means the Founder Performance Incentive and Parent Earn Out Plan pursuant to which the Post-Combination Company will
issue restricted stock unit awards in respect of Class A Stock that may vest during the Earn Out Period.

“PIPE Investment” means the purchase of Subscription Shares pursuant to the Subscription Agreements.

“Post-Combination Company” means the Company following the Business Combination.

“Post-Combination Company Board” means the board of directors of the Company following the Business Combination.

“Post-Combination Company Stock” means the Class A Stock following the closing of the Business Combination and after the effectiveness of the
Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, including such shares following the conversion of the Class F Stock in accordance with the

Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation.

“Preferred Stock” means the preferred stock, par value of $0.0001 per share, of the Company, and following the Business Combination, of the
Post-Combination Company.

“Preferred Stock Designation” means any resolution or resolutions adopted by the Post-Combination Company Board providing for the issuance
of one or more series of Preferred Stock stating the voting rights, if any, designations, powers, preferences and relative, participating, optional, special
and other rights, if any, of each such series and any qualifications, limitations and restrictions thereof and included in a certificate of designation.

“Private Placement Warrants” means the warrants held by Sponsor that were issued to Sponsor on the IPO Closing Date, each of which is
exercisable, at an exercise price of $11.50, for one share of Class A Stock, in accordance with its terms.

“Public Shares” means the shares of Class A Stock included in the Public Units issued in the Company IPO.

“Public Stockholders” means holders of Public Shares, including the Initial Stockholders to the extent the Initial Stockholders hold Public Shares;
provided, that the Initial Stockholders are considered a “Public Stockholder” only with respect to any Public Shares held by them.

“Public Unit” means one share of Class A Stock and one-eighth of one Public Warrant, whereby each whole Public Warrant entitles the holder
thereof to purchase one share of Class A Stock at an exercise price of $11.50 per share of Class A Stock, sold in the Company IPO.

“Public Warrants” means the warrants included in the Public Units issued in the Company IPO, each of which is exercisable, at an exercise price
of $11.50, for one share of Class A Stock, in accordance with its terms.

“Registration Rights Agreement” means that certain Amended & Restated Registration Rights Agreement to be entered into at the closing of the
Business Combination, by and among the Company and the Registration Rights Holders, and in substantially the form attached hereto as Annex F.

“Registration Rights Holders” means the Company, the Initial Stockholders and certain Footprint Stockholders, including certain affiliates of
Footprint.

“Regulatory Withdrawals” means funds released to the Company from the Trust Account to fund regulatory compliance requirements and other
costs related thereto, subject to an annual limit of $900,000, for a maximum of 24 months.
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“Related Agreements” means, collectively, the Registration Rights Agreement, the Waiver and Share Surrender Agreement, the Footprint Warrant
Exercise and Cancellation Agreements and the Subscription Agreements.

“Rollover Options” means the options to acquire Class A Stock resulting from the automatic conversion at the Effective Time of Footprint Stock
Options.

“Rule 144” means Rule 144 of the Securities Act.
“Sarbanes-Oxley Act” means the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
“SEC” means the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission.

“Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation” means the proposed Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of
the Post-Combination Company, a form of which is attached hereto as Annex B, which will become the Post-Combination Company’s certificate of
incorporation upon the approval of the Amendment Proposal, assuming the consummation of the Business Combination.

“Second Effective Time” means the effective time of the Second Merger.

“Second Merger” means the merger of the Surviving Corporation with and into Second Merger Sub, with Second Merger Sub continuing as the
Surviving Entity.

“Second Merger Sub” means Frontier Merger Sub II, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company and wholly-owned, direct subsidiary of the
Company.

“Section 203” means Section 203 of the DGCL.
“Securities Act” means the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder.

“Securityholder Allocable Amount” means an aggregate number of shares equal to the product of (a) the Securityholder Pro Rata Share multiplied
by (b) the Aggregate Earn Out Shares Amount.

“Securityholder Earn Out Tranche Amount” means an aggregate number of shares equal to the result of (a) the Securityholder Allocable Amount
divided by (b) seven.

“Securityholder Pro Rata Share” means a ratio with a (a) numerator equal to the sum of (i) the aggregate number of shares of Footprint Common
Stock issued and outstanding as of immediately prior to the Effective Time (including, for the avoidance of doubt, after giving effect to the exercise of
the Footprint Warrants, but not giving effect to any conversion of the Footprint Convertible Promissory Notes in connection with the transactions
contemplated by the Merger Agreement) plus (ii) the aggregate number of shares of Footprint Common Stock issuable upon conversion (whether or not
then actually convertible) of all shares of Footprint Class A Preferred Stock issued and outstanding as of immediately prior to the Effective Time (and
for the avoidance of doubt, excluding any shares of Footprint Common Stock issued or issuable upon conversion of Footprint Class B Preferred Stock or
Footprint Class C Preferred Stock), and (b) denominator equal to the aggregate number of (i) shares of Footprint Common Stock outstanding (including,
for the avoidance of doubt, after giving effect to the exercise of the Footprint Warrants, but not giving effect to any conversion of the Footprint
Convertible Promissory Notes in connection with the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement) held by all Footprint Securityholders as of
immediately prior to the Effective Time, plus (ii) the aggregate number of shares of Footprint Common Stock issuable upon exercise of all Footprint
Stock Options (vested or unvested) outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time, plus (iii) the total number of shares of Footprint Common
Stock issuable upon conversion (whether or not then actually convertible) of all shares of
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Footprint Class A Preferred Stock held by all Footprint Securityholders as of immediately prior to the Effective Time (and for the avoidance of doubt,
excluding any shares of Footprint Common Stock issued or issuable upon conversion of Footprint Class B Preferred Stock or Footprint Class C
Preferred Stock).

“Special Meeting” means the special meeting of the Company in lieu of the 2022 annual meeting of the stockholders of the Company that is the
subject of this proxy statement/prospectus.

“Sponsor” means Gores Sponsor VIII LLC, a Delaware limited liability company and an affiliate of The Gores Group.

“Sponsor Subscription Agreement” means the subscription agreement, dated December 13, 2021, by and between the Company and Sponsor,
pursuant to which Sponsor agreed to purchase 9,500,000 shares of Class A Stock, at a price per share of $10.00 for an aggregate purchase price of
$95,000,000.

“Subject Securities” means Footprint Stock and any security convertible or exchangeable into Footprint Stock.

“Subscribers” means those certain investors who entered into the Subscription Agreements.

“Subscription Agreements” means the agreements that the Company and Subscribers entered into for a private placement of an aggregate of
31,055,000 shares of Class A Stock, at a purchase price of $10.00 per share for an aggregate amount of $310,550,000, to be consummated prior to or
substantially concurrently with the consummation of the Business Combination, and in substantially the form attached hereto as Annex G.

“Subscription Shares” means the 31,055,000 shares of Class A Stock to be issued pursuant to the Subscription Agreements.

“Surviving Corporation” means Footprint, in its capacity as the surviving corporation of the First Merger.

“Surviving Entity” means Second Merger Sub, in its capacity as the surviving entity of the Second Merger.

“The Gores Group” means The Gores Group LLC, an affiliate of Sponsor.

“Trust Account” means the trust account of the Company that holds the proceeds from the Company IPO.

“Trustee” or “Transfer Agent,” as applicable, means Computershare Trust Company, N.A., a Delaware corporation.

“U.S. Tax Code” means the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

“Waiver and Share Surrender Agreement” means that certain Waiver and Share Surrender Agreement, dated December 13, 2021, by and between
the Company, Sponsor and the other parties thereto, which is attached hereto as Annex H.

“Warrant Agreement” means that certain Warrant Agreement, by and between the Company and Computershare Inc., as warrant agent, dated as of
March 1, 2021, which is attached hereto as Annex 1.

“Weil” means Weil, Gotshal & Manges LLP, counsel to the Company.
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TRADEMARKS, TRADE NAMES AND SERVICE MARKS

The Company, Footprint and Footprint’s subsidiaries own or have rights to trademarks, trade names and service marks that they use in connection
with the operation of their business. In addition, their names, logos and website names and addresses are their trademarks or service marks. Other
trademarks, trade names and service marks appearing in this proxy statement/prospectus are the property of their respective owners. Solely for
convenience, in some cases, the trademarks, trade names and service marks referred to in this proxy statement/prospectus are listed without the

applicable ®, ™ and SM symbols, but they will assert, to the fullest extent under applicable law, their rights to these trademarks, trade names and service
marks.
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QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS

The questions and answers below highlight only selected information from this proxy statement/prospectus and only briefly address some
commonly asked questions about the Special Meeting and the proposals to be presented at the Special Meeting, including with respect to the proposed
Business Combination. The following questions and answers do not include all the information that is important to our stockholders. Stockholders are
urged to read carefully this entire proxy statement/prospectus, including the Annexes and the other documents referred to herein, to fully understand the
proposed Business Combination and the voting procedures for the Special Meeting, which, in light of public health concerns regarding the coronavirus
(COVID-19) pandemic, will be held via live webcast at [®], on [e], 2022, at [®]. The Special Meeting can be accessed by visiting [®], where you will be
able to listen to the meeting live and vote during the meeting. Please note that you will only be able to access the Special Meeting by means of remote
communication.

UESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT THE COMPANY’S SPECIAL STOCKHOLDER MEETING AND THE BUSINESS

COMBINATION
Q: Why am I receiving this proxy statement/prospectus?

A:  Our stockholders are being asked to consider and vote upon a proposal to approve the Merger Agreement and the transactions contemplated
thereby, including the Business Combination, among other proposals. We have entered into the Merger Agreement, providing for, among other
things, (i) the First Merger, and (ii) immediately following the First Merger and as part of the same overall transaction as the First Merger, the
Second Merger. You are being asked to vote on the Business Combination. Subject to the terms of the Merger Agreement, the aggregate merger
consideration to be paid in connection with the Business Combination is expected to be stock consideration valued at approximately $[®]. A copy
of the Merger Agreement is attached to this proxy statement/prospectus as Annex A.

This proxy statement/prospectus and its Annexes contain important information about the proposed Business Combination and the other matters
to be acted upon at the Special Meeting. You should read this proxy statement/prospectus and its Annexes carefully and in their entirety.

Your vote is important. You are encouraged to submit your proxy as soon as possible after carefully reviewing this proxy statement/
prospectus and its Annexes.

Q:  When and where is the Special Meeting?

A:  Inlight of public health concerns regarding the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic, the Special Meeting will be held via live webcast at [e], on
[e®], 2022, at [e]. The Special Meeting can be accessed by visiting [®], where you will be able to listen to the meeting live and vote during the
meeting. Please note that you will only be able to access the Special Meeting by means of remote communication.

Q:  What are the specific proposals on which I am being asked to vote at the Special Meeting?
A:  Our stockholders are being asked to approve the following proposals:

1. Business Combination Proposal—To consider and vote upon a proposal to approve the Merger Agreement, a copy of which is attached to
this proxy statement/prospectus as Annex A, and the transactions contemplated thereby, including, among other things, the Business
Combination (Proposal No. 1);

2. Nasdaq Proposal—To consider and vote upon a proposal to approve, for purposes of complying with applicable Nasdaq listing rules, the
issuance of more than 20% of the Company’s issued and outstanding shares of Common Stock in connection with the Business
Combination (Proposal No. 2);
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3. Charter Proposal—To consider and act upon a proposal to adopt the proposed Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation
in the form attached hereto as Annex B (Proposal No. 3);

4. Governance Proposals—To consider and act upon, on a non-binding advisory basis, a separate proposal with respect to certain governance
provisions in the Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation in accordance with SEC requirements (Proposal No. 4);

5. Incentive Plan Proposal—To consider and vote upon a proposal to approve the Incentive Plan, including the authorization of the initial
share reserve under the Incentive Plan (Proposal No. 5);

6. Performance Plan Proposal—To consider and vote upon a proposal to approve the Performance Plan, including the authorization of the
initial share reserve under the Performance Plan (Proposal No. 6);

7. Director Election Proposal—To consider and vote upon a proposal to elect four directors to serve on the Company’s Board until the earlier
of the consummation of the Business Combination and the 2023 annual meeting of stockholders, and until their respective successors are
duly elected and qualified (Proposal No. 7); and

8. Adjournment Proposal—To consider and vote upon a proposal to allow the chairman of the Special Meeting to adjourn the Special
Meeting to a later date or dates, if necessary, to permit further solicitation and vote of proxies in the event there are insufficient votes for,
or otherwise in connection with, the approval of the Business Combination Proposal, the Nasdaq Proposal, the Charter Proposal or the
Performance Plan Proposal but no other proposal if the Business Combination Proposal, the Nasdaq Proposal, the Charter Proposal and the
Performance Plan Proposal are approved (Proposal No. 8).

Q:  Are the proposals conditioned on one another?

A:  Yes. The Business Combination is conditioned on the approval of the Business Combination Proposal, the Nasdaq Proposal, the Charter Proposal
and the Performance Plan Proposal at the Special Meeting. If we fail to obtain sufficient votes for any of the Business Combination Proposal, the
Nasdaq Proposal, the Charter Proposal or the Performance Plan Proposal, we will not satisfy the conditions to closing of the Merger Agreement
and we may be prevented from closing the Business Combination. Each of the proposals other than the Business Combination Proposal, the
Nasdaq Proposal, the Charter Proposal and the Performance Plan Proposal is conditioned on the approval of the Business Combination Proposal,
the Nasdaq Proposal, the Charter Proposal and the Performance Plan Proposal, other than the Governance Proposals, the Incentive Plan Proposal,
the Director Election Proposal and the Adjournment Proposal, which are not conditioned on the approval of any other proposal set forth in this
proxy statement/prospectus. It is important for you to note that in the event that the Business Combination Proposal, the Nasdaq Proposal, the
Charter Proposal, or the Performance Plan Proposal do not receive the requisite vote for approval, we will not consummate the Business
Combination. If we do not consummate the Business Combination and fail to complete an initial business combination by March 1, 2023, we will
be required to dissolve and liquidate our Trust Account by returning the then remaining funds in such account to the Public Stockholders.

Q: Why is the Company proposing the Business Combination?

A:  We are a blank check company incorporated as a Delaware corporation on September 14, 2020 and incorporated for the purpose of effecting a
merger, capital stock exchange, asset acquisition, stock purchase, reorganization or similar business combination with one or more businesses (an
“initial business combination’). Our acquisition plan is not limited to a particular industry or geographic region for purposes of consummating an
initial business combination. However, we (a) must complete an initial business combination with one or more target businesses that together have
a fair market value of at least 80% of the assets held in the Trust Account (excluding the deferred underwriting commissions and taxes payable on
the income earned on the Trust Account) at the time of the agreement to enter into the initial business combination and (b) are not, under the
Current Company Certificate, permitted to effect an initial business combination with a blank check company or a similar company with nominal
operations.
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We have identified several criteria and guidelines we believe are important for evaluating acquisition opportunities. We use these criteria and

guidelines in evaluating acquisition opportunities, but we can decide to enter into an initial business combination with a target business that does not
meet these criteria and guidelines. We are seeking to acquire companies that we believe: (a) can utilize the extensive networks we have built in the
consumer products and services industries; (b) have a defensible core business, sustainable revenues and established customer relationships; (c) are
undergoing change in capital structure, strategy, operations or growth; (d) can benefit from our operational and strategic approach; (e) offer a unique
value proposition with transformational potential that can be substantiated during our detailed due diligence process; and (f) have reached a transition
point in their lifecycle presenting an opportunity for transformation. Based on our due diligence investigations of Footprint and the industry in which it
operates, including the financial and other information provided by Footprint in the course of negotiations, we believe that Footprint meets the criteria
and guidelines listed above. Please see the section titled “The Business Combination—Recommendation of Our Board of Directors and Reasons for the
Business Combination” for additional information.

Q:

Why is the Company providing stockholders with the opportunity to vote on the Business Combination?

Under the Current Company Certificate, we must provide all holders of Public Shares with the opportunity to have their Public Shares redeemed
upon the consummation of our initial business combination either in conjunction with a tender offer or in conjunction with a stockholder vote. For
business and other reasons, we have elected to provide our stockholders with the opportunity to have their Public Shares redeemed in connection
with a stockholder vote rather than a tender offer. Therefore, we are seeking to obtain the approval of our stockholders of the Business
Combination Proposal in order to allow our Public Stockholders to effectuate redemptions of their Public Shares in connection with the closing of
the Business Combination. The approval of the Business Combination is required under the Current Company Certificate. In addition, such
approval is also a condition to the closing of the Business Combination under the Merger Agreement.

‘What revenues and profits/losses has Footprint generated in the last two fiscal years?

Footprint generated revenues of approximately $55.0 million and $28.8 million for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.
Footprint incurred a net loss of approximately $(196.8) million and $(59.1) million for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

What will happen in the Business Combination?

Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, and upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth therein, the Company will acquire Footprint in a
series of transactions we collectively refer to as the “Business Combination.” At the closing of the Business Combination contemplated by the
Merger Agreement, among other things, First Merger Sub will merge with and into Footprint, with Footprint continuing as the Surviving
Corporation, and the Surviving Corporation will merge with and into Second Merger Sub, with Second Merger Sub continuing as the Surviving
Entity. As a result of the Mergers, immediately following the closing of the Business Combination, the Post-Combination Company will own
100% of the outstanding equity interests of Footprint, and each share of Footprint Common Stock will be cancelled and converted into the right to
receive the Per Share Footprint Common Stock Consideration and each share of Footprint Preferred Stock will be cancelled and converted into the
right to receive the applicable Per Share Footprint Preferred Stock Consideration. Please see section titled “Summary—The Business
Combination” for more information. For information regarding the sources and uses of proceeds generated by, and to be used in, the Business
Combination, please see section titled “The Business Combination—Sources and Uses for the Business Combination.”
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Q:  What will Footprint Stockholders receive in the Business Combination?

A:  Subject to the terms of the Merger Agreement, the aggregate merger consideration payable to all Footprint Stockholders and holders of Footprint
Stock Options or Footprint Warrants at the closing of the Business Combination is expected to be a number of shares, or equity awards exercisable
for shares, of Class A Stock (deemed to have a value of $10.00 per share) equal to (a) 161,776,650 shares of Class A Stock (deemed to have a
value of $10.00 per share) minus (b) the number of shares of Class A Stock issuable to holders of Footprint Convertible Promissory Notes. See
“—What will holders of Footprint Convertible Promissory Notes receive in the Business Combination?”

Each share of Footprint Common Stock will be converted into the right to receive the Per Share Footprint Common Stock Consideration,
calculated as a number of newly issued shares of Class A Stock equal to: (a) (i) 161,776,650 shares of Class A Stock (deemed to have a value of
$10.00 per share) minus (ii) the aggregate number of shares of Class A Stock issuable to holders of Footprint Class B Preferred Stock minus

(iii) the aggregate number of shares of Class A Stock issuable to holders of Footprint Class C Preferred Stock minus (iv) the number of shares of
Class A Stock issuable to holders of Footprint Convertible Promissory Notes pursuant to the terms thereof divided by (b) (i) the aggregate number
of shares of Footprint Common Stock issued and outstanding and issuable upon conversion (whether or not then actually convertible) of Footprint
Class A Preferred Stock issued and outstanding, in each case as of immediately prior to the Effective Time (including, for the avoidance of doubt,
after giving effect to the exercise of the Footprint Warrants in accordance with the terms of the Warrant Exercise Agreements, but excluding, for
the avoidance of doubt, any shares of Footprint Common Stock underlying the Footprint Class C Preferred Stock, the Footprint Class B Preferred
Stock, or the Footprint Convertible Promissory Notes), plus (ii) the aggregate number of shares of Footprint Common Stock issuable upon
exercise or settlement of all Footprint Stock Options (whether vested or unvested) outstanding as of immediately prior to the Effective Time.
Assuming the Business Combination closes on June 30, 2022 and capitalization of Footprint as of March 31, 2022, the Per Share Footprint
Common Stock Consideration is equal to approximately 6.39 shares of Class A Stock.

Each share of Footprint Class A Preferred Stock will be converted into the right to receive the Per Share Footprint Class A Preferred Stock
Consideration, calculated as a number of newly issued shares of Class A Stock equal to: (a) the Per Share Footprint Common Stock Consideration
multiplied by (b) the number of shares of Footprint Common Stock issuable upon conversion of such share of Footprint Class A Preferred Stock
as of immediately prior to the Effective Time and pursuant to the Footprint Certificate of Incorporation. Based on the current Class A Conversion
Rate (as defined in the Footprint Certificate of Incorporation) and assuming the Business Combination closes on June 30, 2022 and capitalization
of Footprint as of March 31, 2022, the Per Share Footprint Class A Preferred Stock Consideration is equal to approximately 5,378.32 shares of
Class A Stock.

Each share of Footprint Class B Preferred Stock will be converted into the right to receive the Per Share Footprint Class B Preferred Stock
Consideration, calculated as a number of newly issued shares of Class A Stock equal to: (a) $12,915.89 (such amount as may be adjusted pursuant
to the Footprint Certificate of Incorporation) divided by (b) $8.50. Based on the foregoing amounts and assuming the Business Combination
closes on June 30, 2022 and capitalization of Footprint as of March 31, 2022, the Per Share Footprint Class B Preferred Stock Consideration is
equal to approximately 1,277.74 shares of Class A Stock.

Each share of Footprint Class C Preferred Stock will be converted into the right to receive the Per Share Footprint Class C Preferred Stock
Consideration, calculated as a number of newly issued shares of Class A Stock equal to: (a) the Class C Liquidation Preference (as defined in the
Footprint Certificate of Incorporation) as of the closing date of the Business Combination, divided by (b) $9.09. Based on the foregoing amounts
and assuming the Business Combination closes on June 30, 2022 and capitalization of Footprint as of March 31, 2022, the Per Share Footprint
Class C Preferred Stock Consideration is equal to approximately 2,750.28 shares of Class A Stock.
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In addition to the consideration to be paid at the closing of the Business Combination, Footprint Securityholders will be entitled to receive their
pro rata share of a portion of up to 17,584,125 shares of Class A Stock allocable to the Footprint Securityholders from the Post-Combination
Company as Earn Out Shares upon the occurrence of certain triggering events, subject to adjustment in connection with redemptions of shares of
Class A Stock in connection with the Business Combination. Such portion of up to 17,584,125 shares of Class A Stock is calculated to reflect the
number of shares of Footprint Common Stock, held by Footprint Securityholders or into which shares of Footprint Class A Preferred Stock or
Footprint Warrants held by Footprint Securityholders are convertible or exercisable, as a portion of the number of outstanding shares of Footprint
on a fully-diluted basis, in each case, as of immediately prior to the Effective Time.

Specifically, the number of Earn Out Shares collectively issuable to all Footprint Securityholders is equal to the Securityholder Allocable Amount,
calculated as: (a) the Securityholder Pro Rata Share, equal to a ratio with a (i) numerator equal to the sum of (A) the aggregate number of shares
of Footprint Common Stock issued and outstanding as of immediately prior to the Effective Time (including, for the avoidance of doubt, after
giving effect to the exercise of the Footprint Warrants, but not giving effect to any conversion of the Footprint Convertible Promissory Notes in
connection with the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement) plus (B) the aggregate number of shares of Footprint Common Stock
issuable upon conversion (whether or not then actually convertible) of all shares of Footprint Class A Preferred Stock issued and outstanding as of
immediately prior to the Effective Time (and for the avoidance of doubt, excluding any shares of Footprint Common Stock issued or issuable upon
conversion of Footprint Class B Preferred Stock or Footprint Class C Preferred Stock), and (ii) denominator equal to the aggregate number of

(A) shares of Footprint Common Stock outstanding (including, for the avoidance of doubt, after giving effect to the exercise of the Footprint
Warrants, but not giving effect to any conversion of the Footprint Convertible Promissory Notes in connection with the transactions contemplated
by the Merger Agreement) held by all Footprint Securityholders as of immediately prior to the Effective Time, plus (B) the aggregate number of
shares of Footprint Common Stock issuable upon exercise of all Footprint Stock Options (vested or unvested) outstanding immediately prior to
the Effective Time, plus (C) the total number of shares of Footprint Common Stock issuable upon conversion (whether or not then actually
convertible) of all shares of Footprint Class A Preferred Stock held by all Footprint Securityholders as of immediately prior to the Effective Time
(and for the avoidance of doubt, excluding any shares of Footprint Common Stock issued or issuable upon conversion of Footprint Class B
Preferred Stock or Footprint Class C Preferred Stock); multiplied by (b) the Aggregate Earn Out Shares Amount, equal to: (i) 17,584,125
multiplied by (ii) (A) one minus (B) (I) the number of shares of Class A Stock redeemed in connection with the Business Combination divided by
(IT) (1) the number of shares of Class A Stock outstanding as of immediately following the Effective Time plus (2) the number of shares subject to
Footprint Stock Options that have been rolled into options of the Post-Combination Company plus (3) the number of shares of Class A Stock
redeemed in connection with the Business Combination.

For example, assuming the capitalization of Footprint as of March 31, 2022, the Securityholder Pro Rata Share is equal to 16,397,410 divided by
17,442,359, or 0.94. Assuming no redemptions, the Aggregate Earn Out Shares Amount is equal to 17,584,125 multiplied by 1, or 17,584,125. As
a result, the number of Earn Out Shares issuable would be 0.94 multiplied by 17,584,125, or 16,530,683 shares of Class A Stock. Footprint’s
founders, Troy Swope and Yoke Chung, are expected to be entitled to receive approximately 6.58% and 7.00%, respectively, of the Earn Out
Shares.

The Earn Out Shares will be issuable in seven equal tranches if the daily volume weighted average price (based on such trading day) of one share
of Class A Stock, for a period of at least 20 days out of 30 consecutive trading days, as may be adjusted (the “Common Share Price”), exceeds
$13.00, $15.50, $18.00, $20.50, $23.00, $25.50 or $28.00 (each, an “Farn Out Triggering Event”) during the five year period following the
expiration of 180 days following the closing of the Business Combination (the “Earn Out Period”).
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Q:  What will holders of Footprint Stock Options receive in the Business Combination?

A:  Each Footprint Stock Option, to the extent then outstanding and unexercised, will automatically be converted into an option, subject to the same
terms and conditions as were applicable to the corresponding Footprint Stock Option prior to the closing of the Business Combination (including
applicable vesting conditions), to purchase a number of shares of Class A Stock (rounded down to the nearest whole share) equal to the product of
(a) the number of shares of Footprint Common Stock subject to the Footprint Stock Option immediately prior to the Closing of the Business
Combination multiplied by (b) the Per Share Footprint Common Stock Consideration, at a per share exercise price equal to (i) the per share
exercise price of the Footprint Stock Option immediately prior to the closing of the Business Combination divided by (ii) the Per Share Footprint
Common Stock Consideration (rounded up to the nearest whole cent). In the aggregate, the holders of Footprint Stock Options will receive
Rollover Options representing the right to purchase 6,679,108 shares of Class A Stock.

Q:  What will holders of Footprint Convertible Promissory Notes receive in the Business Combination?

A:  Subject to the terms of the Merger Agreement, immediately prior to the Effective Time, each Footprint Convertible Promissory Note will be
converted into shares of Footprint Common Stock in accordance with their terms. Each share of Footprint Common Stock will then be converted
into the right to receive the Per Share Footprint Common Stock Consideration. The Footprint Convertible Promissory Notes were issued to certain
investors for an aggregate principal amount of $171.0 million in June and July of 2021, and an additional $7.3 million of convertible notes were
issued to a third-party lessor in December 2021 on substantially the same terms as the Convertible Promissory Notes issued by Footprint in June
and July of 2021. The Footprint Convertible Promissory Notes are subordinated obligations of Footprint, and interest is payable annually at an
initial rate of 8.0% per annum. The Footprint Convertible Promissory Notes are convertible into shares of Footprint Common Stock automatically
upon the occurrence of certain specified events, including the closing of the Business Combination. In the aggregate, the holders of Footprint
Convertible Promissory Notes will receive 27,569,334 shares of Class A Stock, assuming the Business Combination closes on June 30, 2022.

Q:  What equity stake will the Public Stockholders and the Footprint Equity Holders hold in the Company after the consummation of the

Business Combination?

A:  Itis anticipated that, upon completion of the Business Combination and without giving effect to any issuance of Earn Out Shares, the exercise of

Company Warrants or any issuance pursuant to the Incentive Plan or Performance Plan, Public Stockholders, our Initial Stockholders and

Footprint Equity Holders will hold Post-Combination Company Stock as follows:

Holders

Public Stockholders

Initial Stockholders (including Sponsor)®

Subscribers (Aggregate; excluding
Sponsor)©

Footprint Equity Holders?

Total Shares Outstanding Excluding Earn
out Shares and Warrants

Total Equity Value Post-Redemptions and
PIPE Investment ($ in millions)

Per Share Value

Contractual Charter
No Illustrative Maximum Redemption
Redemption % of Redemption % of Redemption % of Limitation % of
Scenario® Total® Scenario® Total® Scenario® Total® Scenario® Total®
34,500,000 14.7% 21,722,102 9.8% 8,944,204 4.3% 499,956 0.2%
16,623,350 7.1% 16,623,350 7.5% 16,623,350 8.0% 16,623,350 8.3%
21,555,000 9.2% 21,555,000 9.7% 21,555,000 10.3% 21,555,000 10.8%
161,776,650 69.0% 161,776,650 73.0% 161,776,650 77.4% 161,776,650 80.7%
234,455,000 100% 221,677,102 100% 208,899,204 100% 200,454,956 100%
$ 2,345 $ 2,217 $ 2,089 $ 2,005
$ 10.00 $ 10.00 $ 10.00 $ 10.00

(1) This scenario assumes that no Class Stock is redeemed from our Public Stockholders.
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This scenario assumes that approximately 12,777,898 shares of Class A Stock are redeemed from our Public Stockholders.

This scenario assumes that approximately 25,555,796 shares of Class A Stock are redeemed from our Public Stockholders, which, based on the amount of $345,030,739 in the Trust
Account as of December 31, 2021, represents the maximum amount of redemptions that would still enable us to have sufficient cash to satisfy the cash closing conditions in the
Merger Agreement.

This scenario assumes that approximately 34,000,044 shares of Class A Stock are redeemed from our Public Stockholders, which, based on the amount of $345,030,739 in the Trust
Account as of December 31, 2021, represents the maximum amount of redemptions that would still enable us to have sufficient cash to satisfy the provision in the Current Company
Certificate that prohibits us from redeeming shares of our Class A Stock in an amount that would result in our failure to have net tangible assets exceeding $5,000,000.

This row includes 9,500,000 shares of Class A Stock to be purchased by the Sponsor in the PIPE Investment pursuant to the Sponsor Subscription Agreement.

This row reflects the aggregate of 21,555,000 shares of Class A Stock to be purchased by the Subscribers, and excludes 9,500,000 shares of Class A Stock to be purchased by the
Sponsor as part of the PIPE Investment pursuant to the Sponsor Subscription Agreement.

This row assumes (a) inclusion of the Rollover Options, assuming an Option Exchange Ratio equal to the Per Share Footprint Common Stock Consideration and excluding any
additional Discounted Earn Out Option Amount, which will be determined on or prior to the consummation of the Business Combination (please see the section titled
“Summary—Treatment of Footprint Equity Awards”) and (b) the exercise of all outstanding Footprint Warrants and the conversion of all outstanding Footprint Convertible Notes into
Class A Stock in connection with the consummation of the Business Combination. This row excludes the Earn Out Shares identified in the row titled “Earn Out Shares to Footprint
Securityholders” that may be issuable to Footprint Securityholders upon the realization of all of the benchmark share prices in the earn out.

Percentages may not sum due to rounding.

For more information, please see the sections titled “Summary—Impact of the Business Combination on the Company s Public Float” and
“Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Information.”

How has the announcement of the Business Combination affected the trading price of the Public Shares?

On December 13, 2021, the last trading date before the public announcement of the Business Combination, the Public Units, Public Shares and
Public Warrants closed at $10.03, $9.88 and $1.30, respectively. On [e], 2022, the trading date immediately prior to the date of this proxy
statement/prospectus, the Public Units, Public Shares and Public Warrants closed at $[e], $[®] and $[e], respectively.

Following the Business Combination, will Company’s securities continue to trade on a stock exchange?

Yes. The Public Shares, Public Units and Public Warrants are currently listed on Nasdaq under the symbols “GIIX,” “GIIXU” and “GIIXW,”
respectively. We intend to apply to continue the listing of the Post-Combination Company’s Class A Stock and Public Warrants on Nasdaq under
the symbols “FOOT” and “FOOTW,” respectively, upon the closing of the Business Combination. Additionally, in connection with the closing of
the Business Combination, the name of the Company will be changed to Footprint International, Inc.

Will the Board of Directors of the Company change in the Business Combination?

Upon the closing of the Business Combination, it is anticipated that the Post-Combination Company Board will be composed of [e] directors in
Class I (expected to be [e@], [@], [®] and [e]), [®] directors in Class II (expected to be [@], [®], and [@]) and [e] directors in Class III (expected to
be [®], [®] and [®]). The term of the initial Class I Directors will expire at the first annual meeting of Post-Combination Company stockholders,
the term of the initial Class II Director will expire at the second annual meeting of Post-Combination Company stockholders, and the term of the
initial Class III Director will expire at the third annual meeting of Post-Combination Company stockholders. At each succeeding annual meeting
of Post Combination Company stockholders, beginning with the first annual meeting of Post-Combination Company stockholders, successors to
the class of directors whose term expires at that annual meeting shall be elected for a three-year term or until the election and qualification of their
respective successors in office, subject to their earlier death, resignation or removal.
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Please see the section titled “Management of the Post-Combination Company” for additional information.

Q:  Who will be on the management team of the Post-Combination Company?

A:  Ttis expected that, following the closing of the Business Combination, the current senior management of Footprint will comprise the senior
management of the Post-Combination Company.

Please see the section titled “Management of the Post-Combination Company” for additional information.

Q: How will the Business Combination impact the shares of the Company outstanding after the Business Combination?

A:  As aresult of the Business Combination and the consummation of the transactions contemplated thereby, the amount of Common Stock
outstanding will increase by approximately 680% to approximately 234,455,000 shares of Post-Combination Company Stock (assuming that no
shares of Class A Stock are redeemed). Additional shares of Post-Combination Company Stock may be issuable in the future as a result of the
issuance of additional shares that are not currently outstanding, including issuance of shares of Post-Combination Company Stock upon exercise
of the Public Warrants and Private Placement Warrants after the Business Combination. The issuance and sale of such shares in the public market
could adversely impact the market price of our Post-Combination Company Stock even if our business is doing well.

Q: What is the impact on relative stock ownership if a substantial number of the Public Stockholders vote in favor of the Business
Combination Proposal and exercise their redemption rights?

A:  Our Public Stockholders are not required to vote “FOR” the Business Combination in order to exercise their redemption rights. Accordingly, the
Business Combination may be consummated even though the funds available from the Trust Account and the number of Public Stockholders are
reduced as a result of redemptions by Public Stockholders.

If a Public Stockholder exercises its redemption rights, such exercise will not result in the loss of any warrants that it may hold. We cannot predict
the ultimate value of the Company Warrants following the consummation of the Business Combination, but assuming that 100% or 34,500,000
shares of Class A Stock held by our Public Stockholders were redeemed, the 4,312,500 retained outstanding Public Warrants would have an
aggregate value of $[e], based on the price per Public Warrant of $[e®] on [e], 2022, the most recent practicable date prior to the date of this proxy
statement/prospectus. In addition, on [e], 2022, the most recent practicable date prior to the date of this proxy statement/prospectus, the price per
share of Class A Stock closed at $[®]. If the shares of Class A Stock are trading above the exercise price of $11.50 per warrant, the warrants are
considered to be “in the money” and are therefore more likely to be exercised by the holders thereof (when they become exercisable). This in turn
increases the risk to non-redeeming stockholders that the warrants will be exercised, which would result in immediate dilution to the
non-redeeming stockholders.

In each of the no redemption, illustrative redemption, contractual maximum redemption and charter redemption limitation scenarios as described
below, the residual equity value owned by non-redeeming stockholders, taking into account the respective redemption amounts, is assumed to
remain the deemed value of $10.00 per share as illustrated in the sensitivity table below. As a result of such redemption amounts and the assumed
$10.00 per share value, the implied total equity value of the Company following the Business Combination (including the PIPE Investment),
assuming no dilution from any Additional Dilution Sources, would be (a) $2,345 million in the no redemption scenario, (b) $2,217 million in the
illustrative redemption scenario, (c) $2,089 million in the contractual maximum redemption scenario and (d) $2,005 million in the charter
redemption limitation scenario. Additionally, the sensitivity table below sets forth (x) the potential additional dilutive impact of each of the
Additional Dilution Sources in each redemption scenario, as described
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further in Notes 9 through 14 below, and (y) the effective underwriting fee incurred in connection with the Company IPO in each redemption
scenario, as further described in Note 15 below.

Contractual Charter
No Illustrative Maximum Redemption
Redemption % of Redemption % of Redemption % of Limitation % of

Holders Scenario® Total(16) Scenario® Total(10) Scenario® Total(16) Scenario® Total(16)
Public Stockholders 34,500,000 14.7% 21,722,102 9.8% 8,944,204 4.3% 499,956 0.2%
Initial Stockholders (including

Sponsor)® 16,623,350 7.1% 16,623,350 7.5% 16,623,350 8.0% 16,623,350 8.3%
Subscribers (Aggregate;

excluding Sponsor)® 21,555,000 9.2% 21,555,000 9.7% 21,555,000 10.3% 21,555,,000 10.8%
Footprint Equity Holders( 161,776,650 69.0% 161,776,650 73.0% 161,776,650 77.4% 161,776,650 80.7%
Total Shares Outstanding

Excluding Earn out Shares

and Warrants 234,455,000 100% 221,677,102 100% 208,899,204 100% 200,454,956 100%
Total Equity Value Post-

Redemptions and PIPE

Investment ($ in millions) $ 2,345 $ 2,217 $ 2,089 $ 2,005
Per Share Value $ 10.00 $ 10.00 $ 10.00 $ 10.00

Contractual Charter
No Hlustrative Maximum Redemption
Redemption % of Redemption % of Redemption % of Limitation % of

Additional Dilution Sources Scenario® Total®(16) Scenario® Total®(16) Scenario® Total®)(16) Scenario® Total®)(16)
Earn Out Shares to Footprint

Securityholders® 16,530,683 6.6% 15,629,754 6.6% 14,728,824 6.6% 14,133,447 6.6%
Company Warrants Public

Warrants(10 4,312,500 1.8% 4,312,500 1.9% 4,312,500 2.0% 4,312,500 2.1%
Private Warrants() 2,966,666 1.2% 2,966,666 1.3% 2,966,666 1.4% 2,966,666 1.5%
Equity Incentive Plans Incentive

Plan(?) 29,456,697 8.9% 28,178,907 8.8% 26,901,118 8.8% 26,056,693 8.8%
Performance Plan(13) 18,637,567 7.4% 17,621,812 7.4% 16,606,056 7.4% 15,934,797 7.4%
Total Additional Dilutive

Sources(4) 65,225,005 21.8% 62,030,531 21.9% 58,836,056 22.0% 56,724,994 22.1%
Deferred Discount
Effective Deferred Discount(> 12,075,000 3.5% 12,075,000 5.6% 12,075,000 13.5% 12,075,000 241.5%

[€))] This scenario assumes that no Class Stock is redeemed from our Public Stockholders.

2) This scenario assumes that approximately 12,777,898 shares of Class A Stock are redeemed from our Public Stockholders.

3) This scenario assumes that approximately 25,555,796 shares of Class A Stock are redeemed from our Public Stockholders, which, based on the amount of $345,030,739 in the Trust
Account as of December 31, 2021, represents the maximum amount of redemptions that would still enable us to have sufficient cash to satisfy the cash closing conditions in the
Merger Agreement.

%) This scenario assumes that approximately 34,000,044 shares of Class A Stock are redeemed from our Public Stockholders, which, based on the amount of $345,030,739 in the Trust
Account as of December 31, 2021, represents the maximum amount of redemptions that would still enable us to have sufficient cash to satisfy the provision in the Current Company
Certificate that prohibits us from redeeming shares of our Class A Stock in an amount that would result in our failure to have net tangible assets exceeding $5,000,000.

5) This row includes 9,500,000 shares of Class A Stock to be purchased by the Sponsor in the PIPE Investment pursuant to the Sponsor Subscription Agreement.

(6) This row reflects the aggregate of 21,555,000 shares of Class A Stock to be purchased by the Subscribers, and excludes 9,500,000 shares of Class A Stock to be purchased by the
Sponsor as part of the PIPE Investment pursuant to the Sponsor Subscription Agreement.

(7) This row assumes (a) inclusion of the Rollover Options, assuming an Option Exchange Ratio equal to the Per Share Footprint Common Stock Consideration and excluding any
additional Discounted Earn Out Option Amount, which will be determined on or prior to the consummation of the Business Combination (please see the section titled
“Summary—Treatment of Footprint Equity Awards™) and (b) the exercise of all outstanding Footprint Warrants and the conversion of all outstanding Footprint Convertible Notes into
Class A
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Stock in connection with the consummation of the Business Combination. This row excludes the Earn Out Shares identified in the row titled “Earn Out Shares to Footprint
Securityholders” that may be issuable to Footprint Securityholders upon the realization of all of the benchmark share prices in the earn out.

The Percentage of Total with respect to each Additional Dilution Source set forth below, including the Total Additional Dilution Sources, includes the full amount of shares issued
with respect to the applicable Additional Dilution Source in both the numerator and denominator. For example, in the illustrative redemption scenario, the Percentage of Total with
respect to the Performance Plan would be calculated as follows: (a) 17,621,812 shares issued pursuant to the Performance Plan (for more information about the Performance Plan, see
the section titled “Proposal No. 6—The Performance Plan Proposal”); divided by (b) (i) 221,677,102 shares (the number of shares outstanding prior to any issuance pursuant to the
Performance Plan) plus (ii) 17,621,812 shares issued pursuant to the Performance Plan.

This row assumes that all Earn Out Shares potentially issuable to Footprint Securityholders (upon the realization of all of the benchmark share prices in the earn out) are issued to
Footprint Securityholders and assumes that no additional shares of Post-Combination Company Stock are issued between the closing of the Business Combination and the realization
of all of the benchmark share prices in the earn out. The Earn Out Shares in this row include only the Securityholder Allocable Amount (i.e., the Earn Out Shares issuable to Footprint
Securityholders) and do not include the Plan Allocable Amount and the calculations of the Securityholder Allocable Amount and the Plan Allocable Amount are based on the
capitalization of Footprint as of March 31, 2022. Percentages in this row represent (a) the Earn Out Shares set forth in the applicable column divided by (b) (i) the amounts included in
the row titled “Total Shares Outstanding Excluding Earn Out Shares and Warrants” plus (ii) the Earn Out Shares set forth in the applicable column.

This row assumes exercise of all Public Warrants to purchase 4,312,500 shares of Class A Stock. Percentages in this row represent (a) the 4,312,500 shares of Class A Stock
underlying the Public Warrants divided by (b) (i) the amounts included in the row titled “Total Shares Outstanding Excluding Earn Out Shares and Warrants” plus (ii) 4,312,500 shares
of Class A Stock underlying the Public Warrants.

This row assumes exercise of all Private Placement Warrants to purchase 2,966,666 shares of Class A Stock. Percentages in this row represent (a) the 2,966,666 shares of Class A
Stock underlying the Private Placement Warrants divided by (b) (i) the amounts included in the row titled “Total Shares Outstanding Excluding Earn Out Shares and Warrants” plus
(ii) 2,966,666 shares of Class A Stock underlying the Private Placement Warrants.

This row (a) assumes the issuance of all shares of Post-Combination Company Stock reserved for issuance under the Incentive Plan, which equals 29,456,697 shares of Post-
Combination Company Stock in the no redemption scenario, 28,178,907 shares of Post-Combination Company Stock in the illustrative redemption scenario, 26,901,118 shares of
Post-Combination Company Stock in the contractual maximum redemption scenario or 26,056,693 shares of Post-Combination Company Stock in the charter redemption limitation
scenario, in each case, following the consummation of the Business Combination and (b) is based on the capitalization of Footprint as of March 31, 2022. Percentages in this row
represent (a) (i) the foregoing share amounts, as applicable, minus (ii) 6,679,108 shares of Post-Combination Company Stock underlying Rollover Options (such difference, the
“Incentive Plan Dilutive Amount”) divided by (b) (i) the amounts included in the row titled “Total Shares Outstanding Excluding Earn Out Shares and Warrants™ plus (ii) the
applicable Incentive Plan Dilutive Amount.

This row assumes the issuance of all shares of Post-Combination Company Stock reserved for issuance under the Performance Plan, which equals 18,637,567 shares of Post-
Combination Company Stock in the no redemption scenario, 17,621,812 shares of Post-Combination Company Stock in the illustrative redemption scenario, 16,606,056 shares of
Post-Combination Company Stock in the contractual maximum redemption scenario or 15,934,797 shares of Post-Combination Company Stock in the charter redemption limitation
scenario, in each case, following the consummation of the Business Combination. Percentages in this row represent (a) the foregoing share amounts, as applicable, divided by (b) (i)
the amounts included in the row titled “Total Shares Outstanding Excluding Earn Out Shares and Warrants™ plus (ii) 18,637,567 shares of Post-Combination Company Stock in the no
redemption scenario, 17,621,812 shares of Post-Combination Company Stock in the illustrative redemption scenario, 16,606,056 shares of Post-Combination Company Stock in the
contractual maximum redemption scenario or 15,934,797 shares of Post-Combination Company Stock in the charter redemption limitation scenario. For more information about the
Performance Plan, see the section titled “Proposal No. 6—The Performance Plan Proposal.”

This row assumes the issuance of all shares of Post-Combination Company Stock in connection with each of the Additional Dilution Sources (other than 6,679,108 shares of Post-
Combination Company Stock underlying Rollover Options under the Incentive Plan which is not dilutive as such Rollover Options are accounted for in the row titled “Footprint
Equity Holders™), as described further in Notes 8 through 13 above, which equals 65,225,005 shares of Post-Combination Company Stock in the no redemption scenario, 62,030,531
shares of Post-Combination Company Stock in the illustrative redemption scenario, 58,836,056 shares of Post-Combination Company Stock in the contractual maximum redemption
scenario or 56,724,994 shares of Post-Combination Company Stock in the charter redemption limitation scenario, in each case, following the consummation of the Business
Combination. Percentages in this row represent (a) the foregoing share amounts, as applicable, divided by (b) (i) the amounts included in the row titled “Total Shares Outstanding
Excluding Earn Out Shares and Warrants” plus (ii) 65,225,005 shares of Post-Combination Company Stock in the no redemption scenario, 62,030,531 shares of Post-Combination
Company Stock in the illustrative redemption scenario, 58,836,056 shares of Post-Combination Company Stock in the contractual maximum redemption scenario or 56,724,994 shares
of Post-Combination Company Stock in the charter redemption limitation scenario.

Reflects the Deferred Discount of $12,075,000 incurred in connection with the Company IPO. The level of redemption impacts the effective Deferred Discount incurred in connection
with the Company IPO. In the no redemption scenario, the effective Deferred Discount is based on $345,030,739 in the Trust Account. In the illustrative redemption scenario, the
effective Deferred Discount is based on $217,240,374 in the Trust Account. In the contractual maximum redemption scenario, the effective Deferred Discount is based on $89,450,009
in the Trust Account. In the charter redemption limitation scenario, the effective Deferred Discount is based on $5,000,005 in the Trust Account.

Percentages may not sum due to rounding.
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The foregoing table is provided for illustrative purposes only and there can be no assurance that the Post-Combination Company Stock will trade
at the illustrative per share values set forth therein, regardless of the levels of redemption.

Based on the assumptions regarding the Cumulative Dilution Sources, including the Additional Dilution Sources, set forth under “Risk
Factors—Risks Related to the Company and the Business Combination—Qur Public Stockholders will experience dilution as a consequence of, among
other transactions, the issuance of Class A Stock as consideration in the Business Combination. Having a minority share position may reduce the
influence that our current stockholders have on the management of the Post-Combination Company,” we estimate that:

in the no redemption scenario, Public Stockholders’ ownership of the Company would be reduced from 80% of the Common Stock prior
to the Business Combination to (i) 14.7% of the Post-Combination Company’s Stock (and voting power) following the Business
Combination without giving effect to any dilution from the Additional Dilution Sources or (ii) 11.3% of the Post-Combination Company’s
Stock (and voting power) following the Business Combination assuming the estimated maximum dilutive effect of the Additional Dilution
Sources;

in the illustrative redemption scenario, Public Stockholders’ ownership of the Company would be reduced from 80% of the Common
Stock prior to the Business Combination to (i) 9.8% of the Post-Combination Company’s Stock (and voting power) following the Business
Combination without giving effect to any dilution from the Additional Dilution Sources or (ii) 7.5% of the Post-Combination Company’s
Stock (and voting power) following the Business Combination assuming the estimated maximum dilutive effect of the Additional Dilution
Sources;

in the contractual maximum redemption scenario, Public Stockholders’ ownership of the Company would be reduced from 80% of the
Common Stock prior to the Business Combination to (i) 4.3% of the Post-Combination Company’s Stock (and voting power) following
the Business Combination without giving effect to any dilution from the Additional Dilution Sources or (ii) 3.3% of the Post-Combination
Company’s Stock (and voting power) following the Business Combination assuming the estimated maximum dilutive effect of the
Additional Dilution Sources; and

in the charter redemption limitation scenario, Public Stockholders’ ownership of the Company would be reduced from 80% of the
Common Stock prior to the Business Combination to (i) 0.2% of the Post-Combination Company’s Stock (and voting power) following
the Business Combination without giving effect to any dilution from the Additional Dilution Sources or (ii) 0.2% of the Post-Combination
Company’s Stock (and voting power) following the Business Combination assuming the estimated maximum dilutive effect of the
Additional Dilution Sources.

Q:  Will the Company obtain new financing in connection with the Business Combination?

A:  Yes. The Company will use the $310,550,000 of aggregate gross proceeds from the PIPE Investment, plus $150,000,000, which represents the
gross proceeds from the Footprint Class C Financing, together with the funds in the Trust Account, to fund the cash to be contributed to Footprint
in the Business Combination, and to pay certain transaction expenses.

Pursuant to the PIPE Investment, the Subscribers have agreed to purchase an aggregate of 31,055,000 shares of Class A Stock in a private
placement for $10.00 per share for aggregate gross proceeds of $310,550,000. As part of the PIPE Investment, our Sponsor agreed to purchase
9,500,000 shares of Class A Stock, at a price per share of $10.00 for an aggregate purchase price of $95,000,000 and the Koch Preference
Subscriber agreed to purchase 250,000 shares of Class A Stock, at a price per share of $10.00 for an aggregate purchase price of $25,000,000. The
PIPE Investment is contingent upon, among other things, stockholder approval of the Business Combination Proposal and the closing of the
Business Combination.
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Set forth below is a summary of the Founder Shares that Initial Stockholders have purchased that will be converted into Class A Stock in
connection with the Business Combination, or the shares of Class A Common Stock that our Sponsor has agreed to purchase in the PIPE
Investment:

Shares of
Class A Stock
(following the Aggregate
Business Purchase Purchase
Combination) Price Price
Founder Shares()(2) 7,123,350 $ 0.003 $ 25,000
Shares in PIPE Investment(?) 9,500,000 $ 10.00 $ 95,000,000

Our Sponsor purchased 8,625,000 Founder Shares (75,000 of which were subsequently assigned to the Company’s independent directors) for $25,000. However, in accordance with
the Waiver and Share Surrender Agreement, the Sponsor has agreed to surrender 1,501,650 Founder Shares prior to the conversion of such shares of Founder Shares to shares of
Common Stock in connection with the Business Combination, in connection with, and subject to, the closing of the Business Combination.

Represents shares held by the Sponsor which is controlled indirectly by Mr. Gores. Mr. Gores may be deemed to beneficially own 7,123,350 shares of Class F Stock and 9,500,000
shares of Class A Stock to be purchased under the Sponsor Subscription Agreement, provided, however, that the Sponsor may choose to assign its commitment to acquire such shares
pursuant to the Sponsor Subscription Agreement. Voting and disposition decisions with respect to such securities are made by Mr. Gores. Mr. Gores disclaims beneficial ownership of
these securities except to the extent of any pecuniary interest therein.

In addition, pursuant to the Footprint Class C Financing, the Koch Preference Subscriber purchased 6,000 shares of Footprint Class C Preferred
Stock at a purchase price of $25,000 per share for an aggregate purchase price of $150,000,000. Pursuant to the Footprint Certificate of
Incorporation, each Footprint Class C Preferred Share will convert into a share of Class A Stock at $9.09 per share.

Are there any arrangements to help ensure that the Company will have sufficient funds, together with the proceeds in its Trust Account,
to fund the aggregate purchase price?

Unless waived by Footprint, the Merger Agreement provides that the obligation of Footprint to consummate the Business Combination is
conditioned on the total of (i) the amount in the Trust Account, after giving effect to redemptions of Public Shares, (ii) the proceeds from the PIPE
Investment plus $150,000,000, which represents the gross proceeds from the Footprint Class C Financing and (iii) all funds held by us outside of
the Trust Account and immediately available to us, equaling or exceeding $550,000,000.

Why is the Company proposing the Nasdaq Proposal?

We are proposing the Nasdaq Proposal in order to comply with Nasdaq Listing Rules 5635(a) and (d), which require stockholder approval of
certain transactions that result in the issuance of 20% or more of the outstanding voting power or shares of Common Stock outstanding before the
issuance of stock or securities.

In connection with the Business Combination, we expect to issue approximately 210,415,775 shares of Class A Stock in the Business
Combination. Because we may issue 20% or more of our outstanding Common Stock when considering together the aggregate consideration to be
issued in the Business Combination, we are required to obtain stockholder approval of such issuance pursuant to Nasdaq Listing Rules 5635(a)
and (d). For more information, please see the section titled “Proposal No. 2—The Nasdaq Proposal.”

Why is the Company proposing the Charter Proposal?

The Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation that we are asking our stockholders to adopt in connection with the Business
Combination (the “Charter Proposal” or “Proposal No. 3”) provides for certain amendments to the Current Company Certificate to effect the
Business Combination. Pursuant to Delaware law and the Merger Agreement, we are required to submit the Charter Proposal to our stockholders
for adoption. For additional information please see the section titled “Proposal No. 3—The Charter Proposal.”
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Q:  Why is the Company proposing the Governance Proposals?

A:  Asrequired by applicable SEC guidance, we are requesting that our stockholders vote upon, on a non-binding advisory basis, a proposal to
approve certain governance provisions contained in the Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation that materially affect
stockholder rights. This separate vote is not otherwise required by Delaware law separate and apart from Proposal No. 3, but pursuant to SEC
guidance, we are required to submit these provisions to its stockholders separately for approval. However, the stockholder vote regarding this
proposal is an advisory vote, and is not binding on us or our Board (separate and apart from the approval of the Charter Proposal). Furthermore,
the Business Combination is not conditioned on the separate approval of the Governance Proposals (separate and apart from approval of the
Charter Proposal). For additional information, please see the section titled “Proposal No. 4—The Governance Proposals.”

Q: Why is the Company proposing the Incentive Plan Proposal?

A:  The Incentive Plan will enable the Post-Combination Company to grant equity awards based on the terms of the Incentive Plan. The Company
anticipates that the Post-Combination Company will use these equity awards as an incentive and retention tool as we shift the Footprint business
to a public company and compete for talent and drive expansion. The Incentive Plan will be adopted following the consummation of the Business
Combination. For additional information, please see the section titled “Proposal No. 5—The Incentive Plan Proposal.”

Q: Why is the Company proposing the Performance Plan Proposal?

A:  Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, holders of Footprint Stock Options and Footprint’s founders, Troy Swope and Yoke Chung, are entitled to
receive shares of Company Stock in satisfaction of Restricted Stock Units granted under the Performance Plan should the Post-Combination
Company meet certain performance metrics, as set forth in the Merger Agreement and, in the case of the Restricted Stock Units granted to
Footprint’s founders, subject to additional time vesting. The Performance Plan will enable the Post-Combination Company to comply with the
terms of the Merger Agreement. Awards under the Performance Plan will be provided through the grant of restricted stock units in accordance
with the terms of the Merger Agreement and the Performance Plan and the Company anticipates that the Post-Combination Company will use
these equity awards as an incentive and retention tool as it shifts the Footprint business to a public company. The Performance Plan will be
adopted following the consummation of the Business Combination. For additional information, please see the section titled “Proposal No. 6—The
Performance Plan Proposal.”

Q:  Why is the Company proposing the Director Election Proposal?

A:  The Company believes it is in the best interests of stockholders to elect directors in 2022. For additional information, please see the section titled
“Proposal No. 7—The Director Election Proposal.”

Q:  Why is the Company proposing the Adjournment Proposal?

A:  We are proposing the Adjournment Proposal to allow the chairman of the Special Meeting to adjourn the Special Meeting to a later date or dates,
if necessary, to permit further solicitation of proxies in the event that there are insufficient votes for, or otherwise in connection with, the approval
of the Business Combination Proposal, the Nasdaq Proposal, the Charter Approval Proposal or the Performance Plan Proposal, but no other
proposal if the Business Combination Proposal, the Nasdaq Proposal, the Charter Proposal and the Performance Plan Proposal are approved. For
additional information, please see the section titled “Proposal No. 8—The Adjournment Proposal.”

Q:  What happens if I sell my shares of Class A Stock before the Special Meeting?

A:  The record date for the Special Meeting is earlier than the date that the Business Combination is expected to be completed. If you transfer your
shares of Class A Stock after the record date, but before the Special
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Meeting, unless the transferee obtains from you a proxy to vote those shares, you will retain your right to vote at the Special Meeting. However,
you will not be able to seek redemption of your shares of Class A Stock because you will no longer be able to deliver them for cancellation upon
consummation of the Business Combination. If you transfer your shares of Class A Stock prior to the record date, you will have no right to vote

those shares at the Special Meeting or redeem those shares for a pro rata portion of the proceeds held in our Trust Account.

What vote is required to approve the proposals presented at the Special Meeting?

The approval of the Business Combination Proposal requires the affirmative vote of at least a majority of the votes cast by holders of outstanding
shares of our Common Stock represented in person via the virtual meeting platform or by proxy and entitled to vote thereon at the Special
Meeting. Because our Initial Stockholders have agreed to vote the shares of Common Stock they own in favor of the Business Combination
Proposal (which amount constitutes approximately 20% of our outstanding shares of Common Stock), approximately 38% of our Common Stock
held by our Public Stockholders will need to vote in favor of the Business Combination Proposal for the Business Combination Proposal to be
approved (assuming all of the outstanding shares of Common Stock are represented in person via the virtual meeting platform or by proxy, are
entitled to vote at the Special Meeting and vote on the Business Combination Proposal). Failure to vote by proxy or to vote in person via the
virtual meeting platform at the Special Meeting and broker non-votes will have no effect on the Business Combination Proposal. Abstentions will
be counted in connection with the determination of whether a valid quorum is established but will have no effect on the Business Combination
Proposal.

The approval of the Nasdaq Proposal requires the affirmative vote of holders of at least a majority of the votes cast by holders of outstanding
shares of our Common Stock represented in person via the virtual meeting platform or by proxy and entitled to vote thereon at the Special
Meeting. Failure to vote by proxy or to vote in person via the virtual meeting platform at the Special Meeting and broker non-votes will have no
effect on the Nasdaq Proposal. Abstentions will be counted in connection with the determination of whether a valid quorum is established but will
have no effect on the Nasdaq Proposal.

The approval of the Charter Proposal requires (i) the affirmative vote of holders of a majority of our outstanding shares of Common Stock entitled
to vote thereon at the Special Meeting and (ii) the affirmative vote of holders of a majority of our outstanding shares of Class F Stock, voting
separately as a single class, entitled to vote thereon at the Special Meeting. Accordingly, a Company stockholder’s failure to vote by proxy or to
vote in person via the virtual meeting platform at the Special Meeting, as well as an abstention from voting and a broker non-vote with regard to
the Charter Proposal will have the same effect as a vote “AGAINST” such Charter Proposal.

The approval of the Governance Proposals requires the affirmative vote of at least a majority of the votes cast by holders of our outstanding shares
of Common Stock represented in person via the virtual meeting platform or by proxy and entitled to vote thereon at the Special Meeting.
Accordingly, a Company stockholder’s failure to vote by proxy or to vote in person via the virtual meeting platform at the Special Meeting, as
well as an abstention from voting and a broker non-vote with regard to the Governance Proposals will have no effect on the Governance
Proposals. Abstentions will be counted in connection with the determination of whether a valid quorum is established but will have no effect on
the Governance Proposals.

The approval of the Incentive Plan Proposal requires the affirmative vote of a majority of the votes cast by holders of our outstanding shares of
Common Stock represented in person via the virtual meeting platform or by proxy and entitled to vote at the Special Meeting. Accordingly, a
Company stockholder’s failure to vote by proxy or to vote in person via the virtual meeting platform at the Special Meeting, as well as a broker
non-vote with regard to the Incentive Plan Proposal will have no effect on the Incentive Plan Proposal. Abstentions will be counted in connection
with the determination of whether a valid quorum is established but will have no effect on the Incentive Plan Proposal.
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The approval of the Performance Plan Proposal requires the affirmative vote of a majority of the votes cast by holders of our outstanding shares of
Common Stock represented in person via the virtual meeting platform or by proxy and entitled to vote at the Special Meeting. Accordingly, a
Company stockholder’s failure to vote by proxy or to vote in person via the virtual meeting platform at the Special Meeting, as well as a broker
non-vote with regard to the Performance Plan Proposal will have no effect on the Performance Plan Proposal. Abstentions will be counted in
connection with determination of whether a valid quorum is established but will have no effect on the Performance Plan Proposal.

For purposes of the Director Election Proposal, if a quorum is present, directors are elected by a plurality of the votes cast by holders of our
outstanding shares of Class F Stock, voting separately as a single class, in person via the virtual meeting platform or by proxy. This means that the
four director nominees who receive the most affirmative votes will be elected. Votes marked “FOR” a nominee will be counted in favor of that
nominee. Proxies will have full discretion to cast votes for other persons in the event any nominee is unable to serve. Failure to vote by proxy or to
vote in person via the virtual meeting platform at the Special Meeting, abstentions and broker non-votes will have no effect on the vote.

The approval of the Adjournment Proposal requires the affirmative vote of a majority of the votes cast by holders of outstanding shares of our
Common Stock represented in person via the virtual meeting platform or by proxy and entitled to vote thereon at the Special Meeting.
Accordingly, a Company stockholder’s failure to vote by proxy or to vote in person via the virtual meeting platform at the Special Meeting, as
well as a broker non-vote with regard to the Adjournment Proposal will have no effect on the Adjournment Proposal. Abstentions will be counted
in connection with the determination of whether a valid quorum is established but will have no effect on the Adjournment Proposal.

What happens if the Business Combination Proposal is not approved?

Unless we amend our Current Company Certificate (which requires the affirmative vote of 65% of all then outstanding shares of Class A Stock)
and amend certain other agreements into which we have entered to extend the life of the Company, if the Business Combination Proposal is not
approved and we do not consummate an initial business combination by March 1, 2023, we will be required to dissolve and liquidate the Trust
Account.

How many votes do I have at the Special Meeting?

Our stockholders are entitled to one vote on each proposal presented at the Special Meeting for each share of Common Stock held of record as of
[e], 2022, the record date for the Special Meeting, except that only the Class F Stock is entitled to vote on the Director Election Proposal. As of
the close of business on the record date, there were [®] outstanding shares of Common Stock.

How do I register to attend the Special Meeting virtually?

If your shares are registered directly in your name, you are considered a stockholder of record, and you do not need to register to attend the
Special Meeting virtually. Please follow the instructions on your proxy card. If you hold your shares in “street name,” which means your shares
are held of record by a broker, bank or other nominee, you must register in advance to attend the Special Meeting virtually. To register to attend
the Special Meeting in person via the virtual meeting platform, you must obtain a proxy from your broker, bank or other nominee, reflecting your
holdings of Company Common Stock along with your name and email address and submit to legalproxy@computershare.com. Requests for
registration must be labeled as “Legal Proxy” and be received no later than 5:00 p.m., Eastern Time, on [e], 2022. You will receive a confirmation
of your registration by email.

‘What constitutes a quorum at the Special Meeting?

A majority of the issued and outstanding shares of Common Stock entitled to vote as of the record date at the Special Meeting must be present, in
person via the virtual meeting platform or represented by proxy, at
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the Special Meeting to constitute a quorum and in order to conduct business at the Special Meeting. Abstentions will be counted as present for the
purpose of determining a quorum. Our Initial Stockholders, who currently own 20% of our issued and outstanding shares of Common Stock, will
count towards this quorum. In the absence of a quorum, the chairman of the Special Meeting has power to adjourn the Special Meeting. As of the
record date for the Special Meeting, [®] shares of Common Stock would be required to achieve a quorum.

How will the Sponsor, directors and officers vote?

Prior to the Company IPO, we entered into agreements with our Sponsor and each of our directors and officers, pursuant to which each agreed to
vote any shares of Common Stock owned by them in favor of the Business Combination Proposal. None of our Sponsor, directors or officers has
purchased any shares of our Common Stock during or after the Company IPO and, as of the date of this proxy statement/prospectus, neither we
nor our Sponsor, directors or officers have entered into agreements, and are not currently in negotiations, to purchase shares prior to the
consummation of the Business Combination. Currently, our Initial Stockholders own 20% of our issued and outstanding shares of Common Stock,
including all of the Founder Shares, and will be able to vote all such shares at the Special Meeting.

What interests do the Sponsor and the Company’s current officers and directors have in the Business Combination?

The Sponsor, certain members of our Board and our officers may have interests in the Business Combination that are different from or in addition
to (and which may conflict with) your interests. You should take these interests into account in deciding whether to approve the Business
Combination. These interests include:

. the fact that our Initial Stockholders have agreed not to redeem any of the Founder Shares in connection with a stockholder vote to
approve a proposed initial business combination;

. the fact that our Initial Stockholders have agreed to waive their rights to conversion price adjustments with respect to any Founder Shares
they may hold in connection with the consummation of the Business Combination. Therefore, Class F Shares held by the Initial
Stockholders will convert on a one-for-one basis in connection with the consummation of the Business Combination;

. the fact that our Sponsor paid an aggregate of $25,000 for 8,625,000 initial founder shares at approximately $0.003 per share, which will
become worthless if we fail to complete an initial business combination by March 1, 2023. In particular, in exchange for serving on the
Board, each of our independent directors, Messrs. Bort, Rea and Patton, received a nominal economic interest through the transfer from
our Sponsor of 25,000 Founder Shares at their original purchase price of $0.003 per share. If the Company fails to complete an initial
business combination by March 1, 2023, these Founder Shares will become worthless. As a result, our independent directors may have a
conflict of interest in determining whether a particular business is an appropriate business with which to effectuate the Company’s initial
business combination;

. the fact that after giving effect to the forfeiture of up to 1,501,650 shares of Class F Stock pursuant to the Waiver and Share Surrender
Agreement, the remaining 7,123,350 Founder Shares will have a significantly higher value at the time of the Business Combination, which
if unrestricted and freely tradable would be valued at approximately $71 million (however, given the restrictions on such shares, we
believe such shares have a lesser value);

. the fact that, given the differential in the purchase price that our Sponsor paid for the Founder Shares as compared to the price of the
Public Units sold in the Company IPO and the substantial number of Common Stock that our Sponsor will receive upon conversion of the
Founder Shares in connection with the Business Combination, our Sponsor and its affiliates may earn a positive rate of return on their
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investment even if Common Stock trades below the price initially paid for the Public Units in the Company IPO and the Public
Stockholders experience a negative rate of return following the completion of the Business Combination;

. the fact that our Initial Stockholders have agreed to waive their rights to liquidating distributions from the Trust Account with respect to
their Founder Shares if we fail to complete an initial business combination by March 1, 2023;

. the fact that our Sponsor paid an aggregate of approximately $8,900,000 for its 2,966,666 Private Placement Warrants to purchase shares
of Class A Stock, and that such Private Placement Warrants will expire worthless if an initial business combination is not consummated by
March 1, 2023. The Private Placement Warrants are identical to the Public Warrants sold as part of the Public Units issued in the Company
IPO except that, so long as they are held by our Sponsor or its permitted transferees: (i) they will not be redeemable by us (except as set
forth under “Description of Securities—Warrants—Public Warrants—Redemption of Public Warrants for Cash” and “—Redemption of
Public Warrants for Class A Stock™); (ii) they (including the Class A Stock issuable upon exercise of these warrants) may not, subject to
certain limited exceptions, be transferred, assigned or sold by our Sponsor until 30 days after the completion of an initial business
combination; (iii) they may be exercised by the holders on a cashless basis; and (iv) they are subject to registration rights. For additional
information regarding the Private Placement Warrants and the Public Warrants, please see “Description of Securities—Warrants—Public
Warrants—Redemption of Public Warrants for Cash” and “—Redemption of Public Warrants for Class A Stock”;

. the continued right of our Sponsor to hold our Class A Stock and the shares of Class A Stock to be issued to our Sponsor upon exercise of
its Private Placement Warrants following the Business Combination, subject to certain lock-up periods;

. the fact that if the Trust Account is liquidated, including in the event we are unable to complete an initial business combination within the
required time period, our Sponsor has agreed to indemnify us to ensure that the proceeds in the Trust Account are not reduced below
$10.00 per public share, or such lesser per public share amount as is in the Trust Account on the liquidation date, by the claims of
prospective target businesses with which we have entered into an acquisition agreement or claims of any third party (other than our
independent public accountants) for services rendered or products sold to us, but only if such a vendor or target business has not executed
a waiver of any and all rights to seek access to the Trust Account;

. the continued indemnification of our existing directors and officers and the continuation of our directors’ and officers’ liability insurance
after the Business Combination;

. the fact that our Sponsor, officers and directors will lose their entire investment in us and will not be reimbursed for any out-of-pocket
expenses if an initial business combination is not consummated by March 1, 2023;

. the fact that our Sponsor made available to the Company a loan of up to $4,000,000 pursuant to a promissory note, of which $1,350,000
was advanced by our Sponsor to the Company as of December 31, 2021, and that the note will mature on the earlier of February 11, 2023
and the date on which the Company consummates an initial business combination (and as such, such loan is expected to be repaid in
connection with the closing of the Business Combination);
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. the fact that our Sponsor, officers and directors would hold the following number of shares in the Post-Combination Company at the

closing of the Business Combination:

Number of shares of

Name of Person/Entity Common Stock
Gores Sponsor VIII LLC® 16,548,350
Alec Gores® 16,548,350
Mark Stone —
Andrew McBride —
Randall Bort 25,000
Jeffrey Rea 25,000
William Patton 25,000

1) Assumes a value of $10.00 per share, the deemed value of the Common Stock in the Business Combination.

2) Represents shares held by the Sponsor which is controlled indirectly by Mr. Gores. Mr. Gores may be deemed to beneficially own 7,048,350 shares of Class F Stock and 9,500,000
shares of Class A Stock to be purchased under the Sponsor Subscription Agreement, provided, however, that the Sponsor may choose to assign its commitment to acquire such shares
pursuant to the Sponsor Subscription Agreement. Voting and disposition decisions with respect to such securities are made by Mr. Gores. Mr. Gores disclaims beneficial ownership of

these securities except to the extent of any pecuniary interest therein.

. the fact that, at the closing of the Business Combination, we will enter into a registration rights agreement (the “Registration Rights
Agreement”) with the Company, Sponsor, Mr. Randall Bort, Mr. Jeffrey Rea, Mr. William Patton and certain Footprint Stockholders (the
“Registration Rights Holders”), which provides for registration rights to Registration Rights Holders and their permitted transferees;

. the fact that our Initial Stockholders have agreed to vote any shares of Common Stock owned by them in favor of the Business

Combination Proposal;

. the fact that we entered into the Subscription Agreements with our Sponsor and certain investors, pursuant to which our Sponsor and the
investors have committed to purchase an aggregate of 31,055,000 shares of Class A Stock in a private placement for $10.00 per share on
the date of Closing, and our Sponsor has the right to assign its commitment to acquire such Class A Stock in advance of the closing of the

Business Combination; and

. the fact that we will reimburse our Sponsor for the fees and expenses it incurs in connection with the Business Combination.

In the aggregate, the Sponsor and its affiliates have approximately $94,400,000 at risk that depends upon the completion of a business
combination. Specifically, approximately $85,500,000 of such amount is the value of the Sponsor’s and its affiliates’ Class F Stock (assuming a value of
$10.00 per share, the deemed value of the Common Stock in the Business Combination), and approximately $8,900,000 of such amount is the value of
the Sponsor’s Private Placement Warrants (based on the purchase price of $3.00 per Private Placement Warrant). There are no fees contingent upon a
business combination payable to the Sponsor’s affiliates upon consummation of the Business Combination. The foregoing interests present a risk that
the Sponsor and its affiliates will benefit from the completion of a business combination, including in a manner that may not be aligned with Public
Stockholders. As such, the Sponsor may be incentivized to complete an acquisition of a less favorable target company or on terms less favorable to

Public Stockholders rather than liquidate.

These interests may influence our Board in making their recommendation that you vote in favor of the approval of the Business Combination.

Q: Did the Board obtain a third-party valuation or fairness opinion in determining whether or not to proceed with the Business

Combination?

A:  Yes. Although the Current Company Certificate does not require our Board to seek a third-party valuation or fairness opinion in connection with a

business combination unless the target is affiliated with our Sponsor,
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directors or officers, Moelis rendered to our Board an oral opinion, which was subsequently confirmed by delivery of a written opinion, dated
December 13, 2021, addressed to our Board that, as of the date of the opinion and subject to the assumptions, limitations, qualifications and other
matters stated in the written opinion, the merger consideration to be paid by the Company in the Business Combination was fair, from a financial
point of view, to the Company.

Please see the section titled “The Business Combination—Opinion of Moelis” and the opinion of Moelis attached hereto as Annex J for additional
information.

Q:  What happens if I vote against the Business Combination Proposal?

A:  Ifyou vote against the Business Combination Proposal but the Business Combination Proposal still obtains the affirmative vote of a majority of
the votes cast by holders of our outstanding shares of Common Stock represented in person via the virtual meeting platform or by proxy and
entitled to vote thereon at the Special Meeting, then the Business Combination Proposal will be approved and, assuming the approval of the
Nasdaq Proposal, the Charter Proposal and the Performance Plan Proposal and the satisfaction or waiver of the other conditions to closing, the
Business Combination will be consummated in accordance with the terms of the Merger Agreement.

If you vote against the Business Combination Proposal and the Business Combination Proposal does not obtain the affirmative vote of a majority
of the votes cast by holders of our outstanding shares of Common Stock represented in person via the virtual meeting platform or by proxy and
entitled to vote thereon at the Special Meeting, then the Business Combination Proposal will fail, and we will not consummate the Business
Combination. If we do not consummate the Business Combination, we may continue to try to complete an initial business combination with a
different target business until March 1, 2023. Unless we amend our Current Company Certificate (which requires the affirmative vote of 65% of
all then outstanding shares of Class A Stock) and amend certain other agreements into which we have entered to extend the life of the Company, if
we fail to complete an initial business combination by March 1, 2023, we will be required to dissolve and liquidate the Trust Account by returning
the then-remaining funds in such account to our Public Stockholders.

Q: Do I have redemption rights?

A: Ifyou are a Public Stockholder, you may redeem your Public Shares for cash at the applicable redemption price per share equal to the quotient
obtained by dividing (i) the aggregate amount on deposit in the Trust Account as of two business days prior to the consummation of the Business
Combination, including interest not previously released to us to fund Regulatory Withdrawals and/or to pay its franchise and income taxes, by
(i1) the total number of then-outstanding Public Shares; provided that we may not redeem any shares of Class A Stock issued in the Company IPO
to the extent that such redemption would result in our failure to have net tangible assets (as determined in accordance with Rule 3a51-1(g)(1) of
the Exchange Act) in excess of $5,000,000. A Public Stockholder, together with any of his, her or its affiliates or any other person with whom it is
acting in concert or as a “group” (as defined under Section 13 of the Exchange Act), will be restricted from redeeming in the aggregate his, her or
its shares or, if part of such a group, the group’s shares, in excess of 15% of the shares of Class A Stock included in the Public Units sold in the
Company IPO. Holders of our outstanding Public Warrants do not have redemption rights in connection with the Business Combination. Our
Sponsor, directors and officers have agreed to waive their redemption rights with respect to their shares of Common Stock in connection with the
consummation of the Business Combination, and the Founder Shares will be excluded from the pro rata calculation used to determine the
per-share redemption price. Our Initial Stockholders have also agreed to waive their right to a conversion price adjustment with respect to any
shares of our Common Stock they may hold in connection with the consummation of the Business Combination. For illustrative purposes, based
on the balance of our Trust Account of $345,030,739 as of December 31, 2021, the estimated per share redemption price would have
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been approximately $10.00. Additionally, shares properly tendered for redemption will only be redeemed if the Business Combination is
consummated; otherwise holders of such shares will only be entitled to a pro rata portion of the Trust Account (including interest not previously
released to the Company to fund Regulatory Withdrawals and/or to pay its franchise and income taxes) in connection with the liquidation of the
Trust Account, unless we complete an alternative initial business combination prior to March 1, 2023 or we amend our Current Company
Certificate (which requires the affirmative vote of 65% of all then outstanding shares of Class A Stock) and amend certain other agreements into
which we have entered to extend the life of the Company.

Q: Can our Initial Stockholders redeem their Founder Shares in connection with consummation of the Business Combination?

A:  No. Our Initial Stockholders, officers and other current directors have agreed to waive their redemption rights with respect to their Founder Shares
and any Public Shares they may hold in connection with the consummation of the Business Combination.

Q: Is there a limit on the number of shares I may redeem?

A:  Yes. A Public Stockholder, together with any affiliate of such stockholder or any other person with whom such stockholder is acting in concert or
as a “group” (as defined under Section 13 of the Exchange Act), is restricted from exercising redemption rights with respect to more than an
aggregate of 15% of the shares sold in the Company IPO. Accordingly, all shares in excess of 15% owned by a holder or “group” of holders will
not be redeemed for cash. On the other hand, a Public Stockholder who holds less than 15% of the Public Shares and is not a member of a “group”
may redeem all of the Public Shares held by such stockholder for cash. In addition, in no event will we redeem shares of our Class A Stock in an
amount that would result in the Company’s failure to have net tangible assets equaling or exceeding $5,000,001. Other than the foregoing, we
have no additional specified maximum redemption thresholds under our Current Company Certificate.

In no event is your ability to vote all of your shares (including those shares held by you or by a “group” in excess of 15% of the shares sold in the
Company IPO) for or against the Business Combination restricted.

Each redemption of shares of Class A Stock by our Public Stockholders will reduce the amount in our Trust Account, which held cash and
investment securities with a fair value of $345,030,739 as of December 31, 2021.

Q: Is there a limit on the total number of Public Shares that may be redeemed?

A:  Yes. The Current Company Certificate provides that we may not redeem our Public Shares in an amount that would result in our failure to have
net tangible assets in excess of $5,000,000 (such that we are not subject to the SEC’s “penny stock™ rules) or any greater net tangible asset or cash
requirement which may be contained in the Merger Agreement. Based on a value of $10.00 per share, up to 34,000,033 Public Shares may be
redeemed under the Current Company Certificate. We refer to this as the charter redemption limitation scenario.

Q:  Are there other redemption thresholds that affect the Business Combination?

A:  Yes. The Merger Agreement also provides that the obligation of Footprint to consummate the Business Combination is conditioned on the total of
(i) the amount in the Trust Account, after giving effect to redemptions of Public Shares, (ii) the proceeds from the PIPE Investment plus
$150,000,000, which represents the gross proceeds from the Footprint Class C Financing and (iii) all funds held by us outside of the Trust
Account and immediately available to us, equaling or exceeding $550,000,000. As a result, we may be able to complete our proposed Business
Combination even though a substantial portion of our
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Public Stockholders do not agree with the Business Combination and have redeemed their shares or have entered into privately negotiated
agreements to sell their shares to our Sponsor, directors or officers or their affiliates. As of the date of this proxy statement/prospectus, no
agreements with respect to the private purchase of Public Shares by us or the persons described above have been entered into with any such
investor or holder. We will file a Current Report on Form 8-K with the SEC to disclose private arrangements, if any, entered into or significant
private purchases made by any of the aforementioned persons that would affect the vote on the Business Combination Proposal or other proposals
(as described in this proxy statement/prospectus) at the Special Meeting. Based on the amount of $345,030,739 in our Trust Account as of
December 31, 2021, approximately 25,555,607 shares of Class A Stock may be redeemed and still enable us to have sufficient cash to satisfy the
cash closing conditions in the Merger Agreement. We refer to this as the contractual maximum redemption scenario.

Q:  Will how I vote affect my ability to exercise redemption rights?

A:  No. You may exercise your redemption rights whether you vote your Public Shares for or against, or whether you abstain from voting on, the
Business Combination Proposal, the Nasdaq Proposal, the Charter Proposal, the Governance Proposals or any other proposal described by this
proxy statement/prospectus. As a result, the Merger Agreement can be approved by stockholders who will redeem their shares and no longer
remain stockholders, leaving stockholders who choose not to redeem their shares holding shares in a company with a potentially less-liquid
trading market, fewer stockholders, potentially less cash and the potential inability to meet the listing standards of Nasdagq.

Q: How do I exercise my redemption rights?

A:  In order to exercise your redemption rights, you must (i) if you hold Public Units, separate the underlying Public Shares and Public Warrants, and
(ii) prior to 5:00 P.M., Eastern Time on [®], 2022 (two business days before the Special Meeting), tender your shares physically or electronically
and submit a request in writing that the Company redeem your Public Shares for cash to Computershare Trust Company, N.A., the Transfer Agent,
at www.[ ] or to the following address:

Computershare Trust Company, N.A.
Attn: Corporate Actions Voluntary Offer
150 Royall Street, Suite V
Canton, MA 02021

A holder of the Public Shares, together with any affiliate of his or any other person with whom he is acting in concert or as a “group” (as defined
in Section 13d-3 of the Exchange Act) will be restricted from seeking redemption rights with respect to more than 15% of the Public Shares
included in the Public Units sold in the Company IPO. Accordingly, all Public Shares in excess of the aforementioned 15% threshold beneficially
owned by a Public Stockholder or group will not be redeemed for cash. Additionally, you must identify to the Company the beneficial holder of
the Public Shares being redeemed in order to validly redeem Public Shares.

Company stockholders seeking to exercise their redemption rights and opting to deliver physical certificates should allot sufficient time to obtain
physical certificates from the Transfer Agent and time to effect delivery. It is our understanding that Company stockholders should generally allot
at least two weeks to obtain physical certificates from the Transfer Agent. However, we do not have any control over this process and it may take
longer than two weeks. Company stockholders who hold their shares in “street name” will have to coordinate with their bank, broker or other
nominee to have the shares certificated or delivered electronically.

Company stockholders seeking to exercise their redemption rights, whether they are record holders or hold their shares in “street name” are
required to either tender their certificates to the Transfer Agent prior to the date set forth in this proxy statement/prospectus, or up to two business
days prior to the vote on the proposal
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to approve the Business Combination at the Special Meeting, or to deliver their shares to the Transfer Agent electronically using Depository Trust
Company’s (DTC) Automated Tender Offer Program (ATOP) system, at such stockholder’s option. The requirement for physical or electronic
delivery prior to the Special Meeting ensures that a redeeming stockholder’s election to redeem is irrevocable once the Business

Combination is approved.

Q: What are the U.S. federal income tax consequences of exercising my redemption rights?

A:  The U.S. federal income tax consequences of the redemption depends on particular facts and circumstances. Please see the section titled “Material
U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations for Holders of Class A Stock” for additional information. You are urged to consult your tax advisors
regarding the tax consequences of exercising your redemption rights.

Q: IfI am a Public Warrant holder, can I exercise redemption rights with respect to my Public Warrants?

A:  No. The holders of Public Warrants have no redemption rights with respect to such Public Warrants. However, if a holder of Public Warrants
elects to exercise its redemption rights with respect to any Public Shares held by such holder, such exercise of redemption rights will not affect the
holder’s entitlement to exercise its Public Warrants to purchase Class A Stock in accordance with the procedures set forth herein. Please see the
section titled “Description of Securities—Warrants—Public Warrants” for more information regarding the procedure to be followed by holders of
Public Warrants that wish to exercise their Public Warrants and purchase shares of Class A Stock.

Q: Do I have appraisal rights or dissenters’ rights if I object to the proposed Business Combination?

A:  No. Appraisal rights or dissenters’ rights are not available to holders of shares of Common Stock in connection with the Business Combination.

Q:  What happens to the funds held in the Trust Account upon consummation of the Business Combination?

A:  If the Business Combination is consummated, the funds held in the Trust Account (together with the proceeds from the PIPE Investment plus
$150,000,000, which represents the gross proceeds from the Footprint Class C Financing) will be used to: (i) pay our Public Stockholders who
properly exercise their redemption rights; (ii) pay $12,075,000 in deferred underwriting commissions to the underwriters of the Company IPO, in
connection with the Business Combination; and (iii) pay certain other fees, costs and expenses (including regulatory fees, legal fees, accounting
fees, printer fees and other professional fees) that were incurred by the Company and other parties to the Merger Agreement in connection with
the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement, including the Business Combination, and pursuant to the terms of the Merger
Agreement. Any remaining funds will be used by the Company for general corporate purposes.

Q: What conditions must be satisfied to complete the Business Combination?

A:  There are a number of closing conditions in the Merger Agreement, including the termination or expiration of the applicable waiting period under
the HSR Act (which has occurred), the adoption by the Footprint
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Stockholders of the Merger Agreement and the approval of the transactions contemplated thereby (which has been received) and the approval by
Company stockholders of the Business Combination Proposal, the Nasdaq Proposal, the Charter Proposal and the Performance Plan Proposal. For
a summary of the conditions that must be satisfied or waived prior to completion of the Business Combination, please see the section titled “7The
Merger Agreement and Related Agreements.”

Q:  What happens if the Business Combination is not consummated?

A:  There are certain circumstances under which the Merger Agreement may be terminated. Please see the section titled “7The Merger Agreement and
Related Agreements” for information regarding the parties’ specific termination rights.

If we do not consummate the Business Combination, we may continue to try to complete an initial business combination with a different target
business until March 1, 2023. Unless we amend the Current Company Certificate (which requires the affirmative vote of 65% of all then
outstanding shares of Class A Stock) and amend certain other agreements into which we have entered to extend the life of the Company, if we fail
to complete an initial business combination by March 1, 2023, we will: (i) cease all operations except for the purpose of winding up; (ii) as
promptly as reasonably possible but not more than ten business days thereafter, redeem our Public Shares, at a per-share price, payable in cash,
equal to the aggregate amount then on deposit in the Trust Account, including interest not previously released to us to fund Regulatory
Withdrawals and/or to pay its franchise and income taxes (less up to $100,000 of interest to pay dissolution expenses), divided by the number of
then outstanding Public Shares, which redemption will completely extinguish our Public Stockholders’ rights as stockholders (including the right
to receive further liquidating distributions, if any), subject to applicable law; and (iii) as promptly as reasonably possible following such
redemption, subject to the approval of our remaining stockholders and our Board, dissolve and liquidate, subject in each case to our obligations
under Delaware law to provide for claims of creditors and the requirements of other applicable law. In the event of such distribution, it is possible
that the per share value of the residual assets remaining available for distribution (including Trust Account assets) will be less than the initial
public offering price per unit in the Company IPO. Please see the section titled “Risk Factors—Risks Related to the Company and the Business
Combination.”

Holders of our Founder Shares have waived any right to any liquidation distribution with respect to such shares. In addition, if we fail to complete
an initial business combination by March 1, 2023, there will be no redemption rights or liquidating distributions with respect to our outstanding
warrants, which will expire worthless unless we amend our Current Company Certificate and amend certain other agreements into which we have
entered to extend the life of the Company.

Q:  When is the Business Combination expected to be completed?

A:  The closing of the Business Combination is expected to take place on or prior to the third business day following the satisfaction or waiver of the
conditions described below in the subsection titled “The Merger Agreement and Related Agreements—The Merger Agreement—Conditions to
Closing of the Business Combination.” Following the Closing of the Business Combination, Footprint will merge with and into First Merger Sub,
with Footprint surviving the First Merger as the Surviving Corporation. Following the First Merger, the Surviving Corporation will merge with
and into Second Merger Sub, with Second Merger Sub continuing as the Surviving Entity. The Mergers will become effective at the time and on
the date specified in the certificate of mergers in accordance with the DGCL and the Delaware Limited Liability Company Act, as applicable. The
consummation of the Business Combination is expected to occur in the first half of 2022.

For a description of the conditions to the consummation of the Business Combination, see the section titled “7he Merger Agreement and Related
Agreements—The Merger Agreement—Conditions to Closing of the Business Combination.”
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Q: Is the approval of the Footprint Stockholders required to consummate the Business Transaction?

A:  Yes, but such approval has already been obtained. In order to consummate the Business Combination, Footprint Stockholders representing a
majority of the outstanding shares of Footprint Common Stock (the “Consenting Footprint Stockholders) were required to adopt the Merger
Agreement (the “Footprint Requisite Approval”). The Footprint Requisite Approval is the only vote of Footprint Stockholders required to approve
and adopt the Business Combination.

Shortly following the execution of the Merger Agreement, the Consenting Footprint Stockholders delivered a written consent on December 13,
2021 containing the Footprint Requisite Approval. The delivery of the written consent by the Consenting Footprint Stockholders was sufficient to
adopt the Merger Agreement and no other vote from any other holder of Footprint Stock is required.

Q: Whatdo I need to do now?

A:  You are urged to read carefully and consider the information contained in this proxy statement/prospectus, including the Annexes, and to consider
how the Business Combination will affect you as a stockholder. You should then vote as soon as possible in accordance with the instructions
provided in this proxy statement/prospectus and on the enclosed proxy card or, if you hold your shares through a brokerage firm, bank or other
nominee, on the voting instruction form provided by the broker, bank or nominee.

Q: Howdol vote?

A:  Ifyou were a holder of record of shares of our Common Stock on [e], 2022, the record date for the Special Meeting, you may vote with respect to
the proposals in person via the virtual meeting platform at the Special Meeting, or by completing, signing, dating and returning the enclosed proxy
card in the postage-paid envelope provided.

Voting by Mail. By signing the proxy card and returning it in the enclosed prepaid and addressed envelope, you are authorizing the
individuals named on the proxy card to vote your shares at the Special Meeting in the manner you indicate. You are encouraged to sign and return
the proxy card even if you plan to attend the Special Meeting so that your shares will be voted if you are unable to attend the Special Meeting. If
you receive more than one proxy card, it is an indication that your shares are held in multiple accounts. Please sign and return all proxy cards to
ensure that all of your shares are voted. Votes submitted by mail must be received by [e] on [e], 2022.

Voting at the Special Meeting via the Virtual Meeting Platform. If you attend the Special Meeting and plan to vote in person via the virtual
meeting platform, you will be provided with explicit instructions on how to vote in person via the virtual meeting platform. If your shares are
registered directly in your name, you are considered the stockholder of record and you have the right to vote in person via the virtual meeting
platform at the Special Meeting. If you hold your shares in “street name,” which means your shares are held of record by a broker, bank or other
nominee, you should follow the instructions provided by your broker, bank or nominee to ensure that votes related to the shares you beneficially
own are properly counted. In this regard, you must provide the record holder of your shares with instructions on how to vote your shares or, if you
wish to attend the Special Meeting and vote in person via the virtual meeting platform, you will need to contact your broker, bank or nominee to
obtain a legal proxy that will authorize you to vote these shares. For additional information, please see the section titled “Special Meeting of the
Stockholders of the Company in lieu of the 2022 Annual Meeting of the Company.”

Q:  What will happen if I abstain from voting or fail to vote at the Special Meeting?

A: At the Special Meeting, we will count a properly executed proxy marked “ABSTAIN” with respect to a particular proposal as present for purposes
of determining whether a quorum is present. For purposes of approval, a failure to vote or an abstention will have no effect on the Business
Combination Proposal, the
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Nasdaq Proposal, the Governance Proposals, the Incentive Plan Proposal, the Performance Plan Proposal, the Director Election Proposal or the
Adjournment Proposal; a failure to vote or abstention will have the same effect as a vote “AGAINST” the Charter Proposal.

‘What will happen if I sign and return my proxy card without indicating how I wish to vote?

Signed and dated proxies we receive without an indication of how the stockholder intends to vote on a proposal will be voted “FOR” each
proposal presented to the stockholders. The proxyholders may use their discretion to vote on any other matters that properly come before the
Special Meeting.

If I am not going to attend the Special Meeting via the virtual meeting platform, should I return my proxy card instead?

If you are considered a stockholder of record, please read the enclosed proxy statement/prospectus carefully whether you plan to attend the
Special Meeting or not, and vote your shares by completing, signing, dating and returning the enclosed proxy card in the postage-paid envelope
provided. However, if you hold your shares in “street name,” which means your shares are held of record by a broker, bank or other nominee, you
must provide instructions with your proxy, broker, bank or other nominee. Please see “—If my Shares are held in “street name,” will my broker,
bank or nominee automatically vote my shares for me?” for more information regarding how to vote your shares.

If my shares are held in “street name,” will my broker, bank or nominee automatically vote my shares for me?

No. Under the rules of various national and regional securities exchanges, your broker, bank, or nominee cannot vote your shares with respect to
non-discretionary matters unless you provide instructions on how to vote in accordance with the information and procedures provided to you by
your broker, bank, or nominee. We believe that all of the proposals presented to the stockholders at this Special Meeting will be considered
non-discretionary and, therefore, your broker, bank, or nominee cannot vote your shares without your instruction on any of the proposals
presented at the Special Meeting. If you do not provide instructions with your proxy, your broker, bank, or other nominee may deliver a proxy
card expressly indicating that it is NOT voting your shares; this indication that a broker, bank, or nominee is not voting your shares is referred to
as a “broker non-vote.” Broker non-votes will not be counted for the purposes of determining the existence of a quorum or for purposes of
determining the number of votes cast at the Special Meeting. Your bank, broker, or other nominee can vote your shares only if you provide
instructions on how to vote. You should instruct your broker to vote your shares in accordance with directions you provide.

How will a broker non-vote impact the results of each proposal?

Broker non-votes will count as a vote “AGAINST” the Charter Proposal but will not have any effect on the outcome of any other proposals.

May I change my vote after I have mailed my signed proxy card?

Yes. You may change your vote by sending a later-dated, signed proxy card to our Secretary at the address listed below so that it is received by our
Secretary prior to the Special Meeting or attend the Special Meeting in person via the virtual meeting platform and vote. You also may revoke
your proxy by sending a notice of revocation to our Secretary, which must be received by our Secretary prior to the Special Meeting. However, if
you hold your shares in “street name,” which means your shares are held of record by a broker, bank or other nominee, and you have instructed
such broker, bank or other nominee to vote your shares, you must contact your broker, bank or other nominee to change your vote.
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Q: What should I do if I receive more than one set of voting materials?

A:  You may receive more than one set of voting materials, including multiple copies of this proxy statement/prospectus and multiple proxy cards or
voting instruction cards. For example, if you hold your shares in more than one brokerage account, you will receive a separate voting instruction
card for each brokerage account in which you hold shares. If you are a holder of record and your shares are registered in more than one name, you
will receive more than one proxy card. Please complete, sign, date and return each proxy card and voting instruction card that you receive in order
to cast your vote with respect to all of your shares.

Q:  Who will solicit and pay the cost of soliciting proxies for the Special Meeting?

A:  We will pay the cost of soliciting proxies for the Special Meeting. We have engaged Morrow Sodali LLC (“Morrow”) to assist in the solicitation
of proxies for the Special Meeting. We have agreed to pay Morrow a fee of $37,500, plus disbursements, and will reimburse Morrow for its
reasonable out-of-pocket expenses and indemnify Morrow and its affiliates against certain claims, liabilities, losses, damages and expenses. We
will also reimburse banks, brokers and other custodians, nominees and fiduciaries representing beneficial owners of shares of our Common Stock
for their expenses in forwarding soliciting materials to beneficial owners of shares of our Common Stock and in obtaining voting instructions from
those owners. Our directors, officers and employees may also solicit proxies by telephone, by facsimile, by mail, on the Internet or in person.
They will not be paid any additional amounts for soliciting proxies.

Q:  Who can help answer my questions?

A:  If you have questions about the proposals or if you need additional copies of this proxy statement/prospectus or the enclosed proxy card you
should contact:

Gores Holdings VIII, Inc.
6260 Lookout Road, Boulder
Colorado 80301
(303) 531-3100
Email: jchou@gores.com

You may also contact the proxy solicitor for the Company at:

Morrow Sodali LLC
333 Ludlow Street, 5th Floor, South Tower
Stamford, Connecticut 06902
Individuals, please call toll-free: (800) 662-5200
Banks and brokerage, please call: (203) 658-9400
Email: GIIX.info@investor.morrowsodali.com

To obtain timely delivery, Company stockholders must request the materials no later than [e], 2022, or five business days prior to the Special
Meeting.

You may also obtain additional information about the Company from documents filed with the SEC by following the instructions in the section
titled “Where You Can Find More Information.”

If you intend to seek redemption of your Public Shares, you will need to notify the Transfer Agent and deliver your Public Shares (either
physically or electronically) to the Transfer Agent prior to the Special Meeting in accordance with the procedures detailed under the question
“How do I exercise my redemption rights?” If you have questions regarding the certification of your position or delivery of your Public Shares,
please contact the Transfer Agent:

Computershare Trust Company, N.A.
Attn: Corporate Actions Voluntary Offer
150 Royall Street, Suite V
Canton, MA 02021
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SUMMARY

This summary highlights selected information contained in this proxy statement/prospectus and does not contain all of the information that is
important to you. You should read carefully this entire proxy statement/prospectus, including the Annexes and accompanying financial statements
of the Company and Footprint, to fully understand the proposed Business Combination (as described below) before voting on the proposals to be
considered at the Special Meeting (as described below). Please see the section titled “Where You Can Find More Information” beginning on
page 376 of this proxy statement/prospectus.

Unless otherwise specified, all share calculations assume (i) no exercise of redemption rights by the Public Stockholders; (ii) no inclusion of
any Public Shares issuable upon the exercise of the Company Warrants, and (iii) no issuance of Earn Out Shares.

Company
The Company is a blank check company incorporated on September 14, 2020 as a Delaware corporation and formed for the purpose of

effecting an initial business combination with one or more target businesses.

The Public Shares, Public Units and Public Warrants are traded on Nasdaq under the ticker symbols “GIIX,” “GIIXU” and “GIIXW,”
respectively. The Company intends to apply to continue the listing of its Class A Stock and Public Warrants on Nasdaq under the symbols “FOOT”
and “FOOTW,” respectively, upon the closing of the Business Combination. Additionally, in connection with the closing of the Business
Combination, the name of the Company will be changed to Footprint International, Inc.

The mailing address of the Company’s principal executive office is 6260 Lookout Road, Boulder, Colorado 80301.

First Merger Sub

First Merger Sub, a Delaware corporation, is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Second Merger Sub, formed by the Company on December 10,
2021, to consummate the Business Combination. In the Business Combination, First Merger Sub will merge with and into Footprint, with Footprint
continuing as the Surviving Corporation.

The mailing address of First Merger Sub’s principal executive office is 6260 Lookout Road, Boulder, Colorado 80301.

Second Merger Sub

Second Merger Sub, a Delaware limited liability company, is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, formed by the Company on
December 10, 2021, to consummate the Business Combination. In the Business Combination, the Surviving Corporation will merge with and into
Second Merger Sub, with Second Merger Sub continuing as the Surviving Entity.

The mailing address of Second Merger Sub’s principal executive office is 6260 Lookout Road, Boulder, Colorado 80301.

Footprint

Footprint is an award-winning materials science technology company specializing in the engineering, design, development, and production of
sustainable materials solutions. Footprint has developed innovative

35

Copyright © 2022 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document


https://www.secdatabase.com

Table of Contents

plant-based fiber products that it believes compete with comparable traditional plastic products on performance and provide the extended shelf life
necessary for many supermarket and other food products, as evidenced by our customers who have made the switch from traditional plastic
products to our solutions. Footprint’s competitively priced products include shelf-stable cups, bowls, plates, meat and produce trays, clamshells,
cutlery and direct-to-consumer products like environmentally friendly coolers. Footprint’s customers include prominent companies in the dairy,
shelf-stable cups, meat trays, quick service restaurants, frozen food, produce and consumer packaged goods categories, including Conagra, Tyson,
Procter & Gamble, General Mills, Taylor Farms, and Upfield.

The mailing address of Footprint’s principal executive office is 250 E. Germann Rd, Gilbert, Arizona 85297.

The Business Combination
General

On December 13, 2021, the Company entered into the Merger Agreement with First Merger Sub, Second Merger Sub and Footprint. Pursuant
to the Merger Agreement and in connection therewith, among other things and subject to the terms and conditions contained therein:

. First Merger Sub will merge with and into Footprint, with Footprint continuing as the Surviving Corporation of the First Merger;

. immediately following the First Merger and as part of the same overall transaction as the First Merger, the Surviving Corporation will
merge with and into Second Merger Sub, with Second Merger Sub continuing as the Surviving Entity of the Second Merger;

. prior to the consummation of the Business Combination, and assuming adoption by the Company’s stockholders of the Charter
Proposal, we will adopt the proposed Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation;

. in connection with the Business Combination, the Footprint equityholders will collectively receive in exchange for their shares of, or
equity awards exercisable for, Footprint Stock, 161,776,650 shares of Class A Stock. Holders of shares of Footprint Common Stock
and Footprint Preferred Stock will be entitled to receive a number of shares of newly-issued Class A Stock equal to the Per Share
Footprint Common Stock Consideration for each such share of Footprint Common Stock and applicable Per Share Footprint Preferred
Stock Consideration for each such share of Footprint Preferred Stock, as applicable. The foregoing consideration to be paid to the
Footprint Securityholders may be further increased by their pro rata share of an additional number of Earn Out Shares allocable to the
Footprint Securityholders from the Post-Combination Company, up to an aggregate number of shares of Class A Stock equal to the
Securityholder Allocable Amount collectively issuable to all Footprint Securityholders; and

. at the closing of the Business Combination, the Registration Rights Holders will enter into the Registration Rights Agreement,
pursuant to which holders will be entitled to certain rights with respect to (a) any (i) outstanding share of Class A Stock or any Private
Placement Warrants, (ii) shares of Class A Stock issued or issuable upon the conversion of the Class F Stock and upon exercise of the
Private Placement Warrants, and (iii) shares of Class A Stock issued as Earn Out Shares or issuable upon the conversion of any Earn
Out Shares, in each case, held by the Footprint Stockholders, and (b) any other equity security of the Company issued or issuable with
respect to any such share of Class A Stock by way of a stock dividend or stock split or in connection with a combination of shares,
recapitalization, merger, consolidation or other reorganization or otherwise, in each case held by such Registration Rights Holder.
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In connection with the foregoing, the Initial Stockholders have also agreed to waive their right to a conversion price adjustment with respect
to any shares of Common Stock they may hold in connection with the consummation of the Business Combination as set forth in the Current
Company Certificate.

Organizational Structure

The following diagram shows the current ownership structure of the Company, First Merger Sub and Second Merger Sub:

Initial \‘-I I'/ Public \
\ Stockholders™ Stockholders ;
N RN /

- - i

’_-‘ue\ ,f/a-:w;:-

Gores Holdings VL Inc..
a Delaware corporation

1005

Fromtier Merger Sub 11

LLC

ale » lirmited
lighility company

llim‘k&

Frontier Merger Sub, Inc.
a Delaware corporation

Q)

For more information about the ownership interests of the Initial Stockholders, including the Sponsor, prior to the Business Combination, please see the section titled “Beneficial
Ownership of Securities.”
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The following diagram shows the current ownership structure of Footprint:
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The following diagram illustrates the ownership percentages and structure of the Post-Combination Company:
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1) For more information about the ownership interests of our Initial Stockholders, including our Sponsor, following the Business Combination, please see the section titled
“Beneficial Ownership of Securities.”

2) Includes 9,500,000 shares of Class A Stock to be purchased by Sponsor in the PIPE Investment.

3) Excludes 9,500,000 shares of Class A Stock to be purchased by Sponsor in the PIPE Investment.

“4) The ownership interests of the Footprint Stockholders (i) include shares of Class A Stock underlying the Rollover Options, assuming an Option Exchange Ratio equal to the Per
Share Footprint Common Stock Consideration and excluding any additional Discounted Earn Out Option Amount, which will be determined on or prior to the consummation of
the Business Combination (please see the section titled “Summary—Treatment of Footprint Equity Awards”™), and (ii) reflect the exercise of all outstanding Footprint warrants
and the conversion of all outstanding Footprint convertible notes into Class A Stock in connection with the consummation of the Business Combination.
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5) For more information about the ownership interests of the Footprint equityholders following the Business Combination, please see the section titled “Beneficial Ownership of
Securities.”

Consideration to Footprint Stockholders in the Business Combination

Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, each share of Footprint Common Stock will be converted into the right to receive the Per Share Footprint
Common Stock Consideration, calculated as a number of newly issued shares of Class A Stock equal to: (a) (i) 161,776,650 shares of Class A
Stock (deemed to have a value of $10.00 per share) minus (ii) the aggregate number of shares of Class A Stock issuable to holders of Footprint
Class B Preferred Stock minus (iii) the aggregate number of shares of Class A Stock issuable to holders of Footprint Class C Preferred Stock minus
(iv) the number of shares of Class A Stock issuable to holders of Footprint Convertible Promissory Notes pursuant to the terms thereof divided by
(b) (i) the aggregate number of shares of Footprint Common Stock issued and outstanding and issuable upon conversion (whether or not then
actually convertible) of Footprint Class A Preferred Stock issued and outstanding, in each case as of immediately prior to the Effective Time
(including, for the avoidance of doubt, after giving effect to the exercise of the Footprint Warrants in accordance with the terms of the Warrant
Exercise Agreements, but excluding, for the avoidance of doubt, any shares of Footprint Common Stock underlying the Footprint Class C Preferred
Stock, the Footprint Class B Preferred Stock, or the Footprint Convertible Promissory Notes), plus (ii) the aggregate number of shares of Footprint
Common Stock issuable upon exercise or settlement of all Footprint Stock Options (whether vested or unvested) outstanding as of immediately
prior to the Effective Time. Assuming the Business Combination closes on June 30, 2022 and capitalization of Footprint as of March 31, 2022, the
Per Share Footprint Common Stock Consideration is equal to approximately 6.39 shares of Class A Stock.

Each share of Footprint Class A Preferred Stock will be converted into the right to receive the Per Share Footprint Class A Preferred Stock
Consideration, calculated as a number of newly issued shares of Class A Stock equal to: (a) the Per Share Footprint Common Stock Consideration
multiplied by (b) the number of shares of Footprint Common Stock issuable upon conversion of such share of Footprint Class A Preferred Stock as
of immediately prior to the Effective Time and pursuant to the Footprint Certificate of Incorporation. Based on the current Class A Conversion
Rate (as defined in the Footprint Certificate of Incorporation) and assuming the Business Combination closes on June 30, 2022 and capitalization
of Footprint as of March 31, 2022, the Per Share Footprint Class A Preferred Stock Consideration is equal to approximately 5,378.32 shares of
Class A Stock.

Each share of Footprint Class B Preferred Stock will be converted into the right to receive the Per Share Footprint Class B Preferred Stock
Consideration, calculated as a number of newly issued shares of Class A Stock equal to: (a) $12,915.89 (such amount as may be adjusted pursuant
to the Footprint Certificate of Incorporation) divided by (b) $8.50. Based on the foregoing amounts and assuming the Business Combination closes
on June 30, 2022 and capitalization of Footprint as of March 31, 2022, the Per Share Footprint Class B Preferred Stock Consideration is equal to
approximately 1,277.74 shares of Class A Stock.

Each share of Footprint Class C Preferred Stock will be converted into the right to receive the Per Share Footprint Class C Preferred Stock
Consideration, calculated as a number of newly issued shares of Class A Stock equal to: (a) the Class C Liquidation Preference (as defined in the
Footprint Certificate of Incorporation) as of the closing date of the Business Combination, divided by (b) $9.09. Based on the foregoing amounts
and assuming the Business Combination closes on June 30, 2022 and capitalization of Footprint as of March 31, 2022, the Per Share Footprint
Class C Preferred Stock Consideration is equal to approximately 2,750.28 shares of Class A Stock.

In addition to the consideration to be paid at the closing of the Business Combination, Footprint Securityholders will be entitled to receive
their pro rata share of a portion of up to 17,584,125 shares of Class A
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Stock allocable to the Footprint Securityholders from the Post-Combination Company as Earn Out Shares upon the occurrence of certain triggering
events, subject to adjustment in connection with redemptions of shares of Class A Stock in connection with the Business Combination.

No fractional shares of Class A Stock will be issued. In lieu of the issuance of any such fractional shares, the Company has agreed to pay to
each Footprint Stockholder who otherwise would be entitled to receive such fractional share an amount in cash, without interest, rounded down to
the nearest cent, equal to the product of (a) the amount of the fractional share interest in a share of Class A Stock to which such Footprint
Stockholder otherwise would have been entitled multiplied by (b) $10.00.

The Per Share Footprint Common Stock Consideration or Per Share Footprint Preferred Stock Consideration, as applicable, to be issued to
the Consenting Footprint Stockholders will be issued pursuant to a private placement and not registered under the Securities Act in reliance upon
the exemption provided in Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act and/or Regulation D promulgated thereunder. The Per Share Footprint Common
Stock Consideration or Per Share Footprint Preferred Stock Consideration, as applicable, to be issued to the non-Consenting Footprint Stockholders
will be issued and registered under the Securities Act pursuant to a registration statement, of which this proxy statement/prospectus is a part.

Conditions to Closing of the Business Combination
Conditions to Each Party’s Obligations

The respective obligations of each of Footprint and the Company to complete the Business Combination are subject to the satisfaction of the
following conditions, any one or more of which may be waived (if legally permitted) in writing by all of such parties:

. the applicable waiting period(s) under the HSR Act in respect of the Business Combination shall have expired or been terminated;

. there shall not have been enacted or promulgated any governmental order, statute, rule or regulation enjoining or prohibiting the
consummation of the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement;

. the Company shall have at least $5,000,001 of net tangible assets (as determined in accordance with Rule 3a51-1(g)(1) of the
Exchange Act) remaining after the completion of the redemption offer and prior to the closing of the First Merger;

. the approval by the Company Stockholders of the Business Combination Proposal, the Nasdaq Proposal, the Charter Proposal and the
Performance Plan Proposal shall have been obtained;

. the approval by the Footprint Stockholders of the Merger Agreement and each other agreement contemplated thereby shall have been
obtained;

. the Class A Stock to be issued in connection with the Business Combination (including the Class A Stock to be issued pursuant to the
earn out) shall have been approved for listing on Nasdaq, subject only to the requirement to have a sufficient number of round lot
holders and official notice of listing; and

. this proxy statement/prospectus shall have become effective under the Securities Act and no stop order suspending the effectiveness
of this proxy statement/prospectus shall have been issued and no proceedings for that purpose shall have been initiated or threatened
by the SEC and not withdrawn.
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Conditions to Footprint's Obligations

The obligation of Footprint to consummate and effect the Mergers and the other transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement are
subject to the satisfaction, at or prior to the closing of the Business Combination, of each of the following conditions, any one or more of which
may be waived in writing by Footprint:

the representations and warranties of the Company, First Merger Sub and Second Merger Sub (other than the representations and
warranties of the Company, First Merger Sub and Second Merger Sub, with respect to corporate organization, due authorization, the
Trust Account, brokers’ fees and capitalization) shall be true and correct (without giving effect to any limitation as to “materiality,”
“material adverse effect” or any similar limitation) as of the date of the Merger Agreement and as of the closing date of the Business
Combination as though then made (except to the extent such representations and warranties expressly relate to an earlier date, and in
such case, shall be true and correct on and as of such earlier date), except, where the failure of such representations and warranties to
be so true and correct, individually and in the aggregate, has not had, and would not reasonably be expected to result in, a material
adverse effect on the Company, First Merger Sub and Second Merger Sub, taken as a whole, or a material adverse effect on the
Company’s, First Merger Sub’s and Second Merger Sub’s ability to consummate the Business Combination, and (b) the
representations and warranties of the Company, First Merger Sub and Second Merger Sub with respect to corporate organization, due
authorization, the Trust Account, brokers’ fees and capitalization, shall be true and correct (without giving effect to any limitation as
to “materiality,” “material adverse effect” or any similar limitation) in all material respects as of the date of the Merger Agreement
and as of the closing date of the Business Combination as though then made (except to the extent such representations and warranties
expressly relate to an earlier date, and in such case, shall be true and correct on and as of such earlier date);

each of the covenants of the Company to be performed or complied with as of or prior to the closing shall have been performed or
complied with in all material respects;

the receipt of a certificate signed by an executive officer of the Company certifying that the conditions in the two preceding bullets
have been satisfied;

the Current Company Certificate shall be amended and restated in the form of the Second Amended and Restated Certificate of
Incorporation; and

the Company shall have funds at closing equal to or exceeding $550,000,000, which amount is calculated as: (a) the funds contained
in the Trust Account as of the Effective Time; plus (b) all other cash and cash equivalents of the Company; plus (c) the amount
delivered to the Company at or prior to the closing in connection with the consummation of the PIPE Investment; plus (d)
$150,000,000, which represents the gross proceeds from the Footprint Class C Financing; minus (e) the aggregate amount of cash
proceeds that will be required to satisfy the redemption of any shares of Class A Stock (to the extent not already paid).

Conditions to the Company s Obligations

The obligations of the Company, First Merger Sub and Second Merger Sub to consummate and effect the Mergers and the other transactions
contemplated by the Merger Agreement are subject to the satisfaction, at or prior to the closing of the Business Combination, of each of the
following conditions, any one or more of which may be waived in writing by the Company:

certain representations and warranties of Footprint with respect to due incorporation and the representations and warranties of
Footprint with respect to due authorization, capitalization, brokers’ fees and affiliate arrangements shall be true and correct (without
giving any effect to any limitation as
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to “materiality” or “Material Adverse Effect” or any similar limitation) in all material respects as of the date of the Merger Agreement
and as of the closing date of the Business Combination as though then made (except to the extent such representations and warranties
expressly relate to an earlier date, and in such case, shall be true and correct on and as of such earlier date), (b) the representations and
warranties of Footprint with respect to the lack of a Material Adverse Effect shall be true and correct in all respects as of the date of
the Merger Agreement and as of the closing date of the Business Combination as though then made, and (¢) all other representations
and warranties of Footprint shall be true and correct (without giving any effect to any limitation as to “materiality” or “Material
Adverse Effect” or any similar limitation) as of the date of the Merger Agreement and as of the closing date of the Business
Combination as though then made (except to the extent such representations and warranties expressly relate to an earlier date, and in
such case, shall be true and correct on and as of such earlier date), except, where the failure of such representations and warranties to
be so true and correct, individually and in the aggregate, has not had, and would not reasonably be expected to result in, a Material
Adverse Effect;

. each of the covenants of Footprint to be performed or complied with as of or prior to the closing shall have been performed or
complied with in all material respects; and

. the receipt of a certificate signed by an officer of Footprint certifying that the conditions in the two bullets have been satisfied.

Related Agreements
Subscription Agreements

On December 13, 2021, the Company entered into the Subscription Agreements with certain investors, including certain individuals (each, an
“Individual Investor Subscription Agreement”), institutional investors (each, an “Institutional Investor Subscription Agreement”), Koch Preference
Subscriber (the “KSP Subscription Agreement”) and Gores Sponsor VIII LLC (the “Sponsor”) (the “Sponsor Subscription Agreement”), pursuant to
which the investors have agreed to purchase an aggregate of 31,055,000 shares of Class A Stock in a private placement for $10.00 per share (the
“PIPE Investment”).

The Class A Stock to be issued to the Subscribers pursuant to the Subscription Agreements will be issued pursuant to a private placement and
not registered under the Securities Act in reliance upon the exemption provided in Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act and/or Regulation D
promulgated thereunder.

Each Subscription Agreement will terminate with no further force and effect upon the earliest to occur of: (a) such date and time as the
Merger Agreement is terminated in accordance with its terms; (b) upon the mutual written agreement of the parties to such Subscription
Agreement; (c) if any of the conditions to closing set forth in such Subscription Agreement are not satisfied or waived on or prior to the closing
and, as a result thereof, the transactions contemplated by such Subscription Agreement are not consummated at the closing; and (d) 30 days after
the Termination Date, if the closing of the Business Combination shall not have occurred by such date other than as a result of a breach of the
Subscriber’s obligations under the Subscription Agreement. As of the date hereof, the shares of Class A Stock to be issued pursuant to the
Subscription Agreements have not been registered under the Securities Act. The Company will, within 30 days after the closing, file with the SEC
a registration statement (the “Post-Closing Registration Statement”) registering the resale of such shares of Class A Stock and will use its
commercially reasonable efforts to have such Post-Closing Registration Statement declared effective as soon as practicable after the filing thereof.

The Sponsor Subscription Agreement is substantially similar to the Individual Investor Subscription Agreements, except that the Sponsor has
the right to assign its commitment to purchase the Class A Stock under the Sponsor Subscription Agreement at any time and from time to time in
advance of the closing of the Business
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Combination to one or more persons in related or unrelated transactions. The Institutional Investor Subscription Agreement and the KSP
Subscription Agreement are each substantially similar to the Individual Investor Subscription Agreement.

The foregoing description of the Subscription Agreements does not purport to be complete and is qualified in its entirety by the terms and
conditions of the Subscription Agreements as set forth in the form attached hereto as Annex G.

Waiver and Share Surrender Agreement

On December 13, 2021, the Company entered the Waiver and Share Surrender Agreement with each holder of Class F Stock (including
Sponsor, the “Class F Holders”), pursuant to which (a) the Class F Holders agreed to waive certain of the anti-dilution rights in respect of their
Class F Stock and (b) Sponsor agreed to irrevocably surrender 1,501,650 shares of Class F Stock, in each case, in connection with, and subject to,
the closing of the Business Combination.

The foregoing summary of the Waiver and Share Surrender Agreement is not complete and is qualified in its entirety by references to the
complete text of the Waiver and Share Surrender Agreement as set forth in the form attached hereto as Annex H.

Footprint Warrant Exercise and Cancellation Agreements

On December 13, 2021, Footprint entered into Warrant Exercise and Cancellation Agreements (collectively, the “Footprint Warrant Exercise
and Cancellation Agreements”) with each holder of Footprint Warrants, consisting of (i) CA Food Fund, LLC (“CA4 Food Fund”) and (ii) Trinity
Capital, Inc. (“Trinity Capital”). Pursuant to the Footprint Warrant Exercise and Cancellation Agreements, CA Food Fund and Trinity Capital
agreed their respective Footprint Warrants would be deemed automatically exercised on a cash or net basis immediately prior to the Effective Time
and Footprint agreed to issue an aggregate of 86,413 shares of Footprint Common Stock to CA Food Fund and Trinity Capital effective
immediately prior to the First Effective Time, in each case, in connection with, and subject to, the closing of the Business Combination.

Registration Rights Agreement

At the closing of the Business Combination, the Company will enter into the Registration Rights Agreement, substantially in the form
attached as Annex F to this proxy statement/prospectus, with the Registration Rights Holders. Pursuant to the terms of the Registration Rights
Agreement, holders will be entitled to certain rights with respect to (a) any (i) outstanding share of Class A Stock or any Private Placement
Warrants, (ii) shares of Class A Stock issued or issuable upon the conversion of the Class F Stock and upon exercise of the Private Placement
Warrants, and (iii) shares of Class A Stock issued as Earn Out Shares or issuable upon the conversion of any Earn Out Shares, in each case, held by
the Footprint Stockholders, and (b) any other equity security of the Company issued or issuable with respect to any such share of Class A Stock by
way of a stock dividend or stock split or in connection with a combination of shares, recapitalization, merger, consolidation or other reorganization
or otherwise, in each case held by such Registration Rights Holder.

The Registration Rights Agreement provides that the Company will, within 30 days after the consummation of the transactions contemplated
by the Merger Agreement, file with the SEC a shelf registration statement registering the resale of the shares of Class A Stock held by the
Registration Rights Holders and will use its reasonable best efforts to have such registration statement declared effective as soon as practicable
after the filing thereof, but in no event later than 60 days following the filing deadline. In addition, the Registration Rights Holders have certain
“piggy-back” registration rights. The Company will bear the expenses incurred in connection with the filing of any registration statements filed
pursuant to the terms of the Registration Rights
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Agreement. The Company and the Registration Rights Holders agree in the Registration Rights Agreement to provide customary indemnification
in connection with any offerings of Class A Stock effected pursuant to the terms of the Registration Rights Agreement.

The Initial Stockholders entered into a letter agreement pursuant to which they agreed to restrictions on the transfer of their securities issued
in the Company’s IPO, which (i) in the case of the Class F Stock is 180 days after the completion of the Business Combination, and (ii) in the case
of the Private Placement Warrants and the respective Class A Stock underlying the Private Placement Warrants is 30 days after the completion of
the Business Combination.

The foregoing summary of the Registration Rights Agreement is not complete and is qualified in its entirety by reference to the complete text
of the Registration Rights Agreement as set forth in the form attached hereto as Annex F.

Impact of the Business Combination on the Company’s Public Float

It is anticipated that, upon consummation of the Business Combination and without giving effect to any issuance of Earn Out Shares or any
redemptions: (i) our Public Stockholders will retain an ownership interest of approximately 14.7% of the Post-Combination Company Stock;
(i1) our Initial Stockholders (including our Sponsor) will own approximately 7.1% of the Post-Combination Company Stock (including 9,500,000
shares of Class A Stock to be purchased under the Sponsor Subscription Agreement as part of the PIPE Investment, and after reflecting the
forfeiture of 1,501,650 Founder Shares pursuant to the Waiver and Share Surrender Agreement); (iii) the Subscribers (excluding 9,500,000 shares
of Class A Stock to be purchased under the Sponsor Subscription Agreement as part of the PIPE Investment) will own approximately 9.2% of the
Post-Combination Company Stock; and (iv) the Footprint Stockholders will own approximately 69.0% of the Post-Combination Company Stock.
In the event that, following the Business Combination, all Earn Out Shares are issued to Footprint Stockholders and assuming no redemptions and
that no additional shares of Post-Combination Company Stock are issued between the closing of the Business Combination and the realization of
all of the benchmark share prices in the earn out: (i) our Public Stockholders will retain an ownership interest of approximately 13.8% of the Post-
Combination Company Stock; (ii) our Initial Stockholders (including our Sponsor) will own approximately 6.6% of the Post-Combination
Company Stock (including 9,500,000 shares of Class A Stock to be purchased under the Sponsor Subscription Agreement as part of the PIPE
Investment, and after reflecting the forfeiture of 1,501,650 Founder Shares pursuant to the Waiver and Share Surrender Agreement); (iii) the
Subscribers (excluding 9,500,000 shares of Class A Stock to be purchased under the Sponsor Subscription Agreement as part of the PIPE
Investment) will own approximately 8.6% of the Post-Combination Company Stock; and (iv) the Footprint Stockholders will own approximately
71.0% of the Post-Combination Company Stock.

For more information, please see the sections titled “Summary—Impact of the Business Combination on the Company’s Public Float” and
“Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Information.”

If a Public Stockholder exercises its redemption rights, such exercise will not result in the loss of any warrants that it may hold. We cannot
predict the ultimate value of the Company Warrants following the consummation of the Business Combination, but assuming that 100% or
34,500,000 shares of Class A Stock held by our Public Stockholders were redeemed, the 4,312,500 retained outstanding Public Warrants would
have an aggregate value of $[®], based on the price per Public Warrant of $[e] on [e], 2022, the most recent practicable date prior to the date of
this proxy statement/prospectus. In addition, on [e], 2022, the most recent practicable date prior to the date of this proxy statement/prospectus, the
price per share of Class A Stock closed at $[®]. If the shares of Class A Stock are trading above the exercise price of $11.50 per warrant, the
warrants are considered to be “in the money” and are therefore more likely to be exercised by the holders thereof (when they
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become exercisable). This in turn increases the risk to non-redeeming stockholders that the warrants will be exercised, which would result in
immediate dilution to the non-redeeming stockholders.

In each of the no redemption, illustrative redemption, contractual maximum redemption and charter redemption limitation scenarios as
described below, the residual equity value owned by non-redeeming stockholders, taking into account the respective redemption amounts, is
assumed to remain the deemed value of $10.00 per share as illustrated in the sensitivity table below. As a result of such redemption amounts and
the assumed $10.00 per share value, the implied total equity value of the Company following the Business Combination (including the PIPE
Investment), assuming no dilution from any Additional Dilution Sources, would be (a) $2,345 million in the no redemption scenario, (b)
$2,217 million in the illustrative redemption scenario, (¢) $2,089 million in the contractual maximum redemption scenario and (d) $2,005 million
in the charter redemption limitation scenario. Additionally, the sensitivity table below sets forth (x) the potential additional dilutive impact of each
of the Additional Dilution Sources in each redemption scenario, as described further in Notes 9 through 14 below, and (y) the effective
underwriting fee incurred in connection with the Company IPO in each redemption scenario, as further described in Note 15 below.

Contractual Charter
No llustrative Maximum Redemption
Redemption % of Redemption % of Redemption % of Limitation % of

Holders ScenarioV) Total(16) Scenario® Total(16) Scenario®) Total(16) Scenario® Total(16)
Public Stockholders 34,500,000 14.7% 21,722,102 9.8% 8,944,204 4.3% 499,956 0.2%
Initial Stockholders (including

Sponsor)® 16,623,350 7.1% 16,623,350 7.5% 16,623,350 8.0% 16,623,350 8.3%
Subscribers (Aggregate;

excluding Sponsor)® 21,555,000 9.2% 21,555,000 9.7% 21,555,000 10.3% 21,555,,000 10.8%
Footprint Equity Holders(” 161,776,650 69.0% 161,776,650 73.0% 161,776,650 77.4% 161,776,650 80.7%

Total Shares Outstanding

Excluding Earn out Shares and

Warrants 234,455,000 100% 221,677,102 100% 208,899,204 100% 200,454,956 100%
Total Equity Value Post-

Redemptions and PIPE

Investment ($ in millions) $ 2,345 $ 2,217 $ 2,089 $ 2,005

Per Share Value $ 10.00 $ 10.00 $ 10.00 $ 10.00
Contractual Charter
No Tllustrative Maximum Redemption
Redemption % of Redemption % of Redemption % of Limitation % of

Additional Dilution Sources Scenario® Total®)(16) Scenario® Total®(16) Scenario® Total®(16) Scenario® Total®)(16)
Earn Out Shares to Footprint

Securityholders® 16,530,683 6.6% 15,629,754 6.6% 14,728,824 6.6% 14,133,447 6.6%
Company Warrants Public

Warrants(1) 4,312,500 1.8% 4,312,500 1.9% 4,312,500 2.0% 4,312,500 2.1%
Private Warrants(!D 2,966,666 1.2% 2,966,666 1.3% 2,966,666 1.4% 2,966,666 1.5%
Equity Incentive Plans Incentive

Plan(2 29,456,697 8.9% 28,178,907 8.8% 26,901,118 8.8% 26,056,693 8.8%
Performance Plan(3) 18,637,567 7.4% 17,621,812 7.4% 16,606,056 7.4% 15,934,797 7.4%
Total Additional Dilutive

Sources(4) 65,225,005 21.8% 62,030,531 21.9% 58,836,056 22.0% 56,724,994 22.1%
Deferred Discount
Effective Deferred Discount(15 12,075,000 3.5% 12,075,000 5.6% 12,075,000 13.5% 12,075,000 241.5%

1) This scenario assumes that no Class Stock is redeemed from our Public Stockholders.
(2)  This scenario assumes that approximately 12,777,898 shares of Class A Stock are redeemed from our Public Stockholders.
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This scenario assumes that approximately 25,555,796 shares of Class A Stock are redeemed from our Public Stockholders, which, based on the amount of $345,030,739 in the
Trust Account as of December 31, 2021, represents the maximum amount of redemptions that would still enable us to have sufficient cash to satisfy the cash closing conditions
in the Merger Agreement.

This scenario assumes that approximately 34,000,044 shares of Class A Stock are redeemed from our Public Stockholders, which, based on the amount of $345,030,739 in the
Trust Account as of December 31, 2021, represents the maximum amount of redemptions that would still enable us to have sufficient cash to satisfy the provision in the Current
Company Certificate that prohibits us from redeeming shares of our Class A Stock in an amount that would result in our failure to have net tangible assets exceeding $5,000,000.
This row includes 9,500,000 shares of Class A Stock to be purchased by the Sponsor in the PIPE Investment pursuant to the Sponsor Subscription Agreement.

This row reflects the aggregate of 21,555,000 shares of Class A Stock to be purchased by the Subscribers, and excludes 9,500,000 shares of Class A Stock to be purchased by
the Sponsor as part of the PIPE Investment pursuant to the Sponsor Subscription Agreement.

This row assumes (a) inclusion of the Rollover Options, assuming an Option Exchange Ratio equal to the Per Share Footprint Common Stock Consideration and excluding any
additional Discounted Earn Out Option Amount, which will be determined on or prior to the consummation of the Business Combination (please see the section titled
“Summary—Treatment of Footprint Equity Awards”) and (b) the exercise of all outstanding Footprint Warrants and the conversion of all outstanding Footprint Convertible Notes
into Class A Stock in connection with the consummation of the Business Combination. This row excludes the Earn Out Shares identified in the row titled “Earn Out Shares to
Footprint Securityholders” that may be issuable to Footprint Securityholders upon the realization of all of the benchmark share prices in the earn out.

The Percentage of Total with respect to each Additional Dilution Source set forth below, including the Total Additional Dilution Sources, includes the full amount of shares
issued with respect to the applicable Additional Dilution Source in both the numerator and denominator. For example, in the illustrative redemption scenario, the Percentage of
Total with respect to the Performance Plan would be calculated as follows: (a) 17,621,812 shares issued pursuant to the Performance Plan (for more information about the
Performance Plan, see the section titled “Proposal No. 6—The Performance Plan Proposal”); divided by (b) (i) 221,677,102 shares (the number of shares outstanding prior to
any issuance pursuant to the Performance Plan) plus (ii) 17,621,812 shares issued pursuant to the Performance Plan.

This row assumes that all Earn Out Shares potentially issuable to Footprint Securityholders (upon the realization of all of the benchmark share prices in the earn out) are issued
to Footprint Securityholders and assumes that no additional shares of Post-Combination Company Stock are issued between the closing of the Business Combination and the
realization of all of the benchmark share prices in the earn out. The Earn Out Shares in this row include only the Securityholder Allocable Amount (i.e., the Earn Out Shares
issuable to Footprint Securityholders) and do not include the Plan Allocable Amount and the calculations of the Securityholder Allocable Amount and the Plan Allocable
Amount are based on the capitalization of Footprint as of March 31, 2022. Percentages in this row represent (a) the Earn Out Shares set forth in the applicable column divided by
(b) (i) the amounts included in the row titled “Total Shares Outstanding Excluding Earn Out Shares and Warrants” plus (ii) the Earn Out Shares set forth in the applicable
column.

This row assumes exercise of all Public Warrants to purchase 4,312,500 shares of Class A Stock. Percentages in this row represent (a) the 4,312,500 shares of Class A Stock
underlying the Public Warrants divided by (b) (i) the amounts included in the row titled “Total Shares Outstanding Excluding Earn Out Shares and Warrants” plus (ii) 4,312,500
shares of Class A Stock underlying the Public Warrants.

This row assumes exercise of all Private Placement Warrants to purchase 2,966,666 shares of Class A Stock. Percentages in this row represent (a) the 2,966,666 shares of

Class A Stock underlying the Private Placement Warrants divided by (b) (i) the amounts included in the row titled “Total Shares Outstanding Excluding Earn Out Shares and
Warrants” plus (ii) 2,966,666 shares of Class A Stock underlying the Private Placement Warrants.

This row (a) assumes the issuance of all shares of Post-Combination Company Stock reserved for issuance under the Incentive Plan, which equals 29,456,697 shares of Post-
Combination Company Stock in the no redemption scenario, 28,178,907 shares of Post-Combination Company Stock in the illustrative redemption scenario, 26,901,118 shares
of Post-Combination Company Stock in the contractual maximum redemption scenario or 26,056,693 shares of Post-Combination Company Stock in the charter redemption
limitation scenario, in each case, following the consummation of the Business Combination and (b) is based on the capitalization of Footprint as of March 31, 2022. Percentages
in this row represent (a) (i) the foregoing share amounts, as applicable, minus (ii) 6,679,108 shares of Post-Combination Company Stock underlying Rollover Options (such
difference, the “Incentive Plan Dilutive Amount”) divided by (b) (i) the amounts included in the row titled “Total Shares Outstanding Excluding Earn Out Shares and Warrants”
plus (ii) the applicable Incentive Plan Dilutive Amount.

This row assumes the issuance of all shares of Post-Combination Company Stock reserved for issuance under the Performance Plan, which equals 18,637,567 shares of Post-
Combination Company Stock in the no redemption scenario, 17,621,812 shares of Post-Combination Company Stock in the illustrative redemption scenario, 16,606,056 shares
of Post-Combination Company Stock in the contractual maximum redemption scenario or 15,934,797 shares of Post-Combination Company Stock in the charter redemption
limitation scenario, in each case, following the consummation of the Business Combination. Percentages in this row represent (a) the foregoing share amounts, as applicable,
divided by (b) (i) the amounts included in the row titled “Total Shares Outstanding Excluding Earn Out Shares and Warrants” plus (ii) 18,637,567 shares of Post-Combination
Company Stock in the no redemption scenario, 17,621,812 shares of Post-Combination Company Stock in the illustrative redemption scenario, 16,606,056 shares of Post-
Combination Company Stock in the contractual maximum redemption scenario or 15,934,797 shares of Post-Combination Company Stock in the charter redemption limitation
scenario. For more information about the Performance Plan, see the section titled “Proposal No. 6—The Performance Plan Proposal.”
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This row assumes the issuance of all shares of Post-Combination Company Stock in connection with each of the Additional Dilution Sources (other than 6,679,108 shares of
Post-Combination Company Stock underlying Rollover Options under the Incentive Plan which is not dilutive as such Rollover Options are accounted for in the row titled
“Footprint Equity Holders™), as described further in Notes 8 through 13 above, which equals 65,225,005 shares of Post-Combination Company Stock in the no redemption
scenario, 62,030,531 shares of Post-Combination Company Stock in the illustrative redemption scenario, 58,836,056 shares of Post-Combination Company Stock in the
contractual maximum redemption scenario or 56,724,994 shares of Post-Combination Company Stock in the charter redemption limitation scenario, in each case, following the
consummation of the Business Combination. Percentages in this row represent (a) the foregoing share amounts, as applicable, divided by (b) (i) the amounts included in the row
titled “Total Shares Outstanding Excluding Earn Out Shares and Warrants” plus (ii) 65,225,005 shares of Post-Combination Company Stock in the no redemption scenario,
62,030,531 shares of Post-Combination Company Stock in the illustrative redemption scenario, 58,836,056 shares of Post-Combination Company Stock in the contractual
maximum redemption scenario or 56,724,994 shares of Post-Combination Company Stock in the charter redemption limitation scenario.

Reflects the Deferred Discount of $12,075,000 incurred in connection with the Company IPO. The level of redemption impacts the effective Deferred Discount incurred in
connection with the Company IPO. In the no redemption scenario, the effective Deferred Discount is based on $345,030,739 in the Trust Account. In the illustrative redemption
scenario, the effective Deferred Discount is based on $217,240,374 in the Trust Account. In the contractual maximum redemption scenario, the effective Deferred Discount is
based on $89,450,009 in the Trust Account. In the charter redemption limitation scenario, the effective Deferred Discount is based on $5,000,005 in the Trust Account.
Percentages may not sum due to rounding.

The foregoing table is provided for illustrative purposes only and there can be no assurance that the Post-Combination Company Stock will

trade at the illustrative per share values set forth therein, regardless of the levels of redemption.

Based on the assumptions regarding the Cumulative Dilution Sources, including the Additional Dilution Sources, set forth under “Risk

Factors—Risks Related to the Company and the Business Combination—Qur Public Stockholders will experience dilution as a consequence of,
among other transactions, the issuance of Class A Stock as consideration in the Business Combination. Having a minority share position may
reduce the influence that our current stockholders have on the management of the Post-Combination Company,” we estimate that:

. in the no redemption scenario, Public Stockholders’ ownership of the Company would be reduced from 80% of the Common Stock
prior to the Business Combination to (i) 14.7% of the Post-Combination Company’s Stock (and voting power) following the Business
Combination without giving effect to any dilution from the Additional Dilution Sources or (ii) 11.3% of the Post-Combination
Company’s Stock (and voting power) following the Business Combination assuming the estimated maximum dilutive effect of the
Additional Dilution Sources;

. in the illustrative redemption scenario, Public Stockholders’ ownership of the Company would be reduced from 80% of the Common
Stock prior to the Business Combination to (i) 9.8% of the Post-Combination Company’s Stock (and voting power) following the
Business Combination without giving effect to any dilution from the Additional Dilution Sources or (ii) 7.5% of the Post-
Combination Company’s Stock (and voting power) following the Business Combination assuming the estimated maximum dilutive
effect of the Additional Dilution Sources;

. in the contractual maximum redemption scenario, Public Stockholders’ ownership of the Company would be reduced from 80% of the
Common Stock prior to the Business Combination to (i) 4.3% of the Post-Combination Company’s Stock (and voting power)
following the Business Combination without giving effect to any dilution from the Additional Dilution Sources or (ii) 3.3% of the
Post-Combination Company’s Stock (and voting power) following the Business Combination assuming the estimated maximum
dilutive effect of the Additional Dilution Sources; and

. in the charter redemption limitation scenario, Public Stockholders’ ownership of the Company would be reduced from 80% of the
Common Stock prior to the Business Combination to (i) 0.2% of the Post-Combination Company’s Stock (and voting power)
following the Business Combination without giving
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effect to any dilution from the Additional Dilution Sources or (ii) 0.2% of the Post-Combination Company’s Stock (and voting power)
following the Business Combination assuming the estimated maximum dilutive effect of the Additional Dilution Sources.

Our Board’s Reasons for Approval of the Business Combination

We were formed for the purpose of effecting an initial business combination with one or more businesses. We sought to do this by utilizing
the networks and industry experience of both our Sponsor and our Board to identify and consummate an initial business combination with one or
more businesses within or outside of the U.S., although we were not limited to a particular industry or sector.

In particular, our Board considered the following positive factors, although not weighted or in any order of significance:

Competitive Market Advantage. Our Board considered that Footprint is currently the only company that offers a Bio-Based
technologies solution with the requisite barrier properties to meet the shelf life, and other performance characteristics, at the per-unit
price point necessary, to compete with, and replace, single and short-term use plastics. Our Board believes this favorably positions
Footprint to capitalize on an increasing demand from customers to reach sustainability targets with a cost neutral, revenue accretive
product.

Large and Growing Market with Significant Tailwinds. Our Board took into account that there is a large end market for Footprint’s
products and that demand is supported by corporations, government regulators and consumers increasingly demanding high-quality,
sustainable alternatives to single-use plastics, foam and other products. Our Board took into account that these are viewed as long-
term, secular industry trends.

Well-Established Customer Base. Our Board took into account that Footprint’s current customer base represents many of the largest
and most well-known global food, beverage and consumer products companies, many of which are Fortune 100 companies.
Footprint’s customers include prominent companies in multiple categories, including dairy, shelf stable cups, meat trays, quick service
restaurant (“QSR”), frozen food, produce and consumer packaged goods (“CPG”). These customers include Conagra, Tyson, Procter
& Gamble, General Mills, Taylor Farms, and Upfield.

Committed Revenue. Our Board took into account that Footprint has forecasted aggregate revenue, which is derived from “Revenue
Under Contract.” Footprint defines “Revenue Under Contract” as forecasted aggregate revenue derived from: (i) binding agreements
with minimum purchase quantities and prices, some of which are subject to Footprint meeting technical or market acceptance
requirements (“Binding Agreements”); and (ii) expected purchase orders, based on forecasts provided by the customer (“Purchase
Orders”). Our Board took into account that Revenue Under Contract exceeded its 2023 estimated revenue and that Footprint’s 2023
revenue estimate can be achieved entirely with products that are developed or in development today and represents existing customer
demand. Our Board also took into account that most of Footprint’s multi-year contracts are take or pay or include contractual
minimums.

Customer Testimonials. Our Board took into account that Footprint’s customers, many of whom review a broad selection of
sustainable packaging products from various suppliers, viewed Footprint as having a significant first mover advantage supported by
strong materials science and process innovations. Our Board also considered that customers had longstanding, positive relationships
with the Footprint management team.

Proven Leadership Team with Deep Innovation and Execution Experience. Our Board noted that Footprint has an innovative,
execution-focused management team with a proven track record and that several of the key management members successfully
developed products on a global scale while
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working together at Intel Corporation. Our Board also noted that management had developed a strong patent portfolio in materials,
process technology, design and manufacturing. Additionally, our Board believes that Footprint’s proven management team and
strategy will help enable Footprint to deliver continued strategic growth.

Opinion of Moelis. Our Board took into account the opinion of Moelis rendered to our Board at the meeting of the Board on
December 13, 2021, which was subsequently confirmed by delivery of a written opinion, dated December 13, 2021, addressed to our
Board that, as of the date of the opinion and subject to the assumptions, limitations, qualifications and other matters stated in its
written opinion, the merger consideration to be paid by us in the Business Combination was fair from a financial point of view to the
Company. For more information, see the section titled “The Business Combination—Opinion of Moelis.”

Other Alternatives. Our Board believed, after a review of other business combination opportunities reasonably available to us, that
the proposed Business Combination represents the best potential business combination for us based upon the process utilized to
evaluate and assess other potential acquisition targets. Our Board and our management also believed that such processes had not
presented a better alternative.

Due Diligence. Our Board took into account the results of its due diligence investigation of Footprint conducted by our management
team, our financial and legal advisors and third party industry experts.

Stockholder Approval. Our Board considered the fact that, in connection with the Business Combination, our stockholders have the
option to (i) remain stockholders of the Post-Combination Company, (ii) sell their shares of Class A Stock or (iii) redeem their shares
of their Class A Stock for the per share amount held in the Trust Account pursuant to the terms of the Current Company Certificate.

Negotiated Terms of the Merger Agreement. Our Board considered the terms and conditions of the Merger Agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereby, including the Business Combination.

Independent Director Role. Our Board is comprised of a majority of independent directors who are not affiliated with our Sponsor
and its affiliates, including The Gores Group. In connection with the Business Combination, our independent directors, Mr. Randall
Bort, Mr. Jeffrey Rea and Mr. William Patton, took an active role in evaluating the proposed terms of the Business Combination,
including the Merger Agreement, the Related Agreements and the amendments to the Current Company Certificate to take effect in
connection with the Business Combination, and unanimously approved, as members of our Board, the Merger Agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereby, including the Business Combination.

Our Board also considered a variety of uncertainties and risks and other potentially negative factors concerning the Business Combination,
including, but not limited to, the following:

Benefits May Not Be Achieved. The risk that the potential benefits of the Business Combination may not be fully achieved, or may
not be achieved within the expected timeframe.

Stockholder Vote. The risk that our stockholders may fail to provide the votes necessary to effect the Business Combination.

Redemption Risk. The risk that a significant number of our stockholders may elect to redeem their shares prior to the consummation
of the Business Combination pursuant to the Current Company Certificate, which may potentially make the Business Combination
more difficult to complete.

Closing Conditions. The fact that consummation of the Business Combination is conditioned on the satisfaction of certain closing
conditions that are not within our control.
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. Litigation. The possibility of litigation challenging the Business Combination or that an adverse judgment granting permanent
injunctive relief could indefinitely enjoin consummation of the Business Combination.

. Fees and Expenses. The fees and expenses associated with completing the Business Combination.

. Liquidation of the Company. The risks and costs to us if the Business Combination is not completed, including the risk of diverting
our management’s focus and resources from other initial business combination opportunities, which, if the Business Combination is
not consummated, could result in us being unable to effect an initial business combination by March 1, 2023 and force us to liquidate
and the Public Warrants to expire worthless.

. Other Risks. Various other risks associated with the Business Combination, the business of Footprint and ownership of the Post-
Combination Company’s shares described under the section titled “Risk Factors.”

In addition to considering the factors described above, our Board also considered that:

. Interests of Certain Persons. Some of our officers and directors may have interests in the Business Combination as individuals that
are in addition to, and that may be different from, the interests of our stockholders (see “The Business Combination—Interests of
Certain Persons in the Business Combination—Interests of the Company Initial Stockholders and the Company's Other Current
Officers and Directors”). Our independent directors reviewed and considered these interests during the negotiation of the Business
Combination and in evaluating and unanimously approving, as members of our Board, the Merger Agreement and the Business
Combination.

Our Board concluded that the potential benefits it expected us and our stockholders to achieve as a result of the Business Combination
outweighed the potentially negative factors associated with the Business Combination. Accordingly, our Board unanimously determined that the
Merger Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereby, including the Business Combination, were advisable, fair to, and in the best interests
of the Company and its stockholders.

Independent Director Oversight

Our Board is comprised of a majority of independent directors who are not affiliated with our Sponsor and its affiliates, including Mr. Gores
and The Gores Group. In connection with the Business Combination, our independent directors, Messrs. Randall Bort, William Patton and Jeffrey
Rea, took an active role in evaluating the proposed terms of the Business Combination, including the Merger Agreement, the Related Agreements
and the amendments to the Current Company Certificate to take effect in connection with the consummation of the Business Combination. As part
of their evaluation of the Business Combination, our independent directors were aware of the potential conflicts of interest with our Sponsor and its
affiliates, including Mr. Gores and The Gores Group, that could arise with regard to the proposed terms of the Merger Agreement and Related
Agreements. Our Board did not deem it necessary to, and did not form, a special committee of the Board to exclusively evaluate and negotiate the
proposed terms of the Business Combination, as our Board is comprised of a majority of independent and disinterested directors and did not deem
the formation of a special committee necessary or appropriate. Our independent directors reviewed and considered these interests during the
negotiation of the Business Combination and in evaluating and unanimously approving, as members of our Board, the Merger Agreement and the
transactions contemplated therein, including the Business Combination. Please see the section titled “The Business Combination—Independent
Director Oversight.”

Satisfaction of 80% Test

It is a requirement under the Current Company Certificate and Nasdaq listing requirements that the business or assets acquired in our initial
business combination have a fair market value equal to at least 80% of the
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balance of the funds in the Trust Account (excluding the deferred underwriting commissions and taxes payable on the income earned on the Trust
Account) at the time of the execution of a definitive agreement for our initial business combination. As of December 13, 2021, the date of the
execution of the Merger Agreement, the balance of the Trust Account was approximately $345,028,475 (excluding $12,075,000 of deferred
underwriting commissions and taxes payable on the income earned on the Trust Account) and 80% thereof represents approximately $276,022,780.
In reaching its conclusion that the Business Combination meets the 80% asset test, our Board reviewed the enterprise value of Footprint of
approximately $1.6 billion, which was implied based on the terms of the transaction agreed to by the parties in negotiating the Merger Agreement.
In determining whether the enterprise value described above represents the fair market value of Footprint, our Board considered all of the factors
described above in this section and the fact that the purchase price for Footprint was the result of an arm’s length negotiation. As a result, our Board
concluded that the fair market value of the business acquired was significantly in excess of 80% of the assets held in the Trust Account (excluding
the deferred underwriting commissions and taxes payable on the income earned on the Trust Account).

Special Meeting of the Stockholders of the Company in lieu of the 2022 Annual Meeting of the Company
Date, Time and Place of Special Meeting

In light of public health concerns regarding the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic, the Special Meeting will be held via live webcast at [e],
on [e], 2022, at [e]. The Special Meeting can be accessed by visiting [e], where you will be able to listen to the meeting live and vote during the
meeting. Please note that you will only be able to access the Special Meeting by means of remote communication.

Proposals
At the Special Meeting, Company stockholders will be asked to consider and vote on:

1. Business Combination Proposal—To consider and vote upon a proposal to approve the Merger Agreement, a copy of which is
attached to this proxy statement/prospectus as Annex A, and the transactions contemplated thereby, including, among other things, the
Business Combination (Proposal No. 1);

2. Nasdaq Proposal—To consider and vote upon a proposal to approve, for purposes of complying with applicable Nasdaq listing rules,
the issuance of more than 20% of the Company’s issued and outstanding shares of Common Stock in connection with the Business
Combination (Proposal No. 2);

3. Charter Proposal—To consider and act upon a proposal to adopt the proposed Second Amended and Restated Certificate of
Incorporation in the form attached hereto as Annex B (Proposal No. 3);

4. Governance Proposals—To consider and act upon, on a non-binding advisory basis, a separate proposal with respect to certain
governance provisions in the Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation in accordance with SEC requirements
(Proposal No. 4);

5. Incentive Plan Proposal—To consider and vote upon a proposal to approve the Incentive Plan, including the authorization of the
initial share reserve under the Incentive Plan (Proposal No. 5);

6. Performance Plan Proposal—To consider and vote upon a proposal to approve the Performance Plan, including the authorization of
the initial share reserve under the Performance Plan (Proposal No. 6);

7. Director Election Proposal—To consider and vote upon a proposal to elect four directors to serve on the Board until the earlier of the
consummation of the Business Combination and the 2023 annual meeting of stockholders, and until their respective successors are
duly elected and qualified (Proposal No. 7); and

8. Adjournment Proposal—To consider and vote upon a proposal to allow the chairman of the Special Meeting to adjourn the Special
Meeting to a later date or dates, if necessary, to permit further
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solicitation and vote of proxies if there are insufficient votes for, or otherwise in connection with, the approval of the Business
Combination Proposal, the Nasdaq Proposal, the Charter Proposal or the Performance Plan Proposal but no other proposal if the
Business Combination Proposal, the Nasdaq Proposal, the Charter Proposal and the Performance Plan Proposal are approved
(Proposal No. 8).

Voting Power; Record Date

Only Company stockholders of record at the close of business on [@], 2022 the record date for the Special Meeting, will be entitled to vote at
the Special Meeting. Each Company stockholder is entitled to one vote for each share of our Common Stock that such stockholder owned as of the
close of business on the record date. If a Company stockholder’s shares are held in “street name” or are in a margin or similar account, such
stockholder should contact its broker, bank or other nominee to ensure that votes related to the shares beneficially owned by such stockholder are
properly counted. On the record date, there were [®] shares of our Common Stock outstanding, of which [e] are Public Shares and [e] are Founder
Shares held by our Initial Stockholders.

Vote of our Initial Stockholders

Our Initial Stockholders have agreed to vote any shares of Common Stock owned by them in favor of the Business Combination Proposal. As
of the date hereof, our Initial Stockholders own shares equal to 20% of our issued and outstanding shares of Common Stock. As a result,
approximately 38% of our Common Stock held by Public Stockholders will need to vote in favor of the Business Combination Proposal for the
Business Combination Proposal to be approved (assuming all of the outstanding shares of Common Stock are represented in person via the virtual
meeting platform or by proxy, are entitled to vote at the Special Meeting and cast votes on the Business Combination Proposal).

Quorum and Required Vote for Proposals at the Special Meeting

A majority of the issued and outstanding shares of our Common Stock entitled to vote as of the record date at the Special Meeting must be
present, in person via the virtual meeting platform or represented by proxy, at the Special Meeting to constitute a quorum and in order to conduct
business at the Special Meeting. The approval of the Business Combination Proposal requires the affirmative vote of a majority of the votes cast by
holders of our outstanding shares of Common Stock represented in person via the virtual meeting platform or by proxy and entitled to vote at the
Special Meeting. The approval of the Nasdaq Proposal requires the affirmative vote of a majority of the votes cast by holders of our outstanding
shares of Common Stock represented in person via the virtual meeting platform or by proxy and entitled to vote at the Special Meeting. The
approval of the Charter Proposal requires (i) the affirmative vote of holders of a majority of our outstanding shares of Common Stock entitled to
vote thereon at the Special Meeting and (ii) the affirmative vote of holders of a majority of our outstanding shares of Class F Stock, voting
separately as a single class, entitled to vote thereon at the Special Meeting. The approval of the Governance Proposal requires the affirmative vote
of a majority of the votes cast by holders of our outstanding shares of Common Stock represented in person via the virtual meeting platform or by
proxy and entitled to vote thereon at the Special Meeting. Approval of the Incentive Plan Proposal and the Performance Plan Proposal requires the
affirmative vote of a majority of the votes cast by holders of our outstanding shares of Common Stock represented in person via the virtual meeting
platform or by proxy and entitled to vote at the Special Meeting. Approval of the Director Election Proposal requires the affirmative vote of a
plurality of votes cast by holders of our outstanding shares of Class F Stock, voting separately as a single class, represented in person via the virtual
meeting platform or by proxy and entitled to vote thereon at the Special Meeting. Approval of the Adjournment Proposal requires the affirmative
vote of a majority of the votes cast by holders of our outstanding shares of Common Stock represented in person via the virtual meeting platform or
by proxy and entitled to vote thereon at the Special Meeting.
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Recommendation of our Board of Directors

Our Board believes that each of the Business Combination Proposal, the Nasdaq Proposal, the Charter Proposal, the Governance
Proposals, the Incentive Plan Proposal, the Performance Plan Proposal, the Director Election Proposal and the Adjournment Proposal to be
presented at the Special Meeting is in the best interests of the Company and its stockholders and unanimously recommends that its stockholders
vote “FOR” each of the proposals.

Opinion of Moelis

At the meeting of the Board on December 13, 2021 to evaluate and approve the Merger Agreement and the transactions contemplated
thereby, Moelis rendered to the Board an oral opinion, which was subsequently confirmed by delivery of a written opinion, dated December 13,
2021, addressed to the Board that, as of the date of the opinion and subject to the assumptions, limitations, qualifications and other matters stated in
its written opinion, the merger consideration to be paid by the Company in the Business Combination was fair from a financial point of view to the
Company.

The full text of Moelis’ written opinion, dated December 13, 2021, which sets forth the assumptions made, procedures followed,
matters considered and limitations on the review undertaken in connection with the opinion, is attached as Annex J to this proxy
statement/prospectus and is incorporated herein by reference. Moelis’ opinion was provided for the use and benefit of the Board (solely in
its capacity as such and not in any other capacity) in its evaluation of the Business Combination (and, in its engagement letter, Moelis
provided its consent to the inclusion of the text of its opinion as part of this proxy statement/prospectus). Moelis’ opinion is limited solely to
the fairness, from a financial point of view to the Company, of the merger consideration to be paid by the Company in the Business
Combination and does not address the Company’s underlying business decision to effect the Business Combination or the relative merits
of the Business Combination as compared to any alternative business strategies or transactions that might be available to the Company.
Moelis’ opinion does not constitute a recommendation as to how any holder of securities should vote or act with respect to the Business
Combination or any other matter. Moelis’ opinion was approved by a Moelis fairness opinion committee.

For purposes of its analysis and opinion, Moelis assumed, with the Board’s consent, no redemptions of Class A Stock by the Company’s
Public Stockholders. The amount of redemptions by the Company’s Public Stockholders has no impact on the total enterprise value of the Post-
Combination Company (which was the basis for Moelis’ opinion) implied by the merger consideration. With the consent of the Board, Moelis did
not express any opinion on the Earn Out or any other potential future consideration, including equity interests of the Company, that may be
received by Footprint Securityholders contingent on certain market prices for shares of Class A Stock.

For more information, see the section titled “The Business Combination—Opinion of Moelis” beginning on page 157.

Interests of Certain Persons in the Business Combination
Interests of the Company Initial Stockholders and the Company’s Other Current Officers and Directors

In considering the recommendation of our Board to vote in favor of the Business Combination, Company stockholders should be aware that
aside from their interests as stockholders, our Sponsor and certain other members of our Board and officers have interests in the Business
Combination that are different from, or in addition to, those of other stockholders generally. Our Board was aware of and considered these interests,
among other matters, in evaluating and negotiating the Business Combination, and in recommending to Company
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stockholders that they approve the Business Combination. Company stockholders should take these interests into account in deciding whether to
approve the Business Combination.

These interests include, among other things, the fact that:

our Initial Stockholders have agreed not to redeem any of the Founder Shares in connection with a stockholder vote to approve a
proposed initial business combination;

our Initial Stockholders have agreed to waive their rights to conversion price adjustments with respect to any Founder Shares they
may hold in connection with the consummation of the Business Combination. Therefore, Class F Shares held by the Initial
Stockholders will convert on a one-for-one basis in connection with the consummation of the Business Combination;

our Sponsor paid an aggregate of $25,000 for 8,625,000 initial founder shares at approximately $0.003 per share, which will become
worthless if we fail to complete an initial business combination by March 1, 2023. In particular, in exchange for serving on the Board,
each of our independent directors, Messrs. Bort, Rea and Patton, received a nominal economic interest through the transfer from our
Sponsor of 25,000 Founder Shares at their original purchase price of $0.003 per share. If the Company fails to complete an initial
business combination by March 1, 2023, these Founder Shares will become worthless. As a result, our independent directors may
have a conflict of interest in determining whether a particular business is an appropriate business with which to effectuate the
Company’s initial business combination;

after giving effect to the forfeiture of up to 1,501,650 shares of Class F Stock pursuant to the Waiver and Share Surrender Agreement,
the remaining 7,123,350 Founder Shares will have a significantly higher value at the time of the Business Combination, which if
unrestricted and freely tradable would be valued at approximately $71 million (however, given the restrictions on such shares, we
believe such shares have a lesser value);

given the differential in the purchase price that our Sponsor paid for the Founder Shares as compared to the price of the Public Units
sold in the Company IPO and the substantial number of Common Stock that our Sponsor will receive upon conversion of the Founder
Shares in connection with the Business Combination, our Sponsor and its affiliates may earn a positive rate of return on their
investment even if Common Stock trades below the price initially paid for the Public Units in the Company IPO and the Public
Stockholders experience a negative rate of return following the completion of the Business Combination;

our Initial Stockholders have agreed to waive their rights to liquidating distributions from the Trust Account with respect to their
Founder Shares if we fail to complete an initial business combination by March 1, 2023;

our Sponsor paid an aggregate of approximately $8,900,000 for its 2,966,666 Private Placement Warrants to purchase shares of
Class A Stock, and that such Private Placement Warrants will expire worthless if an initial business combination is not consummated
by March 1, 2023. The Private Placement Warrants are identical to the Public Warrants sold as part of the Public Units issued in the
Company PO except that, so long as they are held by our Sponsor or its permitted transferees: (i) they will not be redeemable by us
(except as set forth under “Description of Securities—Warrants—Public Warrants—Redemption of Public Warrants for Cash” and
“—Redemption of Public Warrants for Class A Stock”); (ii) they (including the Class A Stock issuable upon exercise of these
warrants) may not, subject to certain limited exceptions, be transferred, assigned or sold by our Sponsor until 30 days after the
completion of an initial business combination; (iii) they may be exercised by the holders on a cashless basis; and (iv) they are subject
to registration rights. For additional information regarding the Private Placement Warrants and the Public Warrants, please see
“Description of Securities—Warrants—Public Warrants—Redemption of Public Warrants for Cash” and “—Redemption of Public
Warrants for Class A Stock™;
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the continued right of our Sponsor to hold our Class A Stock and the shares of Class A Stock to be issued to our Sponsor upon
exercise of its Private Placement Warrants following the Business Combination, subject to certain lock-up periods;

if the Trust Account is liquidated, including in the event we are unable to complete an initial business combination within the required
time period, our Sponsor has agreed to indemnify us to ensure that the proceeds in the Trust Account are not reduced below $10.00
per public share, or such lesser per public share amount as is in the Trust Account on the liquidation date, by the claims of prospective
target businesses with which we have entered into an acquisition agreement or claims of any third party (other than our independent
public accountants) for services rendered or products sold to us, but only if such a vendor or target business has not executed a waiver
of any and all rights to seek access to the Trust Account;

the continued indemnification of our existing directors and officers and the continuation of our directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance after the Business Combination;

our Sponsor, officers and directors will lose their entire investment in us and will not be reimbursed for any out-of-pocket expenses if
an initial business combination is not consummated by March 1, 2023;

our Sponsor, officers and directors would hold the following number of shares in the Post-Combination Company at the closing of the
Business Combination:

Number of

shares of Value of

Common Common
Name of Person/Entity Stock Stock®
Gores Sponsor VIII LLC® . . . 16,548,350 $ 165,483,500
AlecGores® . . ................... 16,548,350 $ 165,483,500
Mark Stone . ..., — —
Andrew McBride .. .................. — —
Randall Bort....................... 25,000 $ 250,000
JeffreyRea......................... 25,000 $ 250,000
William Patton . ... ................... 25,000 $ 250,000

Assumes a value of $10.00 per share, the deemed value of the Common Stock in the Business Combination.

Represents shares held by the Sponsor which is controlled indirectly by Mr. Gores. Mr. Gores may be deemed to beneficially own 7,123,350 shares of Class F Stock and
9,500,000 shares of Class A Stock to be purchased under the Sponsor Subscription Agreement, provided, however, that the Sponsor may choose to assign its commitment to
acquire such shares pursuant to the Sponsor Subscription Agreement. Voting and disposition decisions with respect to such securities are made by Mr. Gores. Mr. Gores
disclaims beneficial ownership of these securities except to the extent of any pecuniary interest therein.

at the closing of the Business Combination, we will enter into the Registration Rights Agreement with the Registration Rights
Holders, which provides for registration rights to Registration Rights Holders and their permitted transferees;

our Initial Stockholders have agreed to vote any shares of Common Stock owned by them in favor of the Business Combination
Proposal;

we entered into the Subscription Agreements with our Sponsor and certain investors, pursuant to which our Sponsor and the investors
have committed to purchase an aggregate of 31,055,000 shares of Class A Stock in a private placement for $10.00 per share on the
date of Closing, and our Sponsor has the right to assign its commitment to acquire such Class A Stock in advance of the closing of the
Business Combination; and

we will reimburse our Sponsor for the fees and expenses it incurs in connection with the Business Combination.
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In the aggregate, the Sponsor and its affiliates have approximately $94,400,000 at risk that depends upon the completion of a business
combination. Specifically, approximately $85,500,000 of such amount is the value of the Sponsor’s and its affiliates’ Class F Stock (assuming a
value of $10.00 per share, the deemed value of the Common Stock in the Business Combination), and approximately $8,900,000 of such amount is
the value of the Sponsor’s Private Placement Warrants (based on the purchase price of $3.00 per Private Placement Warrant). There are no fees
contingent upon a business combination payable to the Sponsor’s affiliates upon consummation of the Business Combination. The foregoing
interests present a risk that the Sponsor and its affiliates will benefit from the completion of a business combination, including in a manner that may
not be aligned with Public Stockholders. As such, the Sponsor may be incentivized to complete an acquisition of a less favorable target company or
on terms less favorable to Public Stockholders rather than liquidate.

These interests may influence our Board in making their recommendation that you vote in favor of the approval of the Business Combination.

Redemption Rights

Pursuant to the Current Company Certificate, holders of Public Shares may elect to have their shares redeemed for cash at the applicable
redemption price per share equal to the quotient obtained by dividing (i) the aggregate amount on deposit in the Trust Account as of two business
days prior to the consummation of the Business Combination, including interest not previously released to us to fund Regulatory Withdrawals and/
or to pay its franchise and income taxes, by (ii) the total number of then-outstanding Public Shares; provided that we will not redeem any shares of
Class A Stock issued in the Company IPO to the extent that such redemption would result in our failure to have net tangible assets (as determined
in accordance with Rule 3a51-1(g)(1) of the Exchange Act) in excess of $5,000,000. As of December 31, 2021, the estimated per share redemption
price would have been approximately $10.00. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a holder of the Public Shares, together with any affiliate of his or her
or any other person with whom he or she is acting in concert or as a “group” (as defined in Section 13(d)-(3) of the Exchange Act) will be restricted
from exercising redemption rights with respect to more than an aggregate of 20% of the shares of Class A Stock included in the units sold in the
Company IPO.

If a holder exercises its redemption rights, then such holder will be exchanging its shares of our Class A Stock for cash and will no longer
own shares of the Post-Combination Company. Such a holder will be entitled to receive cash for its Public Shares only if it properly demands
redemption and delivers its shares (either physically or electronically) to our Transfer Agent in accordance with the procedures described herein.
Please see the section titled “Special Meeting of the Stockholders of the Company in Lieu of 2022 Annual Meeting of Company
Stockholders—Redemption Rights” for the procedures to be followed if you wish to redeem your shares for cash.

Treatment of Footprint Equity Awards
Footprint Stock Options.

Effective as of the effective time of the First Merger, each Footprint Stock Option, to the extent then outstanding and unexercised, will
automatically, without any action on the part of the holder thereof, be converted into an option to acquire a number of shares of Class A Stock
determined by multiplying the number of shares Footprint Common Stock subject to the corresponding Footprint Stock Option by the Per Share
Footprint Common Stock Consideration, and then rounding the resulting number down to the nearest whole number of shares of Class A Stock, at
an adjusted exercise price per share determined by dividing the per share exercise price of the Footprint Stock Option as in effect as of immediately
prior to the effective time of the First Merger by the Per Share Footprint Common Stock Consideration, and then rounding the resulting exercise
price up to the nearest whole cent (each such converted option, a “Rollover Option”). Each Rollover Option will be subject to the same terms and
conditions as were applicable to such corresponding Footprint Stock Option as of immediately prior to the effective time of the First Merger,
including applicable vesting conditions, except to the extent such terms or conditions are rendered inoperative by the Business Combination.
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Certain Information Relating to the Company and Footprint
Company Board and Executive Officers before the Business Combination

The following individuals currently serve as directors and executive officers of the Company:

Name % Position
Alec Gores 69  Chairman

Mark Stone 58  Chief Executive Officer

Andrew McBride 41  Chief Financial Officer and Secretary
Randall Bort 57  Director

William Patton 76  Director

Jeffrey Rea 56  Director

Footprint’s Board of Directors and Executive Officers before the Business Combination

The following individuals currently serve as directors and executive officers of Footprint:

Name Age Position
Executive Officers

Troy M. Swope 49  Chief Executive Officer, Founder and Director
Yoke D. Chung 51  Chief Technology Officer, Founder and Director
Brad S. Lukow 58  Chief Financial Officer

Stephen T. Burdumy 64  Managing Director and Chief Legal Officer
Todd Landis 54 Chief People Officer

Jeff Bassett 50  Senior Vice President of Sales

Non-Employee Directors

Manu Bettegowda 49  Director

Leslie A. Brun 69  Director

Richard Daly 68  Director

Kevin Easler 56  Director

A. Stefan Kirsten 61  Director

Brian Krzanich 61  Director

Hilla Sferruzza 46  Director

Donald Thompson 59  Director

Post-Combination Company Board and Executive Officers

The following individuals are expected to serve as directors and executive officers of the Post-Combination Company upon consummation of
the Business Combination:

Name Age Position
Executive Officers T
Troy M. Swope 49  Chief Executive Officer, Founder and Director (Class [*])
Yoke D. Chung 51  Chief Technology Officer, Founder and Director (Class [*])
Brad S. Lukow 58  Chief Financial Officer
Stephen T. Burdumy 64  Managing Director and Chief Legal Officer
Todd Landis 54 Chief People Officer
Jeff Bassett 50  Senior Vice President of Sales
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Name Age Position
Non-Employee Directors T

Manu Bettegowda 49  Director (Class [®])

Leslie A. Brun 69  Director (Class [®])

Richard Daly 68  Director (Class [®])

Kevin Easler 56  Director (Class [®])

A. Stefan Kirsten 61  Director (Class [®])

Brian Krzanich 61  Director (Class [®])

Hilla Sferruzza 46  Director (Class [®])

Donald Thompson 59  Director (Class [®])

Listing of Securities

The Public Shares, Public Units and Public Warrants are traded on Nasdaq under the ticker symbols “GIIX,” “GIIXU” and “GIIXW,”
respectively. The Company intends to apply to continue the listing of its Class A Stock and Public Warrants on Nasdaq under the symbols “FOOT”
and “FOOTW,” respectively, upon the closing of the Business Combination.

Comparison of Stockholder Rights

There are certain differences in the rights of the Company stockholders and the Footprint Stockholders prior to the Business Combination and
after the Business Combination. Please see the section titled “Comparison of Stockholder Rights.”

Regulatory Approvals

Under the HSR Act and the rules that have been promulgated thereunder, certain transactions may not be consummated until the parties to
these transactions each submit a premerger notification filing (the “Notification and Report Form”) to the FTC and the Antitrust Division and the
expiration or termination of the applicable waiting period(s) following the filing of the Notification and Report Form.

The Company and Footprint filed their respective Notification and Report Forms under the HSR Act with the Antitrust Division and the FTC
on December 27, 2021. The 30-day waiting period with respect to the Business Combination expired at 11:59 p.m. Eastern Time on January 26,
2022.

At any time before or after consummation of the Business Combination, notwithstanding expiration of the waiting period under the HSR Act,
the applicable competition authorities could take such action under applicable antitrust laws as each deems necessary or desirable in the public
interest, including seeking to enjoin the consummation of the Business Combination. Private parties may also seek to take legal action under the
antitrust laws under certain circumstances. We cannot assure you that the Antitrust Division, the FTC, any state attorney general, or any other
government authority will not attempt to challenge the Business Combination on antitrust grounds, and, if such a challenge is made, we cannot
assure you as to its result. Neither the Company nor Footprint is aware of any material regulatory approvals or actions that are required for
consummation of the Business Combination other than the expiration or early termination of the waiting period under the HSR Act. It is presently
contemplated that if any such additional regulatory approvals or actions are required, those approvals or actions will be sought. There can be no
assurance, however, that any additional approvals or actions will be obtained.

Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations relating to the Exercise of Redemption Rights

As described more fully herein, a holder of Class A Stock that exercises its redemption rights to receive cash in exchange for such shares may
be treated as selling its Class A Stock resulting in the recognition of gain
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or loss. There may be certain circumstances in which the redemption may be treated as a distribution in an amount equal to the redemption
proceeds, for U.S. federal income tax purposes, depending on the amount of our Class A Stock that a holder owns or is deemed to own by
attribution (including through the ownership of warrants).

Please see the section titled “Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations for Holders of Class A Stock” for additional information. You
are urged to consult your tax advisors regarding the tax consequences of exercising your redemption rights.

Accounting Treatment of the Business Combination

The Business Combination will be accounted for as a reverse recapitalization in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
(“GAAP”) as Footprint has been determined to be the accounting acquirer, primarily due to the fact that Footprint Stockholders will continue to
control the Post-Combination Company. Under this method of accounting, while the Company is the legal acquirer, it will be treated as the
“acquired” company for financial reporting purposes. Accordingly, the Business Combination will be treated as the equivalent of Footprint issuing
stock for the net assets of the Company, accompanied by a recapitalization, which will be stated at historical cost, with no goodwill or other
intangible assets recorded. Operations prior to the Business Combination will be presented as those of Footprint in future reports of the Post-
Combination Company.

Appraisal Rights

Appraisal rights or dissenters’ rights are not available to holders of our Common Stock in connection with the Business Combination.

Proxy Solicitation

We are soliciting proxies on behalf of our Board. Proxies may be solicited by mail, via telephone or via e-mail or other electronic
correspondence. We have engaged Morrow to assist in the solicitation of proxies.

If a Company stockholder grants a proxy, such stockholder may still vote its shares in person via the virtual meeting platform if it revokes its
proxy before the Special Meeting. A Company stockholder may also change its vote by submitting a later-dated proxy, as described in the section
titled “Special Meeting of the Stockholders of the Company in Lieu of the 2022 Annual Meeting of the Company— Revoking Your Proxy.”

Risk Factor Summary

In evaluating the Business Combination and the proposals to be considered and voted on at the Special Meeting, you should carefully review
and consider the risk factors set forth under “Risk Factors.” The occurrence of one or more of the events or circumstances described in that section,
alone or in combination with other events or circumstances, may have a material adverse effect on (i) our ability and Footprint’s ability to complete
the Business Combination and (ii) the business, cash flows, financial condition and results of operations of the Post-Combination Company.

. Footprint’s limited operating history and history of net losses make it difficult to evaluate its future prospects and the risks and
challenges it may encounter.

. Footprint’s forecasts and projections of future financial results are based on a number of assumptions by its management, some or all
of which may prove to be incorrect, and actual results may differ materially and adversely from such forecasts projections.
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. Footprint relies heavily on its operations in Mexico, which are subject to many uncertainties and risks that, if realized, could have a
material adverse effect on its business, results of operations and financial condition.

. Footprint has not previously operated a manufacturing facility in Europe and it faces substantial uncertainty and risks as it seeks to
expand its operations, and its inability to build, hire effectively, and operate such facility efficiently could have a material adverse
effect on its business, results of operations and financial condition.

. Expanding its global operations will subject Footprint to additional risks, such as volatility in currency exchange rates, compliance
with additional foreign laws and regulations, and other risks and uncertainties, any of which could have a material adverse effect on
its business, results of operations and financial condition.

. Limited availability, or increases in the planned costs, of water, power, and raw materials for its facilities and manufacturing process,
including as a result of climate change, could have a material adverse effect on its business, results of operations and financial
condition.

. Footprint’s future success hinges on its ability to increase its manufacturing efficiency, including by converting, with greater efficacy,

post-industrial recycled fibers into products and increasing the use of automation in Footprint’s manufacturing.

. Footprint’s products are manufactured using equipment from a relatively small number of established suppliers that are modifying
their equipment to meet Footprint’s production specifications, and the failure of one or more of these suppliers to produce this
equipment in a timely fashion, or in a manner that performs in accordance with Footprint’s specifications and expectations, could
have a material adverse impact on Footprint’s business, results of operations and financial condition.

. Footprint utilizes subcontract manufacturers located in China to manufacture quick-service restaurant and certain other products that it
does not currently have the capacity to manufacture in North America. For the year ended December 31, 2021, these products
manufactured in China represented 36% of Footprint’s revenue. The failure of these manufacturers to make products of sufficient
quality on a timely basis could have a material adverse effect on Footprint’s business, results of operations and financial condition.

. Footprint’s customer commitments vary from purchase orders on an “as needed” basis to contractual commitments with minimum
purchase obligations, and the failure of Footprint’s customers to continue placing orders or to abide by their contractual commitments
could have a material adverse effect on Footprint’s business, results of operations and financial condition.

. Footprint will incur significant expenses and capital expenditures in the future to execute its business plan, and Footprint may be
unable to adequately control its expenses or raise additional capital on favorable terms, if at all.

. Footprint’s ability to successfully implement its business plan, including effectively managing its growth, will depend on a number of
factors, some of which are outside of Footprint’s control.

. Footprint faces various supply pressures, including volatility in both the cost and availability of raw materials, which could cause its
manufacturing costs to increase. If its manufacturing costs materially increase, Footprint would have to raise its prices, which could
negatively impact its ability to gain new customers and keep existing customers.

. If Footprint’s shipping and freight costs continue to increase, it will have a material adverse effect on Footprint’s financial results
because Footprint may not be able to pass through all of these increased costs to customers.
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. Footprint may be unable to satisfy customer orders and demands in a timely and cost-effective manner as a result of a variety of
factors, many of which are outside of its control.

. Footprint’s products may not achieve market success.

. Footprint’s ability to grow its business depends on the successful development and continued refinement of many of its proprietary
technologies and product offerings, which is subject to many uncertainties, some of which are beyond its control.

. Footprint’s products undergo third-party testing for recyclability and compostability claims. Should Footprint’s products fail such
tests, such failure could have a material adverse effect on Footprint’s business, results of operations and financial condition.

. Footprint may not be able to respond appropriately to fluctuations in customer demand and market conditions.
. Footprint may not be able to achieve or increase profitability or positive cash flow.
. Footprint’s inability to adapt to and satisfy customer demands in a timely and cost-effective manner and any delays in the design,

development, engineering, and manufacturing of Footprint’s products may adversely impact Footprint’s business, results of operations
and financial condition.

. Unsatisfactory performance of Footprint’s products could have a material adverse effect on Footprint’s business, results of operations
and financial condition.

. Footprint’s financial results may vary significantly from quarter to quarter.
. Certain contracts granting exclusivity rights to customers may limit Footprint’s ability to sell certain products in certain markets.
. Footprint faces, and will face, substantial competition, and if Footprint is unable to continue developing innovative products and

technologies and/or scale its production, Footprint will cede market share to its competitors.

. Footprint may not be able to adequately protect its patents and other intellectual property assets, particularly those that subcontract
manufacturers located in China and elsewhere may have access to, or third parties may allege that Footprint infringes on their
proprietary rights, all of which could adversely affect its competitive position and reduce the value of its products, and result in
litigation to protect its patents and intellectual property that may be costly.

. Footprint relies in part on trade secrets to protect its technology. Footprint’s failure to obtain or maintain trade secret protection could
limit its ability to compete.

. Footprint faces various risks related to the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic and similar public health crises, which may have material
adverse effects on its business, financial position, results of operations and/or liquidity.

. Footprint is highly dependent on its senior management team, particularly the services of Troy Swope and Yoke Chung, and other
highly skilled personnel, and if Footprint is not successful in attracting or retaining highly qualified personnel, Footprint may not be
able to successfully implement its business strategy.

. Footprint may rely heavily on future collaborative or joint venture partners to expand its manufacturing, product, geographic, and
sales reach.

. As part of growing its business, Footprint may make acquisitions. If Footprint fails to successfully select, execute or integrate its
acquisitions, then its business, results of operations and financial condition could be materially adversely affected, and its stock price
could decline.
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. Footprint may be subject to product recalls and product liability claims that may not be covered by insurance and could require
Footprint to incur significant expenses and pay substantial sums.

. Footprint may be adversely affected by other economic, business, and/or competitive factors.

. Adverse publicity stemming from any incident involving Footprint, its customers, users of its products, other operators in the
sustainable materials sector, or its competitors could have a material adverse effect on Footprint’s business, results of operations and
financial condition.

. Following the completion of the Business Combination, including the PIPE Investment, Footprint will still require substantial
additional funding to finance its operations, but adequate additional financing may not be available when Footprint needs it, on
acceptable terms, or at all.

. Government regulation and legislation may require Footprint to modify its operations, including formulations that Footprint utilizes in
its products.

. Footprint’s business is subject to a wide variety of additional extensive and evolving government laws and regulations. Failure to
comply with such laws and regulations could have a material adverse effect on its business.

. Footprint’s reputation and ability to do business may be impacted by the improper conduct of its employees, agents or business
partners.
. Failure to comply with federal, state, and foreign laws and regulations relating to privacy, data protection, and consumer protection, or

the expansion of current or the enactment of new laws or regulations relating to privacy, data protection, and consumer protection,
could adversely affect Footprint’s business, results of operations and financial condition.

. Footprint is exposed to risks related to geopolitical and economic factors, laws, and regulations, and its international business subjects
Footprint to numerous political and economic factors, legal requirements, cross-cultural considerations, and other risks associated
with doing business globally.

. Footprint is subject to environmental regulation and may incur substantial costs.

. Footprint’s ability to use net operating losses to offset future taxable income will be subject to certain limitations as a result of past
transactions and the Business Combination and related transactions.

. Changes in tax laws or regulations may increase tax uncertainty and adversely affect Footprint’s results of operations and financial
condition and Footprint’s effective tax rate.

. Certain U.S. state tax authorities may assert that Footprint has a state nexus and seek to impose state and local income taxes which
could harm Footprint’s results of operations.

. If Footprint experiences a significant disruption in its information technology systems, including as a result of natural disasters or
security breaches, or if Footprint fails to implement new systems and software successfully, its business, results of operations and
financial condition could be adversely affected.

. Footprint will incur debt in the future and its maintenance of higher levels of indebtedness could have adverse consequences,
including impairing its ability to obtain additional financing and limiting its ability to operate due to agreements governing its debt.

. Footprint’s management team has limited experience managing a public company, and Footprint will incur increased costs as a result
of operating as a public company.

. Footprint has identified material weaknesses in its internal control over financial reporting. If Footprint fails to remediate the material
weaknesses, or if Footprint experiences additional material weaknesses in the future or otherwise fails to maintain an effective system
of internal controls in the future, Footprint
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may not be able to accurately or timely report its financial condition or results of operations, which may adversely affect investor
confidence in Footprint and, as a result, the value of its common stock.

Footprint’s operating results may fluctuate significantly, which makes its future operating results difficult to predict and could cause
its operating results to fall below expectations or any guidance that Footprint may provide.

Footprint may become involved in claims, lawsuits, and other proceedings that could adversely affect its business, financial
conditions, and results of operations.

Natural disasters, unusual weather conditions, epidemic outbreaks, terrorist acts, and political events could disrupt Footprint’s
business and Footprint may not be able to recover successfully, which could cause material financial loss, loss of human capital,
regulatory actions, reputational harm, or legal liability.

Net earnings and net assets could be materially affected by an impairment of goodwill.

The historical financial results of Footprint and its unaudited pro forma financial information included elsewhere in this proxy
statement/prospectus may not be indicative of what Footprint’s actual financial position or results of operations would have been.

Risks Related to the Company and the Business Combination

Our Initial Stockholders have agreed to vote in favor of the Business Combination described in this proxy statement/prospectus,
regardless of how our Public Stockholders vote.

Because the Post-Combination Company will become a publicly listed company by virtue of a merger as opposed to an underwritten
initial public offering (which uses the services of one or more underwriters), less due diligence on the Post-Combination Company
may have been conducted.

Our Sponsor, certain members of our Board and our officers have interests in the Business Combination that are different from or are
in addition to other stockholders in recommending that stockholders vote in favor of approval of the Business Combination Proposal
and approval of the other proposals described in this proxy statement/prospectus.

Our Sponsor, directors or officers or their affiliates may elect to purchase shares from Public Stockholders, which may influence a
vote on a proposed Business Combination and the other proposals described in this proxy statement/prospectus and reduce the public
“float” of our Class A Stock.

Our Public Stockholders will experience dilution as a consequence of, among other transactions, the issuance of Common Stock in the
Business Combination (and the PIPE Investment). Having a minority share position may reduce the influence that our current
stockholders have on the management of the Post-Combination Company. Based on the assumptions regarding Cumulative Dilution
Sources set forth in the section titled “Risk Factors-Risks Related to the Company and the Business Combination,” we estimate that in
the no redemption scenario, Public Stockholders’ ownership of the Company would be reduced from 80% of the Common Stock prior
to the Business Combination to (i) 14.7% of the Post-Combination Company Stock (and voting power) following the Business
Combination without giving effect to any dilution from the Additional Dilution Sources or (ii) 11.3% of the Post-Combination
Company Stock (and voting power) following the Business Combination assuming the estimated maximum dilutive effect of the
Additional Dilution Sources.

In the illustrative redemption scenario, Public Stockholders’ ownership of the Company would be reduced from 80% of the Common
Stock prior to the Business Combination to (i) 9.8% of the Post-Combination Company Stock (and voting power) following the
Business Combination without giving effect to any dilution from the Additional Dilution Sources or (ii) 7.5% of the Post-
Combination
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Company Stock (and voting power) following the Business Combination assuming the estimated maximum dilutive effect of the
Additional Dilution Sources.

. In the contractual maximum redemption scenario, Public Stockholders’ ownership of the Company would be reduced from 80% of
the Common Stock prior to the Business Combination to (i) 4.3% of the Post-Combination Company Stock (and voting power)
following the Business Combination without giving effect to any dilution from the Additional Dilution Sources or (ii) 3.3% of the
Post-Combination Company Stock (and voting power) following the Business Combination assuming the estimated maximum
dilutive effect of the Additional Dilution Sources.

. In the charter redemption limitation scenario, Public Stockholders’ ownership of the Company would be reduced from 80% of the
Common Stock prior to the Business Combination to (i) 0.2% of the Post-Combination Company Stock (and voting power) following
the Business Combination without giving effect to any dilution from the Additional Dilution Sources or (ii) 0.2% of the Post-
Combination Company Stock (and voting power) following the Business Combination assuming the estimated maximum dilutive
effect of the Additional Dilution Sources.

. If a Public Stockholder exercises its redemption rights, such exercise will not result in the loss of any warrants that it may hold. We
cannot predict the ultimate value of the Company Warrants following the consummation of the Business Combination, but assuming
that 100% or 34,500,000 shares of Class A Stock held by our Public Stockholders were redeemed, the 4,312,500 retained outstanding
Public Warrants would have an aggregate value of $[e], based on the price per Public Warrant of $[e] on [e], 2022, the most recent
practicable date prior to the date of this proxy statement/prospectus. In addition, on [e], 2022, the most recent practicable date prior to
the date of this proxy statement/prospectus, the price per share of Class A Stock closed at $[e]. If the shares of Class A Stock are
trading above the exercise price of $11.50 per warrant, the warrants are considered to be “in the money” and are therefore more likely
to be exercised by the holders thereof (when they become exercisable). This in turn increases the risk to non-redeeming stockholders
that the warrants will be exercised, which would result in immediate dilution to the non-redeeming stockholders.

. We have no operating history and are subject to a mandatory liquidation and subsequent dissolution requirement. As such, there is a
risk that we will be unable to continue as a going concern if we do not consummate an initial business combination by March 1, 2023.
Unless we amend our Current Company Certificate and amend certain other agreements into which we have entered to extend the life
of the Company, if we are unable to effect an initial business combination by March 1, 2023, we will be forced to liquidate and our
warrants will expire worthless.

. Our ability to successfully effect the Business Combination and to be successful thereafter will be dependent upon the efforts of our
key personnel, including the key personnel of Footprint whom we expect to stay with the Post-Combination Company. The loss of
key personnel could negatively impact the operations and profitability of the Post-Combination Company and its financial condition
could suffer as a result.

. We may waive one or more of the conditions to the Business Combination.

. The exercise of discretion by our directors and officers in agreeing to changes to the terms of or waivers of closing conditions in the
Merger Agreement may result in a conflict of interest when determining whether such changes to the terms of the Merger Agreement
or waivers of conditions are appropriate and in the best interests of our stockholders.

. We and Footprint will incur significant transaction and transition costs in connection with the Business Combination, including the
Deferred Discount of 3.5%, 5.6%, 13.5% and 241.5% of the value of the cash remaining in the Trust Account assuming the no
redemption scenario, the illustrative redemption scenario, the contractual maximum redemption scenario and the charter redemption
limitation scenario,
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respectively (based on Trust Account balances of $345,030,739, $217,240,374, $89,450,009 and $5,000,005 in the no redemption
scenario, illustrative redemption scenario, contractual maximum redemption scenario and charter redemption limitation scenario,
respectively).

. If third parties bring claims against us, the proceeds held in the Trust Account could be reduced and the per-share redemption amount
received by stockholders may be less than $10.00 per share.

. We have no operating or financial history and our results of operations and those of the Post-Combination Company may differ
significantly from the unaudited pro forma financial data included in this proxy statement/prospectus.

. If the Business Combination’s benefits do not meet the expectations of investors, stockholders or financial analysts, the market price
of our securities may decline.

. Past performance by Mr. Gores or The Gores Group, including our management team, may not be indicative of future performance of
an investment in the Company or the Post-Combination Company.

Selected Historical Financial Information of Footprint

The selected historical consolidated statements of operations data of Footprint for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the selected
historical consolidated balance sheet data as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 and the selected historical consolidated statements of cash flows for
the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 are derived from Footprint’s audited consolidated financial statements for the years ended
December 31, 2021 and 2020 included elsewhere in this proxy statement/prospectus.

Footprint’s historical results are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected in the future. The information below is only a
summary and should be read in conjunction with the section titled “Footprint Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations” and the financial statements, and the notes and schedules related thereto, which are included elsewhere in this proxy
statement/prospectus. The financial information in this section is not intended to replace the Footprint financial statements and historical results
presented in this proxy statement/prospectus are not indicative of future results.

The financial information in this section is not reflective of the pro forma impact of the Business Combination. Please see “Unaudited Pro
Forma Condensed Combined Financial Information” for detailed discussion on the pro forma impact of the Business Combination.

For the Year Ended

December 31, December 31,
(in thousands, except per share amounts) 2021 2020
Statement of Operations Data
Revenue $ 55,043 $ 28,771
Total operating expenses $ 193,092 $ 80,893
Net loss from operations $ (138,049) $ (52,122)
Net loss per share attributable to common stockholders—basic and diluted $ (28.65) $ 9.37)
Cash Flow Data
Net cash used in operating activities $ (146,664) $ (82,312)
Net cash used in investing activities $ (138,235) $ (26,520)
Net cash provided by financing activities $ 318,153 $ 216,476
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As of December 31,

(in thousands) 2021 2020
Balance Sheet Data

Total assets $ 470,654 $ 212,002
Debt and construction financing, net of current portion $ 49,647 $ 24,684
Total liabilities $ 371,356 $ 62,651
Total stockholders’ equity (deficit) $(329,077) $(135,967)

Selected Historical Financial Data of the Post-Combination Company on a Pro Forma Basis

included elsewhere in this proxy statement/prospectus.

Selected Comparative Per Share Information

Comparative Per Share Data of the Company

practicable trading day before the date of this proxy statement/prospectus.

The historical results of the unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information was derived from and should be read in
conjunction with the following historical financial statements and the accompanying notes, which are included elsewhere in this proxy statement/

prospectus:
. the accompanying notes to the unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information;
. the audited financial statements of the Company as of and for the year ended December 31, 2021;
. the audited financial statements of Footprint as of and for the year ended December 31, 2021;
. other information relating to the Company and Footprint included in this proxy statement/prospectus, including the Merger
Agreement and the description of certain terms thereof set forth under the section titled “7The Business Combination”; and
. the sections titled “Company Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and

“Footprint Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and other financial information

Pro Forma
Combined
Pro Forma (Assuming
Selected Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Contractual
Combined Statement of Operations Data (Assuming No Maximum
(in thousands, except per share amounts) Redemptions) Redemptions)
For the year ended December 31, 2021
Revenue $ 55,043 $ 55,043
Net loss $ (151,046) $ (151,046)
Net loss per share of Class A Stock—basic and diluted $ (0.66) $ (0.75)
Weighted-average shares outstanding of Class A Stock—basic and diluted 227,877,602 202,321,806
Selected Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined
Balance Sheet Data as of December 31, 2021
Total assets $ 1,042,688 $ 787,107
Total liabilities $ 136,767 $ 136,767
Total stockholders’ equity $ 905921 $ 650,340

The following table sets forth the closing market prices per share of the Public Units, Public Shares and Public Warrants as reported by
Nasdaq on December 13, 2021, the last trading day before the Business Combination was publicly announced, and on [*], 2022, the last
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Public Public Public
Units Shares Warrants
Trading Date (GIIXU) (GIIX) (GIIXW)
December 13, 2021 $10.03 $9.88 $ 1.30
[+], 2022 $ [] $ [ $ []

The market prices of our securities could change significantly. Because the consideration payable in the Business Combination pursuant to
the Merger Agreement will not be adjusted for changes in the market prices of the Public Shares, the value of the consideration that the Footprint
Stockholders will receive in the Business Combination may vary significantly from the value implied by the market prices of shares of Public
Shares on the date of the Merger Agreement, the date of this proxy statement/prospectus, and the date of the Special Meeting. Company
stockholders are urged to obtain current market quotations for our securities before making their decision with respect to the approval of the
Business Combination Proposal.

Comparative Per Share Data of Footprint

Historical market price information regarding Footprint is not provided because there is no public market for Footprint Stock.

Comparative Historical and Pro Forma Per Share Data

The following table sets forth summary historical comparative share information for the Company and Footprint, respectively and selected
unaudited pro forma condensed combined per share information of the Post-Combination Company after giving effect to the Business
Combination, presented under two scenarios:

. Assuming No Redemptions: This scenario assumes that no Public Stockholders of the Company exercise redemption rights with
respect to their Public Shares for a pro rata share of the funds in the Trust Account.

. Assuming Contractual Maximum Redemptions: This scenario assumes that Public Stockholders holding approximately
25.6 million Public Shares will exercise their redemption rights for their pro rata share (approximately $10.00 per share) of the funds
including interest accrued in the Trust Account, and is calculated based on the closing condition requiring that the total of (i) the
amount in the Trust Account, after giving effect to redemptions of Public Shares, (ii) the proceeds from the PIPE Investment plus
$150,000,000, which represents the gross proceeds from the Footprint Class C Financing and (iii) all funds held by us outside of the
Trust Account and immediately available to us, equals or exceeds $550,000,000.

The pro forma book value information reflects the Business Combination as if it had occurred on December 31, 2021. The weighted average
shares outstanding and net loss per share information for the year ended December 31, 2021 reflect the Business Combination as if it had occurred
on January 1, 2021.

The two alternative levels of redemptions assumed in the selected unaudited pro forma condensed combined per share information is based
on the assumption that there are no adjustments for the outstanding Company Warrants issued in connection with the Company IPO as such
securities are not exercisable until 30 days after the closing of the Business Combination. There are also no adjustments for the estimated 6,577,398
shares, assuming capitalization of Footprint as of December 31, 2021 reserved for the potential future issuance of Common Stock upon the exercise
of Rollover Options upon the closing of the Business Combination, as such event has not yet occurred.

This information is only a summary and should be read in conjunction with the historical financial statements of the Company and Footprint
and related notes included elsewhere in this proxy statement/
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Gores Holding
VIII
(Historical)

Pro Forma Combined Per
Share Data

prospectus. The unaudited pro forma combined per share information of the Company and Footprint is derived from, and should be read in
conjunction with, the unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information and related notes included elsewhere in this proxy statement/
prospectus in the section titled “Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Information.”

The unaudited pro forma condensed combined net loss per share information below does not purport to represent the loss per share which
would have occurred had the companies been combined during the periods presented, nor the loss per share for any future date or period. The
unaudited pro forma condensed combined book value per share information below does not purport to represent what the value of the Company
and Footprint would have been had the companies been combined during the periods presented.

Footprint Equivalent Pro
Forma Per Share Data®

(Assuming

(Assuming Contractual
No Maximum

Redemption Redemption
Scenario) Scenario)

Footprint
(Historical)

(Assuming

(Assuming Contractual
No Maximum

Redemption Redemption
Scenario) Scenario)

As of and for the Year ended
December 31, 20211

Book Value per share® $ (3.49)

Net loss per share of Class A
Stock—basic and diluted $ (0.92)

Weighted average shares
outstanding of Class A
Stock—basic and diluted

Net loss per share of Class F
Stock—basic and diluted $ (0.92)

Weighted average shares
outstanding of Class F
Stock—basic and diluted

Net loss per share of Footprint
Common Stock—basic and
diluted

Weighted average shares of
Footprint Common Stock
outstanding—basic and diluted

28,923,288

8,388,699

classified in permanent equity.

Consideration.

$§ (47.66) $ 3.98 $ 3.21

$ (0.66) $ (0.75)

227,877,602 202,321,806

$  (28.65)

6,869,320

(1)  There were no cash dividends declared in the period presented.
(2)  Book value per share is calculated as (a) total equity excluding preferred shares divided by (b) the total number of shares of Common Stock outstanding

$ 2549 $ 20.61

$ (425 S (479)

(3)  The equivalent per share data for Footprint is calculated by multiplying the combined pro forma per share data by the Per Share Footprint Common Stock
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Market Prices and Dividends
Company

The Public Units, Public Shares and Public Warrants trade on Nasdaq, under the symbols “GIIXU,” “GIIX” and “GIIXW,” respectively. Each
Public Unit consists of one Public Share and one-eighth of a Public Warrant. The Public Units began trading on February 25, 2021, the Public
Shares on April 19, 2021 and Public Warrants on April 19, 2021.

On December 13, 2021, the trading date before the public announcement of the Business Combination, the Public Units, Public Shares and
Public Warrants closed at $10.03, $9.88 and $1.30, respectively.

The Company has not paid any cash dividends on its Public Shares to date and does not intend to pay cash dividends prior to the completion
of the Business Combination.

Footprint

Historical market price information regarding shares of Footprint Stock is not provided because there is no public market for Footprint Stock.
Footprint has not paid any dividends on shares of Footprint Stock and does not intend to pay dividends prior to the completion of the Business
Combination.

Recent Developments

On February 18, 2022, Footprint entered into a $80.0 million Loan and Security Agreement (the “Trinity Loan and Security Agreement”), by
and among Footprint, the borrowers listed on Schedule 1 thereto, the lenders from time to time party thereto (the “7rinity Lenders”) and Trinity
Capital, as administrative agent and collateral agent for the lenders. The Trinity Loan and Security Agreement accrues interest at a rate equal to the
greater of the Prime Rate plus 7.25% or 10.50%. The loan has a stated maturity date of February 18, 2027 and includes a prepayment premium of
(1) 3% if paid within the first two years of the loan, (ii) 2% if paid after the first two years but before the third year and (iii) 1% at all times
thereafter until the maturity date. The outstanding principal balance on the loan was $80.0 million at April 20, 2022. In connection with the Trinity
Loan and Security Agreement, Footprint entered into Warrant to Purchase Common Stock agreements (the “New Trinity Warrants”) with each of
the Trinity Lenders. Each of the New Trinity Warrants will be deemed automatically exercised on a cashless basis immediately prior to the
Effective Time, and Footprint agreed to issue an aggregate of 38,879 shares of Footprint Common Stock to the Trinity Lenders effective
immediately prior to the Effective Time, in each case, contingent upon, the closing of the Business Combination. Further, Footprint entered into
Participation Rights Agreements (the “Trinity Participation Rights Agreements”) with the Trinity Lenders, which granted the Trinity Lenders with
certain participation rights in connection with certain offerings of Footprint capital stock. The Trinity Participation Rights Agreements will
terminate in connection with the closing of the Business Combination.
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RISK FACTORS

You should carefully review and consider the following risk factors and the other information contained in this proxy statement/prospectus, including the
financial statements and notes to the financial statements included herein and the matters addressed in the section titled “Cautionary Note Regarding
Forward-Looking Statements” in evaluating the Business Combination and the proposals to be voted on at the Special Meeting. Certain of the following
risk factors apply to the business and operations of Footprint and will also apply to the business and operations of the Post-Combination Company
following the completion of the Business Combination. The occurrence of one or more of the events or circumstances described in these risk factors,
alone or in combination with other events or circumstances, may adversely affect the ability to complete or realize the anticipated benefits of the
Business Combination, and may have a material adverse effect on the business, cash flows, financial condition and results of operations of the Post-
Combination Company following the Business Combination. The risks discussed below may not prove to be exhaustive and are based on certain
assumptions made by the Company and Footprint that later may prove to be incorrect or incomplete. The Company and Footprint may face additional
risks and uncertainties that are not presently known to such entity, or that are currently deemed immaterial, which may also impair our business, results
of operations or financial condition of the Company, Footprint or the Post-Combination Company.

Risks Related to the Post-Combination Company’s Business

Unless the context otherwise requires, references to “Footprint,” “we,” “our” and “us” in this section are to the business and operations of
Footprint prior to the Business Combination and the business and operations of the Post-Combination Company as directly or indirectly affected by
Footprint by virtue of the Post-Combination Company s ownership of the business of Footprint through its ownership of the Surviving Entity following
the Business Combination. In addition, you should read and consider the risks associated with the business of the Company because these risks may
also affect the Post-Combination Company. Please see the section titled “Where You Can Find More Information” in this proxy statement/prospectus.

Our limited operating history and history of net losses make it difficult to evaluate our future prospects and the risks and challenges we may
encounter.

We incurred a net loss of $196.8 million and $59.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, respectively, and as of
December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, we had an accumulated deficit of approximately $332.7 million and $135.9 million, respectively. We
believe we will continue to incur operating and net losses each quarter for the near term. We may never achieve profitability, and even if we achieve
profitability, there can be no assurance that we will be able to maintain profitability in the future. Our potential profitability is particularly dependent
upon the continued adoption of plant-based packaging products by consumers and our customers as well as our ability to produce these products

efficiently, price our products appropriately, and pass through certain increases in the costs of raw materials to control our costs, any or all of which may
not occur.

Our limited operating history and history of net losses make it difficult to evaluate our future prospects and the risks and challenges we may
encounter. Risks and challenges we have faced or expect to face include our ability to:

. forecast our revenue and budget for and manage our expenses;
. attract new customers and retain existing customers;
. effectively manage our growth and business operations, including planning for and managing capital expenditures for our current and

future manufacturing systems, managing our supply chain, including supplier relationships and raw material costs related to our current
and future product offerings and integrating acquisitions;
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. comply with existing and new or modified laws and regulations applicable to our business;

. anticipate and respond to macroeconomic changes and changes in the markets in which we operate;
. maintain and enhance the value of our reputation and brand;

. develop and protect intellectual property; and

. hire, integrate and retain talented people at all levels of our organization.

If we fail to address the risks and difficulties that we face, including those associated with the challenges listed above as well as those described
elsewhere in this “Risk Factors” section, our business, financial condition and results of operations could be adversely affected. Further, because we
have limited historical financial data and operate in a rapidly evolving market, any predictions about our future revenue and expenses may not be as
accurate as they would be if we had a longer operating history or operated in a more developed market. Footprint has encountered in the past, and will
encounter in the future, risks and uncertainties frequently experienced by growing companies with limited operating histories in rapidly changing
industries. If our assumptions regarding these risks and uncertainties, which we use to plan and operate our business, are incorrect or change, or if we do
not address these risks successfully, our results of operations could differ materially from our expectations, and our business and financial condition and
result of operations could be adversely affected.

Our forecasts and projections of future financial results are based on a number of assumptions by our management, some or all of which may prove
to be incorrect, and actual results may differ materially and adversely from such forecasts and projections.

Our forecasts and projections of future financial results contained in this proxy statement/prospectus are based on a number of assumptions and
estimates by our management, including those relating to the expected size and growth of the markets in which we operate or may seek to operate,
continued customer demand for our products, and our ability to meet customer demand, produce our products efficiently, execute our operational plan,
optimize the performance of our equipment, price our products appropriately, and control our costs all of which are subject to a wide variety of business
risks and uncertainties. For example, such markets may not develop or grow, or may develop and grow at a lower rate than expected, and even if these
markets experience the forecasted growth described in this proxy statement/prospectus, we may not grow our business in those markets at similar rates,
or at all. Our future growth is subject to many factors, including, among others, our ability to develop and commercialize our products and the market’s
adoption of our products, both of which are subject to risks and uncertainties, many of which are beyond our control. If these assumptions, analyses or
estimates prove to be incorrect or inaccurate, our actual results may differ materially from those forecasted or projected, which could adversely affect
the trading price of the Post-Combination Company Stock. Accordingly, the forecasts and estimates, including those relating to market size and growth,
continued customer demand, and operational efficiencies and execution, described in this proxy statement/prospectus should not be taken as indicative
of Post-Combination Company’s future growth.

We rely heavily on our operations in Mexico, which are subject to many uncertainties and risks that, if realized, could have a material adverse effect
on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

We have invested significantly in and rely heavily on our manufacturing facility in Mexicali, Mexico. For the years ended December 31, 2021 and
2020, 45% and 39%, respectively, of all revenue was derived from products manufactured in our Mexicali manufacturing facility. There are a number of
risks associated with doing business in Mexico, including exposure to local economic and political conditions, government regulations, social unrest,
including risks of terrorism or other hostilities, export and import restrictions, the potential for shortages of trained labor, lack of power and/or water,
and the possible effects of currency exchange rate fluctuations. Additionally, the Mexican government has exercised and continues to exercise
significant influence over the generation and provision of electricity in Mexico. As a result of this regulatory environment, acquiring electricity for our
manufacturing facility in Mexicali has been challenging, and there is no guarantee we will be
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able to obtain electricity in a cost-effective manner and in sufficient quantities to operate our manufacturing facility. These risks could lead to additional
costs or production delays that we cannot foresee at this time and may materially adversely impact our business, results of operations and financial
condition and the trading price of the Post-Combination Company Stock.

We have not previously operated a manufacturing facility in Europe, and we face substantial uncertainty and risks as we seek to expand our
operations, and our inability to build, hire effectively, and operate such facility efficiently could have a material adverse effect on our business,
results of operations and financial condition.

We are presently planning one or more manufacturing facilities in Europe. The locations are projected to support production for our European
customers’ products. As we expand our manufacturing facilities into Europe, we may face significant operational risks from doing business in a new
international location, including costs and/or delays associated with complying with new regulations and laws.

Our investment in Europe may expose us to substantial risks and as a result, we may not realize a positive return on our investment. There may be
unforeseen delays in the development of our European manufacturing facilities, which could materially increase our expenses or delay our production.
Opening these facilities will require additional capital expenditures and the efforts and attention of our management and other personnel, which will
divert resources from our existing business or operations. In addition, we may not be able to hire enough qualified personnel at acceptable wages, if at
all, to staff these facilities. Even if our new European facilities are brought up to full production according to our current schedule, including hiring and
training personnel to staff such facilities, they may not provide us with all of the operational and financial benefits we expect to receive. These and other
risks may result in our not realizing a return on, or losing some or all of our return on, our planned investments in Europe, which could have a material
adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Expanding our global operations will subject us to additional risks, such as volatility in currency exchange rates, compliance with additional foreign
laws and regulations, and other risks and uncertainties, any of which could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and
financial condition.

As we expand globally, we will be subject to additional risks, and our operating results may be affected by volatility in currency exchange rates
and our ability to effectively manage our currency transaction risks. For example, we may incur currency transaction risks if we were to enter into either
a purchase or a sale transaction using a different currency from the currency in which we report revenues because we do not currently engage in
currency swaps or other currency hedging strategies to address this risk. As we realize our strategy to expand internationally, our exposure to currency
risks may increase. Given the volatility of exchange rates, we can give no assurance that we will be able to effectively manage our currency transaction
risks or that any volatility in currency exchange rates will not have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Additionally, as we expand into Europe, we will be subject to additional laws and regulations. Our efforts to comply with such laws and
regulations could be costly and time-consuming, diverting resources and management attention away from our existing operations. Furthermore, there is
no guarantee we will be successful in becoming compliant and maintaining our compliancy with such regulations.

Other risks and uncertainties we may face from expanding our overseas manufacturing capabilities and global operations include the following:
. difficulties in staffing and managing foreign operations;

. limited protection for the enforcement of contract and intellectual property rights in certain countries where we may sell our products or
work with suppliers or other third parties;
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. potentially longer sales and payment cycles and potentially greater difficulties in collecting accounts receivable;

. costs and difficulties of customizing products for foreign countries;

. challenges in providing solutions across a significant distance, in different languages and among different cultures;

. laws and business practices favoring local competition;

. being subject to a wide variety of complex foreign laws, treaties, and regulations and adjusting to any unexpected changes in such laws,

treaties, and regulations;

. specific and significant regulations, including the European Union’s (“£U”) General Data Protection Regulation (“GDPR”), which
imposes compliance obligations on companies that possess and use data containing personal information of EU residents;

. uncertainty and resultant political, financial, and market instability arising from the United Kingdom’s exit from the EU;

. compliance with U.S. laws affecting activities of U.S. companies abroad, including the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act (“FCPA”);

. tariffs, trade barriers, and other regulatory or contractual limitations on our ability to sell or develop our products in certain foreign
markets;

. operating in countries with a higher incidence of corruption and fraudulent business practices;

. changes in regulatory requirements, including export controls, tariffs and embargoes, other trade restrictions, competition, corporate

practices, and data privacy concerns;

. potential adverse tax consequences;

. seasonal reductions in business activity in certain parts of the world, particularly during the summer months in Europe and at year end
globally;

. rapid changes in government, economic, and political policies and conditions; and

. political or civil unrest or instability, terrorism, or epidemics and other similar outbreaks or events.

Our failure to effectively manage the risks and uncertainties associated with our global operations could limit the future growth of our business
and adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Limited availability, or increases in the planned costs, of water, power, and raw materials for our facilities and manufacturing process, including as
a result of climate change, could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Our manufacturing operations require the use of substantial amounts of pulp fiber, electricity, water, and natural gas, which have been, and may
continue to be, subject to decreased availability due to climate change and other factors, significant price increases as the result of changes in overall
supply and demand and the impacts of legislation and regulatory action, including actions taken as a result of climate change. We may not be able to
pass along these increased costs to our customers.

Supply shortages or disruptions in our supply chains could affect our ability to obtain timely delivery of materials, equipment, and supplies from
our suppliers, or increase the costs for these items, and, in turn, adversely affect our ability to supply products to our customers at prices previously
agreed to. Such disruptions could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.
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Our future success hinges on our ability to increase our manufacturing efficiency, including by converting, with greater efficacy, post-industrial
recycled fibers into products and increasing the use of automation in our manufacturing.

Generally, our sales and profitability are dependent on the availability and cost of raw materials, labor, and other inputs. To date, we have not
encountered issues acquiring virgin plant fibers, post-industrial recycled fibers, and chemistries, the principal raw materials in our products. However,
the prices of these raw materials have increased substantially from time to time, and the availability of these raw materials is subject to fluctuations that
are beyond our control due to factors such as changing economic conditions, currency and commodity price fluctuations, tariffs, resource availability,
transportation costs, weather conditions and natural disasters, political unrest and instability, and other factors impacting supply and demand pressures.
Increases in these costs could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Additionally, improvements in our manufacturing processes and increased profit margins depend upon our ability to incorporate increased
automation in our manufacturing processes and to properly and efficiently convert recycled fiber content into products that comply with our customers’
specifications. To date, our products have contained primarily virgin pulp fibers; however, by the end of 2024, we intend to increase the content mix of
our total purchased fiber to 40% recycled fiber. There is no guarantee we will succeed in obtaining this level of efficiency. We also intend to increase our
reliance on automation in certain of our manufacturing processes, but we do not have experience with implementing substantial automation in certain of
these processes to date, and there can be no assurance that this initiative will be successful. In the event we do not reach 40% recycled fiber content of
our total purchased fiber and/or are unable to effectively incorporate increased automation in our manufacturing processes, the overall cost of our
manufacturing process could increase, and our business, results of operations and financial condition could be materially and adversely affected.

Our products are manufactured using equipment from a relatively small number of suppliers that are modifying their equipment to meet our
production specifications, and the failure of one or more of these suppliers to produce this equipment in a timely fashion, or in a manner that
performs in accordance with our specifications and expectations, could have a material adverse impact on our business, results of operations and
financial condition.

While the type of equipment that we use to produce our products is currently available, we rely on a relatively small number of equipment
suppliers to modify their existing equipment designs according to our specifications in order to be able to produce our products. These equipment
suppliers may fail to deliver equipment at agreed upon prices or may require price increases for future deliveries. If one or more of our suppliers of
capital equipment are unable or unwilling to provide us with the necessary capital equipment to manufacture our products or if we experience significant
delays in obtaining the necessary manufacturing equipment, our business, results of operations and financial condition could be materially and adversely
affected. For example, to outfit our manufacturing facilities, we have contracts with equipment suppliers in Europe and Asia. Such equipment contracts
have long lead-times, with delivery of the equipment to take place throughout 2022 and beyond. Due to the specialized nature of our equipment and the
long lead-times of our equipment suppliers, delay or cancellation in any of these contracts or orders under these contracts would severely hinder our
efforts at our manufacturing facilities, and there is no guarantee when or if we would be able to secure alternative equipment. A cancellation of any of
our equipment orders or a delay in equipment delivery could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial
condition.

For some products, we utilize subcontract manufacturers located in China to manufacture our products. The failure of these manufacturers to make
products of sufficient quality on a timely basis could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

In order to meet customer demand, we rely on, and will continue to rely on, a limited number of subcontract manufacturers in China to
manufacture our quick-service restaurant and certain other products that we do not
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presently have the capacity to manufacture in North America. For the year ended December 31, 2021, 36% of our revenue was from products
manufactured by these subcontract manufacturers. We place orders to the subcontractors in China through an independent contractor. Our reliance upon
this independent contractor and upon such subcontract manufacturers involves several risks, including reduced control over manufacturing costs,
delivery times, reliability and quality of products, unfavorable currency exchange fluctuations, intellectual property infringement, and continued
inflationary pressures on many of the raw materials used in manufacturing. If we were to encounter a shortage of supply of these products, or experience
manufacturing delays caused by reduced manufacturing capacity, inability of our subcontract manufacturers to procure raw materials, or the loss of the
subcontract manufacturers’ ability to manufacture our products due to disruptions to their operations, we could experience lost revenues, increased
costs, and delays in, or cancellations or rescheduling of, orders or shipments, any of which would materially harm our business, results of operations and
financial condition.

Changes in U.S. and China relations, as well as relations with other countries, and/or regulations may adversely impact our business, our operating
results, our ability to raise capital and the market price of our shares.

The U.S. government, including the SEC, has made statements and taken certain actions that have led to changes to U.S. and international
relations, and that impact companies with connections to the U.S. or China, including imposing several rounds of tariffs affecting certain products
manufactured in China, imposing certain sanctions and restrictions in relation to China and issuing statements indicating enhanced review of companies
with significant China-based operations. It is unknown whether and to what extent new legislation, executive orders, tariffs, laws or regulations will be
adopted, and the effect that any such actions would have on companies with business relationships in China. Any unfavorable government policies on
cross-border relations and/or international trade, including increased scrutiny on companies with significant China-based operations, capital controls or
tariffs, may affect our ability to raise capital and the market price of our shares.

In addition, our reliance on an independent contractor and subcontractors in China exposes us to substantial risks associated with doing business
in China, such as taxation, inflation, environmental and other regulations, foreign currency exchange rates, labor market, energy, and property and
financial regulations. If any new legislation, executive orders, tariffs, laws and/or regulations are implemented, if existing trade agreements are
renegotiated or if the U.S. or Chinese governments take retaliatory actions due to the recent U.S.-China tension, such changes could have an adverse
effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations, our ability to raise capital and the market price of our shares.

If we lose significant customers or significant customers materially reduce their purchase orders, our business, financial condition and results of
operations may be adversely affected.

The loss of or disruptions related to significant customers could result in a material reduction in sales. For the year ended December 31, 2021,
Conagra was our only customer that accounted for more than 10% of our net sales, totaling 17.2%. For the year ended December 31, 2020, Conagra was
our only customer that accounted for more than 10% of our net sales, totaling 23%.

These customers do not enter long-term contracts. Instead, they make purchase decisions based on a combination of price, product quality,
consumer demand and service quality. In the future, they may reallocate their demand to other suppliers. If our sales to one or more of these customers
are reduced, this reduction may adversely affect our business.
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Our customer commitments vary from purchase orders on an “as needed” basis to contractual commitments with minimum purchase obligations,
and the failure of our customers to continue placing orders or to abide by their contractual commitments could have a material adverse effect on our
business, results of operations and financial condition.

In 2021, approximately 57.7% of our product revenue was derived from purchase orders made by customers on an as-needed basis that do not
have specified multi-year minimum contractual purchase obligations. We expect to continue to encounter a mixture of multi-year contractual purchase
commitments and as-needed purchase orders. As a result, our manufacturing volume will continue to be based on estimates and forecasts that can be
incorrect. Additionally, customers issuing purchase orders can cancel purchase orders or reduce or delay orders at any time. Incorrect estimates and
projections or the cancellation, delay, or reduction of customer purchase orders, or customers’ failure to fulfill their minimum purchase obligations could
result in reduced sales, excess inventory, unabsorbed overhead, and reduced income from operations.

We often schedule internal production levels and place orders for raw materials with third-party suppliers before receiving firm orders from our
customers. Therefore, if we fail to accurately forecast customer demand, we may experience excess inventory levels or a shortage of products to deliver
to our customers. Factors that could affect our ability to accurately forecast demand for our products include the following:

. an increase or decrease in consumer demand for our products or for the products of our competitors;

. our failure to accurately forecast consumer acceptance of new products;

. delays in the production of tooling for the products, or the unsatisfactory performance of the tooling;

. delays in the ability of our products to meet certain customer performance requirements and other specifications;

. new product introductions by us or our competitors;

. changes in our relationships with our customers;

. changes in general market conditions or other factors, which may result in cancellations of orders or a reduction or increase in the rate of

reorders placed by retailers;
. changes in laws and regulations applicable to our products or the manner in which we sell products; and

. weak economic conditions or consumer confidence, which could reduce demand for our products.

Inventory levels in excess of consumer demand may result in inventory write-downs and the sale of excess inventory at discounted prices, which
could have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition. Any overestimation of the demand for our products will
result in a decline in forecasted revenue. Additionally, if we underestimate or are otherwise unable to manufacture enough products to meet the demand
for our products, our manufacturing facilities or third-party suppliers may not be able to meet customer demand, resulting in delays in the shipment of
products and lost revenue, and damage to our reputation and customer and consumer relationships. We may not be able to manage inventory levels
successfully to meet future order and reorder requirements.

We will incur significant expenses and capital expenditures in the future to execute our business plan, and we may be unable to adequately control
our expenses or raise additional capital on favorable terms, if at all.

As of December 31, 2021, we had cash and cash equivalents of $57.8 million, restricted cash of $10.3 million and net working capital of
$128.6 million (which is comprised of the net amount of current assets of $201.0 million and current liabilities of $72.4 million). This compares to cash
and equivalents of $115.7 million, restricted cash of $53 thousand, and net working capital of $114.1 million (which is comprised of the net amount of
current assets of $142.1 million and current liabilities of $28 million) as of December 31, 2020.
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Our cash requirements relate primarily to working capital needed to operate and grow our business, including funding operating expenses, growth
in working capital requirements to support increased revenue, continued expansion of our markets, such as Mexico and Europe, continued development
and expansion of our products, expanding production facilities, and the possible repayment or refinancing of any long-term debt that may be incurred.
Our ability to meet future liquidity needs and capital requirements will depend upon numerous factors, including the timing and quantity of product
orders and shipments; attaining and expanding positive gross margins across all product lines; the timing and amount of our operating expenses; the
timing and costs of working capital needs; the timing and costs of expanding our engineering and solutions development teams; the ability of our
customers to continue to order products from us; our ability to obtain financing arrangements to support equipment purchases and our operations,
including financing arrangements to repay or refinance any long-term debt that may be incurred, and the terms of such agreements that may require us to
pledge or restrict substantial amounts of our cash to support these financing arrangements; the timing and costs of hiring and training necessary
personnel; the extent to which our products gain market acceptance; the timing and costs of product development and introductions; the extent of our
ongoing and new research and development initiatives; and changes in our strategy or our planned activities. If we are unable to fund our operations
with positive cash flows and cannot obtain external financing on favorable terms, if at all, we may not be able to sustain future operations which could
cause us to delay, reduce or cease operations and could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

We cannot assure you that any necessary additional financing will be available on terms favorable to us, or at all. Additionally, even if we raise
sufficient capital through additional equity or debt financings, strategic alternatives or otherwise, there can be no assurance that the revenue or capital
infusion will be sufficient to enable us to develop our business to a level where it will be profitable or generate positive cash flow. If we incur additional
debt, a substantial portion of our operating cash flow may be dedicated to the payment of principal and interest on such indebtedness, thus limiting funds
available for our business activities. The terms of any debt securities issued could also impose significant restrictions on our operations.

Our ability to successfully implement our business plan, including effectively managing our growth, will depend on a number of factors, some of
which are outside of our control.

Our failure to manage growth effectively could have a material and adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.
We anticipate that a period of significant and successful expansion of our production capabilities will be required to address potential growth. This
expansion will place a significant strain on our management, operational, and financial resources. To manage the expected growth of our operations and
personnel, we must establish appropriate and scalable operational and financial systems, procedures, and controls. We must also hire a large number of
qualified personnel to meet our growth and revenue expectations, and there can be no assurance that we will be able to hire, train, and/or retain such
personnel. Our management may also be unable to hire, train, retain, and manage the necessary personnel or to identify, manage, and exploit potential
strategic relationships and market opportunities.

We face various supply pressures, including volatility in both the cost and availability of raw materials, which could cause our manufacturing costs
to increase. If our manufacturing costs materially increase, we would have to raise our prices, which could negatively impact our ability to gain new
customers and keep existing customers.

Our manufacturing costs depend in part on the fluctuating cost of the raw materials used in our processes, particularly pulp fiber and chemistry
costs. We have faced, and could continue to face, resistance from some customers in accepting increased prices as a result of increases to our pulp fiber
or other input costs. Some multi-year contracts and non-contractual pricing arrangements with customers permit limited price adjustments to reflect
increased pulp fiber costs. However, such adjustments may not occur quickly enough, or be sufficient enough, to prevent a materially adverse effect on
net income and cash flow. Furthermore, such price adjustments do not cover all input costs, and these adjustments are not present in many of our
customer contracts. In the event
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we experience increased input costs, we may have to raise our prices, which could affect our ability to gain new customers or retain existing customers.
Further, our inability to raise our prices to mitigate the effects of these increased input costs could have a material adverse effect on our financial results.

We may also experience material increases in customer cancellations or reductions in the future on account of the macroeconomic environment,
especially in the event of a prolonged recession or a worsening of current conditions as a result of many factors, including inflation and the ongoing
COVID-19 pandemic. As a result, we may have to make changes to our pricing model to address these dynamics, any of which could adversely affect
our business, results of operations and financial condition.

In addition, a shortage of raw materials or an unexpected interruption of supply could also result in higher prices for those materials. We have
experienced increases in various raw material costs, transportation costs and the cost of plant-based materials and other supplies or products used in our
business. Increasing pricing pressures on raw materials and other products continued throughout 2021 as a result of limited supplies of raw materials,
higher costs for the suppliers of these raw materials, labor shortages, the effects of higher labor and transportation costs, and the impact of COVID-19.
We expect these upward pressures to continue through 2022. Although we may be able to raise our prices in response to significant increases in the cost
of raw materials, we may not be able to raise prices sufficiently or quickly enough to offset the negative effects such cost increases could have on our
business, results of operations and financial condition.

There can be no assurance suppliers will provide the quality raw materials needed by us in the quantities requested or at a reasonable price.
Because we do not control the actual production of these raw materials, we are also subject to delays caused by interruption in production of materials
including but not limited to those resulting from conditions outside of our control, such as pandemics, weather, transportation interruptions, labor
shortages, strikes, terrorism, natural disasters, and other catastrophic events.

If our shipping and freight costs continue to increase, it will have a material adverse effect on our financial results because we may not be able to
pass through all of these increased costs to customers.

We currently rely upon third-party transportation providers for a significant portion of our product shipments. Our utilization of delivery services
for shipments is subject to risks, including increases in fuel prices and container costs, which would increase our shipping costs, increased labor costs
and employee strikes, disease outbreaks or pandemics (such as COVID-19), and inclement weather, which may impact the ability of providers to
provide delivery services that adequately meet our shipping needs, if at all. Over the past year, our shipping and freight costs have increased
substantially, and we have not been able to pass all of these cost increases on to our customers, which has negatively impacted our profitability.

We may be unable to satisfy customer orders and demands in a timely and cost-effective manner as a result of a variety of factors, many of which are
outside of our control.

The interruption of our manufacturing processes could adversely affect our ability to manufacture or sell many of our products. We manufacture
our products at a relatively small number of facilities, including our Mexicali facility, from which approximately 39% and 45% of our revenue was
derived in 2020 and 2021, respectively. Therefore, a significant disruptive event, including a fire, natural disaster, or loss or restricted supply of
resources essential to production, at certain manufacturing facilities or sites could materially and adversely affect our business, results of operations and
financial condition. In the event of a disruption, we may need to build or locate replacement facilities as well as seek and obtain the necessary regulatory
approvals for these facilities. Accordingly, we may experience substantial production delays, and, if our finished goods inventories are insufficient to
meet demand, we may be unable to satisfy customer orders on a timely basis, if at all.

The loss of a material supplier could also significantly disrupt our business. In some cases, we obtain materials used in certain of our products
from single sources. If we experience difficulties acquiring sufficient
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quantities of required materials or products from our existing suppliers, or if our suppliers are found to be non-compliant with applicable laws or
regulations, obtaining alternative suppliers could be a lengthy and uncertain process during which we could lose sales.

Any failure by us to forecast demand for, or to maintain an adequate supply of, raw materials and finished products could result in an interruption
in the supply of certain products and a decline in sales of those products. In addition, if our suppliers are unable to meet our manufacturing
requirements, we may not be able to produce a sufficient amount of products in a timely manner, which could cause a decline in our sales.

Our products may not achieve market success.

Some prospective customers are currently evaluating and testing our products prior to making large-scale purchase decisions. The successful
commercialization of our plant-based fiber products and solutions is also dependent on our customers’ ability to achieve commercial success with the
end-products that they store in our sustainable solutions, which may never gain market acceptance.

Market acceptance of our products will depend on numerous factors, many of which are outside of our control, including among others:

. public acceptance of such products;

. our ability to produce products of consistent quality that offer functionality comparable or superior to existing or new single-use plastic
products;

. our ability to produce products that meet customer requirements and are otherwise fit for their intended purposes;

. our ability to obtain necessary regulatory approvals for our products;

. the speed at which potential customers qualify our plant-based fiber products for use with their end-products;

. the pricing of our products compared to competitive products, including petroleum-based plastics;

. the strategic reaction of companies that market competitive products;

. our reliance on third parties who support or control distribution channels; and

. general market conditions.

Our ability to grow our business depends on the successful development and continued refinement of many of our proprietary technologies and
product offerings, which is subject to many uncertainties, some of which are beyond our control.

The market for our products is characterized by rapid change and technological improvements. Failure to respond in a timely and cost-effective
way to these technological developments would result in serious harm to our business, results of operations and financial condition. We have derived,
and we expect to continue to derive, a substantial portion of our revenues from providing innovative products and manufacturing and technical
solutions. As a result, our success will depend, in part, on our ability to develop and market product offerings that respond in a timely manner to the
needs of our customers, evolving industry standards, changing customer preferences, and regulatory developments. We may not be successful in
identifying, developing, and marketing products that respond to these needs, requirements, or evolving preferences and technical standards.

We believe that, in order to remain competitive in the future, we will need to continue to invest significant financial resources to develop new
product offerings and technologies or to adapt or modify our existing product offerings and technologies, including through internal research and
development, acquisitions and joint ventures,
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or other collaborative arrangements. These expenditures could divert our attention and resources from other projects, and we cannot be sure that these
expenditures will ultimately lead to the timely development of new product offerings and technologies or identification of and expansion into new
markets. Due to the design and engineering complexity of our products, we have experienced, and may, in the future, experience, delays in completing
the development and introduction of new products. Any delays could result in increased costs of development or divert resources from other projects. In
addition to potential delays, new product development may prove to be unsuccessful, resulting in lower-than-expected revenue and/or potentially lost
customer relationships. In addition, there can be no assurance that the market for our products will develop or continue to expand or that we will be as
successful in newly identified markets or product lines as we currently anticipate. If we are unable to achieve sustained growth, we may be unable to
execute our business strategy, expand our business, or fund other liquidity needs, and our business, results of operations and financial condition could be
materially and adversely affected. Furthermore, we cannot be sure that our competitors will not develop competing products that gain market acceptance
in advance of our products, or are otherwise preferred by customers and potential customers.

Additionally, the possibility exists that our competitors might develop new technology or product offerings that might cause our existing product
offerings to become obsolete. If we fail in our new product development efforts or our products fail to achieve market acceptance more rapidly as
compared to our competitors, our ability to procure new contracts could be negatively impacted, which could adversely affect our business, results of
operations and financial condition.

Our products undergo third-party testing for recyclability and compostability claims, and should our products fail such tests, such failure could have
a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

We design our products to be recyclable and compostable, and they undergo third-party testing to substantiate such claims. Some of our
customers’ purchase obligations are, and may in the future be, contingent on our ability to create products that are recyclable and/or compostable, and
should any of our products designed for these customers fail such tests, these customers may choose to not purchase our products, causing a reduction in
sales. Additionally, as we develop new manufacturing processes and products, there could be delays in the testing of our new products. Such delays
could result in a disruption of projected sales, and therefore our failure to achieve our financial forecasts and to fulfill customer demand.

We may not be able to respond appropriately to fluctuations in customer demand and market conditions.

Due to fluctuations in customer demand and other market conditions, we may face lower-than-expected revenue levels, operating results may be
adversely affected, and cost reduction measures may be necessary in order for us to remain competitive and financially sound. We must be in a position
to adjust our cost and expense structure to reflect prevailing market conditions and to continue to motivate and retain our key employees. If we fail to
adequately respond to such market conditions, our business could be seriously harmed. In addition, during periods of rapid growth, we must be able to
increase engineering and manufacturing capacity and personnel to meet customer demand. We can provide no assurance that these objectives can be met
in a timely manner in response to increased customer demand. Each of these factors could adversely impact our business, results of operations and
financial condition.

We may not be able to achieve or increase profitability or positive cash flow.

We expect our operating expenses to increase over the next several years as we scale our operations, increase research and development efforts
relating to new product offerings and technologies, and hire more employees. These efforts may be more costly than we expect and may not result in
increased revenue or growth in our business. Any failure to increase our revenue sufficiently to keep pace with our investments and other expenses
could prevent us from improving, achieving, or increasing profitability or positive cash flow.
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Furthermore, if our future growth and operating performance fail to meet investor or analyst expectations, or if we have continued negative cash flow in
the future or losses, or deepening losses, resulting from maintaining or expanding our operations, this could have a material adverse effect on our
business, results of operations and financial condition.

Our future profitability also hinges on our ability to acquire more customers and/or increase the commitments of our current customers. Even if
we acquire new customers, our typical development cycle takes at least nine months after a customer confirms its performance requirements and
executes a contract, and thus any revenue from new customers may not be realized until several months after such customers execute contracts.

Our inability to adapt to and satisfy customer demands in a timely and cost-effective manner and any delays in the design, development,
engineering, and manufacturing of our products may adversely impact our business, results of operations and financial condition.

We have previously experienced, and may experience in the future, delays or other complications in the design, development, manufacture,
production, delivery and ramp of our equipment, products and technologies, including on account of the global COVID-19 health crisis. If delays like
this arise or recur, if our manufacturing and process changes are not successful or are unable to meet our growth and customer demand, or if we
experience issues with planned manufacturing improvements or efficiencies or design, we could experience issues or delays in meeting our production
goals or in increasing production. If our current or future product offerings do not meet expected performance or quality standards, including with
respect to customer and end-user satisfaction, this could cause operational delays. In addition, any delay in manufacturing new products as planned
could increase costs, cause our products to be less attractive to potential new customers or cause a termination of existing customer orders and/or
relationships.

If we encounter difficulties in scaling our delivery capabilities; if we fail to continue to develop and successfully commercialize our products; if
we fail to develop new technologies before our competitors; or if such technologies fail to perform as expected, are inferior to those of our competitors,
or are perceived to be less attractive than those of our competitors, our business, results of operations and financial condition could be materially and
adversely impacted.

Unsatisfactory performance of our products could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

We design, develop, engineer, and manufacture sophisticated fiber-based products. While we have built operational processes to ensure that the
design, development, manufacture and performance of these products meet customer performance requirements, there can be no assurance that we will
not experience operational or process failures and other problems, including as a result of manufacturing or design defects, operator error, cyber-attacks
or other negligent or intentional acts or omissions, that could lead to potential product or safety risks. Any actual or perceived safety or quality assurance
issue may result in significant reputational harm to our business, in addition to liability, maintenance and other increased costs that may arise. Such
issues with our products could result in our customers’ delaying or cancelling planned orders. Our inability to meet our quality assurance standards or
adverse publicity affecting our reputation as a result of accidents, equipment failures, or delayed or failed production of our products could have a
material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.
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Our operating results may fluctuate significantly, which makes our future operating results difficult to predict and could cause our operating results
to fall below expectations or any guidance that we may provide.

Our quarterly and annual operating results may fluctuate significantly, which makes it difficult for us to predict our future operating results. These
fluctuations may occur due to a variety of factors, many of which are outside of our control, including:

. our ability to accurately predict and meet customer demand;

. the cost of raw materials or supplied components critical for the manufacture and operation of our systems, products, and technologies;

. successful ramp-up of new manufacturing sites and facilities;

. the timing and cost of, and level of investment in, research and development relating to our technologies and our current or future
facilities;

. delays in the development of solutions for customers and/or tooling to manufacture products, and/or manufacturing delays;

. developments involving our competitors;

. changes in governmental regulations or in the status of our regulatory approvals or applications;

. future accounting pronouncements or changes in our accounting policies;

. the impact of epidemics or pandemics, including current business disruption and related financial impact resulting from the

global COVID-19 health crisis; and

. general market conditions and other factors, including factors unrelated to our operating performance or the operating performance of our
competitors.

The individual or cumulative effects of factors discussed above could result in large fluctuations and unpredictability in our quarterly and annual
operating results. As a result, comparing our operating results on a period-to-period basis may not be meaningful.

This variability and unpredictability could also result in our failing to meet the expectations of industry or financial analysts or investors for any
period. If our revenue or operating results fall below the expectations of analysts or investors or below any guidance we may provide, or if any guidance
we provide is below the expectations of analysts or investors, the price of our common stock could decline substantially. Such a stock price decline
could occur even when we have met any previously publicly stated guidance we may provide.

Certain contracts granting exclusivity rights to customers may limit our ability to sell certain products in certain markets.

We have entered into certain agreements with customers, which, subject to the terms therein, grant these customers the exclusive right to purchase
certain products from us for a contractually specified period of time. We may enter into similar agreements in the future. These arrangements could
prevent us from selling products to certain prospective customers, which could have a material and adverse impact on our potential revenues and our
ability more generally to expand our customer base and product lines.

We face, and will face, substantial competition, and if we are unable to continue developing innovative products and technologies and/or scale our
production, we will cede market share to our competitors.

We face and will face substantial competition from a variety of companies in the fiber-based segment, as well as from companies in the plastic-
based and plastic alternative segments. Some competitors’ products are suitable for a range of uses at a price that may be lower than our product
offerings. Many of these companies
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have longer operating histories, greater name recognition, larger customer bases, and significantly greater financial, sales and marketing, manufacturing,
technical, and other resources than us. Our competitors may be able to adapt more quickly to new or emerging technologies, changes in customer
requirements and changes in laws and regulations. In addition, current and potential competitors have established or may establish financial or strategic
relationships among themselves or with existing or potential customers or other third parties. Accordingly, new competitors or alliances among
competitors could emerge and rapidly acquire significant market share. There can be no assurance that we can develop products that are more effective
or achieve greater market acceptance than competitive products, or that our competitors will not succeed in developing products and technologies that
are more effective than those being developed by us and that would therefore render our products and technologies less competitive or even obsolete.
We cannot assure you that we will be able to compete successfully against current or new competitors. We believe our ability to compete successfully in
designing, engineering, and manufacturing our products at significantly reduced cost to customers does and will depend on a number of factors, which
may change in the future due to increased competition, our ability to develop new technologies and to meet our customers’ needs and the availability of
our offerings. If we are unable to compete successfully, our business, results of operations and financial condition would be adversely affected.

We may not be able to adequately protect our patents and other intellectual property assets, particularly those that subcontract manufacturers
located in China and elsewhere may have access to, or third parties may allege that we infringe on their proprietary rights, all of which could
adversely affect our competitive position and reduce the value of our products, and result in litigation to protect our patents and intellectual property
that may be costly.

Our commercial success depends in part on our ability to obtain patent protection for technologies and products we develop, to preserve trade
secrets and to operate without infringing the proprietary rights of others. There can be no assurance that any patents or patent applications that we own,
obtain or file or are able to obtain or license from third parties will afford any competitive advantages or will not be challenged or circumvented by third
parties. We rely on subcontractors in China to manufacture a variety of our products, and there has been large coverage by the media in recent years of
intellectual property theft by Chinese or other firms. We might not be successful in protecting our intellectual property as it relates to these
subcontractors or as it relates to our current or future competitors and suppliers. Furthermore, there can be no assurance that others will not
independently develop similar technologies or duplicate any technology developed by us. Because of the extensive time required for development and
testing of a potential product, it is possible that before any of our potential products can be commercialized, any related patents may expire or may have
only a brief remaining life span following commercialization, thus reducing any advantage of the patents.

If we are not able to obtain patent coverage or defend the patent protection for our technologies, then we will not be able to exclude competitors
from developing or marketing competing technologies, and we may not generate enough revenues from product sales to justify the cost of development
of our technologies and to achieve or maintain profitability. Our patent position involves complex legal and factual questions. Accordingly, we cannot
predict the breadth of claims that may be allowed or enforced in our patents or in third-party patents. Patents may not be issued for any pending or future
pending patent applications owned by us, and claims allowed under any issued patent or future issued patent owned by us may not be valid or
sufficiently broad to protect our technologies. Moreover, we may be unable to protect certain of our intellectual property in the U.S. or in foreign
countries. Foreign jurisdictions may not afford the same protections as U.S. law, and we cannot ensure that foreign patent applications will have the
same scope as the U.S. patents. There may be many countries in which we will choose not to file or maintain patents because of the costs involved.
Competitors may also design around our technology or develop competing technologies.

Any issued patents owned by or licensed to us now or in the future may be challenged, invalidated, or circumvented. To the extent competitors or
other third parties develop and market products or procedures that we believe infringe our patents and proprietary rights, we may be compelled to
initiate lawsuits to protect and enforce our intellectual property rights. Additionally, we may be required to defend against claims by third
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parties that allege infringement by us of their patents or proprietary rights. Such litigation is typically expensive, time-consuming, and uncertain as to
outcome, and may involve opponents who have much more extensive financial resources than we do. Such litigation and any unfavorable outcomes
could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

We rely in part on trade secrets to protect our technology. Our failure to obtain or maintain trade secret protection could limit our ability to
compete.

We rely on trade secrets to protect much of our technology and proprietary information, especially where we believe patent protection is not
appropriate or obtainable. However, trade secrets are difficult to protect. Litigating a claim that a third party had illegally obtained and was using our
trade secrets would be expensive and time consuming, and the outcome would be unpredictable.

Moreover, if our competitors independently develop similar knowledge, methods and know-how, it will be difficult for us to enforce our rights and
our business could be materially harmed.

We face various risks related to the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic and similar public health crises, which may have material adverse effects on our
business, financial position, results of operations and/or liquidity.

We face various risks related to health epidemics, pandemics, and similar outbreaks, including the global outbreak of COVID-19. Such risks
include disruptions or restrictions on our employees’ ability to work effectively, as well as temporary closures of our facilities or the facilities of our
customers or suppliers.

It is possible that the continued spread of COVID-19 could also cause further disruption in our supply chain, including the delivery of our
manufacturing equipment; cause delay or limit the ability of other customers to perform, including in making timely payments to us; and cause other
unpredictable events. In addition, the continued spread of COVID-19 has led to disruption and volatility in the global capital markets, which increases
the cost of capital and adversely impacts access to capital.

The situation surrounding COVID-19 remains fluid as new variants arise and the efficacy of vaccines against such variants remains untested. The
continuing global pandemic’s impact on our business, results of operations, financial condition, expected cash flows, and liquidity increases the longer
the virus impacts activity levels in the U.S. and globally. For this reason, we cannot reasonably estimate with any degree of certainty the future impact
COVID-19 may have on our business, results of operations, financial position, and liquidity. The extent to which the COVID-19 pandemic may impact
our business, results of operations, financial condition, and liquidity will depend on future developments and numerous and evolving factors that are
highly uncertain, vary by market, and cannot be accurately predicted or quantified at this time, including the duration and spread of the outbreak; new
information concerning its transmission and severity; government mandated restrictions and regulations; business and workforce regulations and
disruptions; impact on demand for our products; the effectiveness of actions taken to contain and treat the disease; actions taken or that might be taken
by governments, businesses, or individuals to contain or reduce its repercussions and mitigate its economic implications; evolving macroeconomic
factors, including general economic uncertainty, unemployment rates, and recessionary pressures; decreased consumer spending levels; reduction or
changes in customer demand for our products; our ability to manufacture, sell, and provide our products, including as a result of travel restrictions,
closed borders, operating restrictions imposed on our facilities and employees, or reduced ability of our employees to continue to work efficiently;
increased operating costs (Whether as a result of changes to our supply chain, increased costs for our equipment, or increased employee costs or
otherwise); collectability of customer accounts; additional and prolonged devaluation of other countries’ currencies relative to the dollar; and the general
impact of the pandemic on our customers, employees, suppliers, vendors, and other stakeholders. Additionally, customers might defer decision making,
delay orders, or seek to renegotiate or terminate existing agreements.
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The impact of COVID-19 may also exacerbate other risks discussed herein, any of which could have a material adverse effect on us. This situation
is changing rapidly, and additional impacts may arise that of which we are not currently aware.

We are highly dependent on our senior management team, particularly the services of Troy Swope and Yoke Chung, and other highly skilled
personnel, and if we are not successful in attracting or retaining highly qualified personnel, we may not be able to successfully implement our
business strategy.

We are highly dependent on our full senior management team and on our ability to attract, motivate, develop, and retain a sufficient number of
other skilled personnel, including such personnel in manufacturing and quality assurance, engineering, design, finance, marketing, sales, and support
functions. Certain members of our senior management team, including Troy Swope and Yoke Chung, have extensive experience in the materials science
industry, and we believe that their depth of experience is instrumental to our continued success. The loss of any one or more members of our senior
management team for any reason, including resignation or retirement, could impair our ability to execute our business strategy and could have a material
adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Competition for qualified highly skilled personnel can be strong, and we can provide no assurance that we will be successful in attracting or
retaining such personnel now or in the future. Any inability to recruit, develop, and retain qualified employees may result in high employee turnover and
may force us to expend significant resources to conduct searches for new, qualified employees and to pay significantly higher wages, which may harm
our profitability or could result in difficulties performing under our contracts with customers if our needs for such employees were unmet. Additionally,
we do not carry key man insurance for any of our management executives, and the loss of any key employee or our inability to recruit, develop and
retain these individuals as needed could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

We may rely heavily on future collaborative or joint venture partners to expand our manufacturing, product, geographic, and sales reach.

We may enter into strategic partnerships to develop and commercialize our current and future research and development programs with other
companies to accomplish one or more of the following:

. obtain capital, equipment, and facilities;

. obtain funding for research and development programs, product development programs and commercialization activities;
. obtain expertise in and/or otherwise enter relevant markets;

. obtain access to raw materials; and/or

. obtain sales, marketing, and manufacturing services or support.

We may not be successful in establishing or maintaining suitable partnerships, and we may not be able to negotiate collaboration agreements
having terms satisfactory to us or at all. Failure to make or maintain these arrangements or a delay or failure in a collaborative partner’s performance
under any such arrangements could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

As part of growing our business, we may make acquisitions. If we fail to successfully select, execute or integrate our acquisitions, then our business,
results of operations and financial condition could be materially adversely affected, and our stock price could decline.

From time to time, we may undertake acquisitions to add new products, product offerings, technologies, acquire talent, gain new sales channels or
enter into new markets or sales territories. In addition to possible
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stockholder approval, we may need approvals and licenses from relevant government authorities for the acquisitions and to comply with any applicable
laws and regulations, which could result in increased delay and costs, and may disrupt our business strategy if such approvals and licenses are not
obtained. Furthermore, acquisitions and the subsequent integration of new assets, businesses, key personnel, customers, vendors and suppliers require
significant attention from our management and could result in a diversion of resources from our existing business, and we may be unable to successfully
complete such integration, which in turn could have an adverse effect on our operations. Acquired assets or businesses may not generate the financial
results we expect. Acquisitions could result in the use of substantial amounts of cash, potentially dilutive issuances of equity securities and exposure to
potential unknown liabilities of the acquired business. Moreover, the costs of identifying and consummating acquisitions may be significant.

We may be subject to product recalls and product liability claims that may not be covered by insurance and could require us to incur significant
expenses and pay substantial sums.

We are subject to an inherent risk of, and adverse publicity associated with, product liability and other liability claims, whether or not such claims
are valid. Product liability or other claims may exceed our product liability insurance coverage limits. A successful product liability claim that exceeds
our insurance coverage limits could require us to pay substantial sums and could have a material adverse effect on us.

Any product recall in the future, whether it involves our or a competitor’s product, may result in negative publicity, damage our brand or market
acceptance of, or attitude toward, plant-based fiber products, and materially and adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial
condition. In the future, we may voluntarily or involuntarily initiate a recall if any of our products are proven to be or possibly could be defective or
noncompliant with applicable environmental or other laws and regulations, including health and safety standards. Such recalls involve significant
expense and diversion of management attention and other resources, which could adversely affect our brand image, as well as our business, results of
operations and financial condition.

A significant portion of our business relates to designing, developing, engineering, and manufacturing plant-based fiber products. New
technologies may be untested or unproven. Failure of some of these products or their formulations or unknown safety or other issues could result in
restrictions on the marketing of our products, withdrawal of our products from the market as well as possible civil or criminal penalties. Accordingly, we
may incur liabilities that are unique to our products.

We endeavor to obtain insurance coverage from established insurance carriers to cover these risks and liabilities consistent with industry norms.
However, the amount of insurance coverage that we maintain may not be adequate to cover all claims or liabilities. Existing coverage may be canceled
while we remain exposed to the risk, and it is not possible to obtain insurance to protect against all operational risks, natural hazards and liabilities.

We have historically insured our product offerings to the extent that insurance was available on acceptable premiums and other terms. This
insurance will not protect us against all losses due to specified exclusions, deductibles and material change limitations, and it may be difficult to insure
against certain risks. In addition, problems and delays in development or delivery as a result of issues with respect to design, technology, patent rights,
labor, learning curve assumptions, or materials and components could prevent us from achieving contractual requirements.

The price and availability of insurance fluctuates significantly. Although we have historically been able to obtain insurance coverage, we cannot
guarantee that we will be able to do so in the future. Any determination we make as to whether to obtain insurance coverage will depend on a variety of
factors, including, among others, the availability of insurance in the market and the cost of available insurance. Insurance market conditions or factors
outside our control at the time we are in the market for the required insurance could cause premiums to be
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significantly higher than current estimates and could reduce amounts of available coverage. The cost of our insurance has been increasing and may
continue to increase. Higher premiums on insurance policies will reduce our operating income by the amount of such increased premiums. If the terms
become less favorable than those currently available, there may be limits on the amount of coverage that we can obtain, or we may not be able to obtain
insurance at all.

In addition, any accident or incident for which we are liable, even if fully insured, could negatively affect our standing with our customers and the
public, thereby making it more difficult for us to compete effectively, and could significantly impact the cost and availability of adequate insurance in
the future. Any disruption of our ability to operate our business could result in a material decrease in our revenues or significant additional costs to
replace, repair, or ensure our assets, which could have a material adverse impact on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

We may be adversely affected by other economic, business and/or competitive factors.

The global economy can be negatively impacted by a variety of factors such as the spread or fear of spread of contagious diseases (such as
COVID-19) in locations where our products are sold, man-made or natural disasters, actual or threatened war, terrorist activity, political unrest, civil
strife and other geopolitical uncertainty. Such adverse and uncertain economic conditions may impact retail, foodservice, and other customer and
consumer demand for our products. In addition, our ability to manage normal commercial relationships with our suppliers, subcontract manufacturers,
retail customers, foodservice customers, consumers, and creditors may suffer. Our results of operations depend upon, among other things, the financial
health and strength of our customers as well as our suppliers or other third parties on which we rely, our ability to maintain and increase sales volume
with our existing retail, foodservice, and other customers, our ability to attract new customers, and our ability to provide products that fulfill our
customers’ needs at the right price. Decreases in demand for our products without a corresponding decrease in costs would put downward pressure on
margins and would negatively impact our financial results. Prolonged unfavorable economic conditions or uncertainty may have an adverse effect on our
sales and profitability.

Changes in the U.S. and global social, political, regulatory and economic conditions or in laws and policies governing foreign trade,
manufacturing, development and investment could also adversely affect our business. In addition, the United Kingdom’s exit from the EU on
January 31, 2020, may yet result in the imposition of tariffs or other trade barriers that could have an adverse impact on our results of operation.
Additionally, the remaining uncertainty surrounding this transition may have an effect on global economic conditions and the stability of global financial
markets, which in turn could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition. In extreme cases, we could
experience interruptions in production due to various micro and macroeconomic conditions, including reduced customer spending in the wake of weaker
economic performance. If global economic conditions remain volatile for a prolonged period or experience further disruptions, our business, results of
operations and financial condition could be adversely affected.

Adverse publicity stemming from any incident involving us, our customers, users of our products, other operators in the sustainable materials sector,
or our competitors could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

We are at risk of adverse publicity stemming from any public incident involving our company and brand, customers, users of our products,
employees, competitors, or other operators in the sustainable materials sector. If our products or some other company’s plant-based fiber products are
sold to customers, and such customers were to be involved in a public incident, accident, or catastrophe, this could create an adverse public perception
of our products or plant-based fiber technology generally and result in decreased customer demand for our products or plant-based fiber products
generally, which in either case could cause a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition. The insurance we
carry may be inapplicable or inadequate to cover any such incident, accident, or catastrophe. In the event that our insurance is inapplicable or not
adequate, we may be forced to bear substantial losses from any incident, accident or catastrophe related to our products.
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Following the completion of the Business Combination, including the PIPE Investment, we will still require substantial additional funding to
finance our operations, but adequate additional financing may not be available when we need it, on acceptable terms, or at all.

Prior to the Business Combination, we financed our operations and capital expenditures primarily through funding from private sources. Even
following the completion of the Business Combination, including the PIPE Investment, we will need to raise capital through public or private financing
or other arrangements. Such financing may not be available on acceptable terms, if at all, and our failure to raise capital when needed could harm our
business. For example, the global COVID-19 health crisis and related financial impact has resulted in, and may continue to result in, significant
disruption and volatility of global financial markets that could adversely impact our ability to access capital. We may sell equity securities or debt
securities in one or more transactions at prices and in a manner as we may determine from time to time. If we sell any such securities in subsequent
transactions, our current investors may be materially diluted. Any debt financing, if available, may involve restrictive covenants and could reduce our
operational flexibility or profitability. If we cannot raise funds on acceptable terms, we may not be able to meet our working capital needs, grow our
business, or respond to competitive pressures, any of which could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, liquidity, and
financial condition.

Our financial results may vary significantly from quarter to quarter.

We expect our revenue and operating results to vary from quarter to quarter. We may incur significantly greater losses than we have predicted.
Reductions in revenue or increased costs in a particular quarter could lead to lower profitability or increased losses in that quarter because a relatively
large amount of our expenses are fixed in the short-term. We may incur significant operating expenses during the start-up and early stages of large
contracts and may not be able to recognize corresponding revenue in that same or future quarters. We may also incur additional expenses when contracts
are terminated or expire and are not renewed. We may also incur additional expenses when companies are newly acquired. We may also incur additional
expenses if we fail to manage our operations efficiently, which additional expenses could prove substantial.

Additional factors that may cause our financial results to fluctuate from quarter to quarter include those addressed elsewhere in this “Risk Factors”
section and the following factors, among others:

. the terms of customer contracts that affect the timing of revenue recognition;

. variability in demand for our products and solutions;

. commencement, completion, or termination of contracts during any particular quarter;

. timing of shipments and product deliveries;

. our ability to commence production of new products;

. delays in our design, development, and/or production of new products;

. the costs of remediating unknown defects, errors, or performance problems of our product offerings;

. costs related to government inquiries;

. strategic decisions by us or our competitors, such as acquisitions, divestitures, spin-offs, and joint ventures;
. strategic investments or changes in business strategy;

. changes in the extent to which we use subcontractors and the ability of those subcontractors to comply with production and product

delivery requirements;

. the inability to continue to add new customers or increase demand for our products;
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. changes in our effective tax rate, including changes in our judgment as to the necessity of the valuation allowance recorded against our
deferred tax assets; and

. the length of sales cycles.

Significant fluctuations in our operating results for a particular quarter could cause us in the future to fall out of compliance with any debt
covenants to which we may be subject, which if not waived, could restrict our access to capital and cause us to take extreme measures to pay down the
debt and could have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Government regulation and legislation may require us to modify our operations, including formulations that we utilize in our products.

Several intergovernmental organizations, countries and other political subdivisions of countries have enacted, or are considering enacting, laws
and regulations designed to encourage or mandate the increased use of sustainable alternatives to plastics, or to dictate how much water, power, or other
inputs may be used to manufacture products. These laws and regulations could require us to modify our manufacturing operations and processes,
product designs, and/or product formulations to comply with these laws and regulations. Our inability or failure to comply with these laws and
regulations could negatively affect our ability to manufacture and supply products, and/or the demand for, and marketability of, our products, which
would have an adverse impact on our financial results.

Our business is subject to a wide variety of additional extensive and evolving government laws and regulations. Failure to comply with such laws
and regulations could have a material adverse effect on our business.

We are subject to a wide variety of laws and regulations relating to various aspects of our business and some of these laws may pose risks and
impose unforeseen costs to our business, including laws and regulations with respect to employment and labor, health care, tax, privacy and data
security, health and safety, and environmental issues. Laws and regulations at the foreign, federal, state, and local levels frequently change, especially in
relation to new and emerging industries, and we cannot always reasonably predict the impact from, or the ultimate cost of compliance with, current or
future regulatory or administrative changes. We monitor these developments and devote some of management’s time and external resources towards
compliance with these laws, regulations, and guidelines, and such compliance places a significant burden on management’s time and other resources,
and it may limit our ability to expand into certain jurisdictions. Moreover, changes in law, the imposition of new or additional regulations or the
enactment of any new or more stringent legislation or policies that impacts our business could require us to change the way we operate and could have a
material adverse effect on our business, sales, profitability and financial condition.

Failure to comply with these laws, such as with respect to obtaining and maintaining licenses, certifications, authorizations and permits critical for
the operation of our business, may result in civil penalties or private lawsuits, or the suspension or revocation of licenses, certifications, authorizations
or permits, which could have a material adverse effect on our operations.

Additionally, the regulation of our industry is still evolving, and new or different laws, regulations, or policies could affect our operations, increase
direct compliance costs for us, impact the marketability of one or more of our products, or increase the cost of the prices of materials that we receive
from third-party suppliers or contractors.

Our reputation and ability to do business may be impacted by the improper conduct of our employees, agents or business partners.

We have implemented compliance controls, training, policies and procedures designed to prevent and detect reckless or criminal acts from being
committed by our employees, agents or business partners that would violate
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the laws of the jurisdictions in which we operate, including laws governing payments to government officials, such as the FCPA, false claims,
procurement integrity, cost accounting and billing, competition, information security and data privacy and the terms of our contracts. This risk of
improper conduct may increase as we continue to grow and expand our operations. We cannot ensure, however, that our controls, training, policies and
procedures will prevent or detect all such reckless, negligent, or criminal acts. If not prevented, such reckless, negligent, or criminal acts could subject
us to civil or criminal investigations, monetary and non-monetary penalties and suspension, and could have a material adverse effect on our ability to
conduct business and our reputation. In addition, misconduct involving data security lapses resulting in the compromise of personal information or the
improper use of our customers’ sensitive or confidential information could result in remediation costs, regulatory sanctions against us, and serious harm
to our reputation.

Failure to comply with federal, state, and foreign laws and regulations relating to privacy, data protection and consumer protection, or the
expansion of current or the enactment of new laws or regulations relating to privacy, data protection and consumer protection, could adversely
affect our business, results of operations and financial condition.

We collect, store, process and use personal information and customer data, and we rely in part on third parties that are not directly under our
control to manage certain of these operations and to collect and store this payment information. Due to the sensitivity of the personal information and
data we and these third parties manage and expect to manage in the future, as well as the nature of our customer base, the security features of our
information systems are critical. A variety of federal, state, and foreign laws and regulations govern the collection, use, retention, storage, destruction,
sharing and security of this information. Laws and regulations relating to privacy, data protection and consumer protection are evolving and subject to
potentially differing interpretations. These requirements may not be harmonized, may be interpreted and applied in a manner that is inconsistent from
one jurisdiction to another or may conflict with other rules or our practices. As a result, our practices may not have complied or may not comply in the
future with all such laws, regulations, requirements and obligations. For example, in January 2020, the California Consumer Privacy Act (“CCPA”) took
effect, which provides California consumers with enhanced rights to access, correct, delete and limit the processing of their personal information by
companies, and which requires companies doing business in California to implement and maintain operational capabilities to respond to certain requests
made by California consumers in respect of such rights. The CCPA provides a private right of action for California consumers whose personal
information is improperly disclosed.

We expect that new industry standards, laws, and regulations will continue to be proposed regarding privacy, data protection, and information
security in many jurisdictions, including the California Privacy Rights Act (“CPRA”), which was passed by California voters in November 2020 to
amend the CCPA and establish a new regulatory authority in California. Several other U.S. states have introduced or passed similar legislation to the
CCPA. We cannot yet determine the impact such future laws, regulations, and standards may have on our business. Complying with these evolving
obligations is costly. For instance, expanding definitions and interpretations of what constitutes “personal data” (or the equivalent) within the U.S., the
European Economic Area (the “EEA”), and elsewhere may increase our compliance costs and legal liability.

We are also subject or may become subject to certain non-U.S. privacy rules and regulations, such as GDPR, or the EU ePrivacy Regulation,
which is currently in draft form, and national laws supplementing GDPR, including the Data Protection Act of 2018 (“DPA4 18”) in the United Kingdom.
GDPR and DPA 18 require companies to meet stringent requirements regarding the processing of personal data of individuals located in the EEA.
GDPR and DPA 18 also include significant penalties for noncompliance, which may result in monetary penalties of up to the higher of €20.0 million or
4% of a company’s worldwide revenue for the preceding financial year for the most serious violations. GDPR, DPA 18, and other similar regulations
require companies to give specific types of notice, and informed consent is required for certain actions. The GDPR also imposes additional conditions in
order to satisfy informed consent requirements, such as prohibitions on certain forms of bundled consent. Once the EU ePrivacy Regulation is adopted,
it will impose additional obligations.
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A significant data breach or any failure, or perceived failure, by us to comply with any federal, state or foreign privacy or consumer protection-
related laws, regulations, or other principles or orders to which we may be subject or other legal obligations relating to privacy or consumer protection
could adversely affect our reputation, brand, and business, and may result in claims, investigations, proceedings, litigation, or enforcement actions
against us by governmental entities. This may result in penalties, liabilities or loss, increased compliance or operational costs, or otherwise require us to
change our operations and/or cease using certain data sets. Depending on the nature of the information compromised, we may also have obligations to
notify users, law enforcement, or payment companies about the incident and may need to provide some form of remedy for the individuals affected by
the incident.

We are exposed to risks related to geopolitical and economic factors, laws, and regulations, and our international business subjects us to numerous
political and economic factors, legal requirements, cross-cultural considerations, and other risks associated with doing business globally.

Our international business is subject to both U.S. and foreign laws and regulations, including, without limitation, laws and regulations relating to
export/import controls, economic sanctions, data privacy and protection, anti-corruption (including the anti-bribery, books and records, and internal
controls provisions of the FCPA governing interactions with foreign government officials), the anti-boycott provisions of the U.S. Export Administration
Act, security restrictions, and intellectual property. Failure by us, our employees, independent contractors, subsidiaries, affiliates, subcontract
manufacturers, partners, or others with whom we work to comply with any of these applicable laws and regulations could result in administrative, civil,
commercial, or criminal liabilities, including suspension of our export/import privileges. New regulations and requirements, or changes to existing ones
in the various countries in which we operate can significantly increase our costs and risks of doing business internationally.

Changes in laws, regulations, political leadership and environment, and/or security risks may dramatically affect our ability to conduct or continue
to conduct business in international markets, including sales to customers and purchases from suppliers outside the U.S. We may also be impacted by
shifts in U.S. and foreign national policies and priorities, political decisions, and geopolitical relationships, any of which may be influenced by changes
in the threat environment, political leadership, geopolitical uncertainties, world events, bilateral and multi-lateral relationships, and economic and
political factors. Any changes to these policies could impact our operations and/or export or import authorizations, or delay purchasing decisions or
payments and the provision of supplies and goods. Global economic conditions and fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates could further impact
our business. For example, the tightening of credit in financial markets outside of the U.S. could adversely affect the ability of our customers and
suppliers to obtain financing and could result in a delay, decrease in or cancellation of orders for our products or impact the ability of our customers to
make payments.

We also are increasingly dependent on a small number of suppliers and we face risks related to their failure to perform in accordance with the
contracts and applicable laws, particularly where we rely on a sole source supplier. The occurrence and impact of these factors is difficult to predict, but
one or more of them could have a material adverse effect on our financial position, results of operations and/or cash flows.

We are subject to environmental regulation and may incur substantial costs.

We are subject to federal, state, local, and foreign laws, regulations, and ordinances relating to the protection of the environment, including those
relating to emissions to the air, discharges to surface and subsurface waters, safe drinking water, greenhouse gases, and the management of hazardous
substances and waste materials. Federal, state, and local laws and regulations relating to the protection of the environment may require a current or
previous owner or operator of real estate to investigate and remediate any hazardous substances or releases at or from the property. Compliance with
environmental laws and regulations can require significant expenditures. In addition, we could incur costs to comply with such current or future laws
and regulations, the violation of which could lead to substantial fines and penalties.
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Our ability to use net operating losses to offset future taxable income will be subject to certain limitations as a result of past transactions and the
Business Combination and related transactions.

As of December 31, 2020, we had federal net operating loss carryforwards of $113.8 million, all of which was generated after 2017 and can be
carried forward indefinitely. As of December 31, 2020, we had state net operating loss carryforwards of $115.2 million, which begin to expire in various
amounts in 2038. A portion of these net operating loss carryforwards could expire unused and be unavailable to offset future income tax liabilities. In
addition, in general, under Section 382 of the Code and certain related provisions, a corporation that undergoes an “ownership change” is subject to
limitations on its ability to utilize its pre-change net operating losses (“NOLs”) and other tax attributes, to offset future taxable income or taxes. For
these purposes, an ownership change generally occurs where the aggregate stock ownership of one or more stockholders or groups of stockholders who
owns at least 5% of a corporation’s stock increases its ownership by more than 50 percentage points over its lowest ownership percentage within a
specified testing period. A portion of our existing NOLs is subject to limitations arising from previous ownership changes in 2021. In addition, the
Business Combination and the PIPE Investment may constitute an ownership change under Section 382 of the Code. Accordingly, we may not be able to
utilize a material portion of our NOLs. Our NOLs may also be impaired under state law. None of our existing NOLs are subject to the so called separate-
return-limitation-year (“SRLY”) rules that may apply to consolidated tax groups.

Our ability to utilize our NOLs is also conditioned upon our attaining profitability and generating U.S. federal and state taxable income. We have
incurred significant net losses in the past, and it is anticipated that we will continue to incur significant losses for the foreseeable future; therefore, we do
not know whether or when we will generate the U.S. federal or state taxable income necessary to utilize our NOL carryforwards, even to the extent they
are not subject to limitation by Section 382 of the Code.

Changes in tax laws or regulations may increase tax uncertainty and adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition and our
effective tax rate.

We will be subject to taxes in the U.S. and certain foreign jurisdictions. Due to economic and political conditions, tax rates in various jurisdictions,
including the U.S., may be subject to change. Our future effective tax rates could be affected by changes in the mix of earnings in countries with
differing statutory tax rates, changes in the valuation of deferred tax assets and liabilities, and changes in tax laws or their interpretation. For example,
legislative proposals recently introduced by the Biden administration and the U.S. Congress would, if enacted, impose a minimum book income tax on
certain large corporations, increase U.S. taxation of international business operations, and make other substantial changes to other provisions of the U.S.
tax laws. Any such tax changes could materially increase the amount of taxes we may be required to pay, which could adversely affect our business,
results of operations and financial condition. In addition, governmental tax authorities are increasingly scrutinizing the tax positions of companies.
Many countries in the EU, as well as a number of other countries and organizations, such as the Organization for Economic Cooperation and
Development, are actively considering changes to existing tax laws that, if enacted, could increase our tax obligations in countries where we do business
and adversely impact our results of operations and financial condition. Other changes that may be enacted in the future, including changes to tax laws
enacted by state or local governments in jurisdictions in which we operate, could result in further changes to state and local taxation and materially
adversely affect our financial position and results of operations.

In addition, we may be subject to income tax audits by various tax jurisdictions. Although we believe our income tax liabilities are reasonably
estimated and accounted for in accordance with applicable laws and principles, an adverse resolution by one or more taxing authorities could have a
material impact on our results of operations.

92

Copyright © 2022 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document


https://www.secdatabase.com

Table of Contents

Certain U.S. state tax authorities may assert that we have a state nexus and seek to impose state and local income taxes which could harm our
results of operations.

There is a risk that certain state tax authorities where we do not currently file a state income tax return could assert that we are liable for state and
local income taxes based upon income or gross receipts allocable to such states. States are becoming increasingly aggressive in asserting a nexus for
state income tax purposes. If a state tax authority successfully asserts that our activities give rise to a nexus, we could be subject to state and local
taxation, including penalties and interest attributable to prior periods. Such tax assessments, penalties, and interest may adversely impact our results of
operations.

If we experience a significant disruption in our information technology systems, including as a result of natural disasters or security breaches, or if
we fail to implement new systems and software successfully, our business, results of operations and financial condition could be adversely affected.

We depend on a primary third-party provider and other secondary third-party providers to develop and maintain the information technology
systems we use throughout Footprint to, among other functions, control our manufacturing processes; process orders and bill, collect, and make
payments; interact with customers and suppliers; manage inventory; and otherwise conduct business. We also depend on these systems to respond to
customer inquiries; contribute to our overall internal control processes; maintain records of our property, plant, and equipment; and record and pay
amounts due to vendors and other creditors. The failure of our information technology systems to perform as we anticipate could disrupt our business
and could result in transaction errors, processing inefficiencies, and the loss of sales and customers. Our reliance on third parties for substantially all of
our information technology systems presents certain risks, such as a lack of direct control and oversight over our systems and data. In the future, we may
upgrade these systems or transition to an in-house solution for our information technology needs. As we upgrade or change systems, we may also
experience interruptions in service, loss of data, or reduced functionality and other unforeseen material issues that could adversely impact our ability to
provide quotes, take customer orders, and otherwise run our business in a timely manner. In addition, if our new systems were to fail to provide accurate
and increased visibility into pricing and cost structures, it may be difficult to improve or maximize our profit margins. As a result of any of these, our
business, results of operations and financial condition could be adversely affected.

In addition, power losses, telecommunications outages, damage to physical infrastructure, such as by natural disasters or fire, and similar events
could compromise confidential, business critical information, cause a disruption in our operations, or harm our reputation. In the event that our third-
party providers’ systems or service abilities on which we rely, particularly those of the primary provider, are hindered by any of the events discussed
above, our ability to operate may be impaired. We may experience periodic system interruptions from time to time. Any slowdown or failure of our
underlying technology infrastructure could harm our business, reputation, and ability to execute on our business plan. Our disaster recovery plan or
those of our third-party providers may be inadequate, and our business interruption insurance may not be sufficient to compensate us for the losses that
could occur. A decision by our third-party providers to close facilities without adequate notice, or other unanticipated problems, could also adversely
impact our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Our third-party information technology service providers’ infrastructure also could be subject to break-ins, cyber-attacks, denial of service,
sabotage, computer viruses, other malicious code, unauthorized access attempts, and/or intentional acts of vandalism and other misconduct, from a
spectrum of actors ranging in sophistication from threats common to most industries to more advanced and persistent, highly organized adversaries. Any
of the foregoing could result in data leaks or otherwise compromise our confidential or proprietary information or that of our customers and/or suppliers
and disrupt our operations. There can be no assurance that any controls and procedures that we have in place will be sufficient to protect us, and any
security breach that involves loss of customer- or supplier-provided data could subject us to loss of a customer or supplier, loss of a contract, litigation
costs and legal damages, and reputational harm. Further, as cyber threats are continually evolving, our controls and procedures may become inadequate,
and we may be required to devote additional resources to
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modify or enhance our systems in the future. We may also be required to expend resources to remediate cyber-related incidents or to enhance and
strengthen our cyber security. Any such disruptions to our information technology systems, breaches or compromises of data, and/or misappropriation of
information could result in violation of privacy and other laws, litigation, fines, negative publicity, lost sales, or business delays. Any of the foregoing
could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

We will incur debt in the future and our maintenance of higher levels of indebtedness could have adverse consequences, including impairing our
ability to obtain additional financing and limiting our ability to operate due to agreements governing our debt.

We have incurred debt in the past. As of December 31, 2021, we had $49.6 million in debt and construction financing, net of current portion. We
will incur more debt in the future. Our maintenance of higher levels of indebtedness could have adverse consequences including impairing our ability to
obtain additional financing in the future.

Our level of debt places significant demands on our cash resources, which could:
. make it more difficult to satisfy our outstanding debt obligations;

. require us to dedicate a substantial portion of our cash for payments related to our debt, reducing the amount of cash flow available for
working capital, capital expenditures, and other general corporate purposes;

. limit our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in the industries in which we compete;

. place us at a competitive disadvantage with respect to our competitors, some of which have lower debt service obligations and greater
financial resources than we do;

. limit our ability to borrow additional funds;
. limit our ability to expand our operations through acquisitions; and
. increase our vulnerability to general adverse economic and industry conditions.

If we are unable to generate sufficient cash flow to service our debt and fund our operating costs, our liquidity may be adversely affected.

Footprint’s management team has limited experience managing a public company.

Most of the members of our management team have limited experience managing a publicly traded company, interacting with public company
investors, and complying with the increasingly complex laws pertaining to public companies. Our management team may not successfully or efficiently
manage their new roles and responsibilities. The transition to being a public company subjects us to significant regulatory oversight and reporting
obligations under the federal securities laws and the continuous scrutiny of securities analysts and investors. These new obligations and constituents will
require significant attention from our senior management and could divert their attention away from the day-to-day management of our business, which
could adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition.

We will incur increased costs as a result of operating as a public company, and our management will be required to devote substantial time to new
compliance initiatives.

As a public company, we will incur significant legal, accounting and other expenses that we did not incur as a private company. In addition, the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act and rules subsequently implemented by the SEC and Nasdaq have imposed various requirements on public companies, including
establishing and maintaining effective disclosure and financial controls and corporate governance practices. Our management and other personnel will
need to devote a substantial amount of time to these compliance initiatives. Moreover, these rules
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and regulations will increase our legal and financial compliance costs and will make some activities more time-consuming and costly. For example, we
expect that these rules and regulations may make it more difficult and more expensive for us to obtain director and officer liability insurance. We may
not have adequate personnel with the appropriate level of knowledge, experience and training in the accounting policies, practices, or internal control
over financial reporting required of public companies in the U.S. We are in the process of evaluating an upgrade of our finance and accounting systems
to solutions suitable for a public company, and a delay could impact our ability to or prevent us from timely reporting our operating results, timely filing
required reports with the SEC, and complying with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. The development and implementation of the standards and
controls necessary for us to achieve the level of accounting standards required of a public company in the U.S. may require costs greater than expected.
In addition, we will be required to expand our employee base and hire additional employees to support our operations as a public company, which will
increase our operating costs in future periods.

We have identified material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting. If we fail to remediate the material weaknesses, or if we
experience additional material weaknesses in the future or otherwise fail to maintain an effective system of internal controls in the future, we may
not be able to accurately or timely report our financial condition or results of operations, which may adversely affect investor confidence in us and,
as a result, the value of our common stock.

Effective internal control over financial reporting is necessary for us to provide reliable financial reports and, together with adequate disclosure
controls and procedures, is designed to prevent fraud. Any failure to implement required new or improved controls, or difficulties encountered in their
implementation, could cause us to fail to meet our reporting obligations. In addition, any testing by us, as and when required, conducted in connection
with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act or any subsequent testing by our independent registered public accounting firm, as and when required, may
reveal deficiencies in our internal control over financial reporting that are deemed to be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses or that may
require prospective or retroactive changes to our financial statements or identify other areas for further attention or improvement. Inferior internal
controls could also cause investors to lose confidence in our reported financial information, which could have a negative effect on the trading price of
our common stock.

In connection with the audit of our financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, our management identified material
weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of our annual or interim financial statements will not be
prevented or detected on a timely basis. The material weaknesses identified relate to (a) lack of a sufficient number of trained professionals with an
appropriate level of accounting knowledge, training and experience to appropriately analyze, record and disclose accounting matters timely and
accurately, and (b) lack of structures, reporting lines and appropriate authorities and responsibilities to achieve financial reporting objectives. This
deficiency in our control environment contributed to the following additional deficiencies (each of which individually represents a material weakness) in
our internal control over financial reporting.

. We did not design and maintain formal accounting policies, procedures and controls to achieve complete, accurate and timely financial
accounting, reporting and disclosures, including controls over the preparation and review of account reconciliations and journal entries.

. We did not design and maintain effective controls over certain information technology (IT) general controls for information systems that
are relevant to the preparation of our financial statements. Specifically, we did not design and maintain: (i) program change management
controls to ensure that IT program and data changes affecting financial IT applications and underlying accounting records are identified,
tested, authorized, and implemented appropriately; (ii) user access controls to ensure appropriate segregation of duties and that adequately
restrict user and privileged access to certain financial applications, programs and data to appropriate company personnel.
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Each of the control deficiencies described above could result in a misstatement of one or more account balances or disclosures that would result in
a material misstatement to the annual or interim consolidated financial statements that would not be prevented or detected. Accordingly, our
management considered the number and magnitude of individual adjustments corrected by our management and the related deficiencies, combined with
a lack of mitigating controls, and determined that, in the aggregate, the deficiencies are considered a material weakness.

To remedy the identified material weaknesses, we have implemented and continue to implement, several measures, including, among others:

. hiring additional competent and qualified accounting and reporting personnel with appropriate knowledge and experience of U.S. GAAP
and SEC financial reporting requirements;

. establishing and designing internal financial reporting structures and authorizing certain departments or capable and responsible persons to
be in charge of the overall financial management and financial objectives;

. establishing an ongoing program to provide sufficient additional training to our accounting staff, especially training related to U.S. GAAP
and SEC financial reporting requirements;

. designing and preparing accounting policies in accordance with relevant rules, especially in relation to complex and non-routine
transactions;

. enhancing company policy to ensure effective segregation of duties for our accounting staff in relation to manual journal entries; and

. hiring additional qualified and competent IT personnel who can design and maintain controls over information technology.

Although we have begun to implement measures to address the material weaknesses, the implementation of these measures may not fully address
the material weaknesses and deficiencies in our internal control over financial reporting, and we cannot conclude that these matters have been fully
remedied. Further, in the future we may determine that we have additional material weaknesses. Our failure to remediate the material weaknesses or
failure to identify and address any other material weaknesses or control deficiencies could result in inaccuracies in our financial statements and could
also impair our ability to comply with applicable financial reporting requirements and related regulatory filings on a timely basis, which could cause
investors to lose confidence in our reported financial information, which may result in volatility in and a decline in the market price of our securities.

We may become involved in claims, lawsuits, and other proceedings that could adversely affect our business, financial condition, and results of
operations.

From time to time, we may become involved in various legal proceedings relating to matters incidental to the ordinary course of our business,
including intellectual property, commercial, product liability, employment, class action, whistleblower and other litigation and claims, and governmental
and other regulatory investigations and proceedings. Such matters can be time-consuming, divert management’s attention and resources, cause us to
incur significant expenses or liability, or require us to change our business practices. Because of the potential risks, expenses, and uncertainties of
litigation, we may, from time to time, settle disputes, even where we believe that we have meritorious claims or defenses. Because litigation is inherently
unpredictable, we cannot assure you that the results of any of these actions will not have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations
and financial condition.
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Natural disasters, unusual weather conditions, epidemic outbreaks, terrorist acts, and political events could disrupt our business and we may not be
able to recover successfully, which could cause material financial loss, loss of human capital, regulatory actions, reputational harm, or legal
liability.

The occurrence of one or more natural disasters such as fires, floods and earthquakes, unusual weather conditions, epidemic or pandemic
outbreaks, terrorist attacks, or disruptive political events where our facilities are located, where our third-party suppliers’ facilities are located, or where
our customers and their distributors are located, could adversely affect our business. Natural disasters including tornados, hurricanes, floods, and
carthquakes may damage our facilities, those of our suppliers, or customers and their distributors, which could have a material adverse effect on our
business, results of operations and financial condition. Damage or destruction of our facilities, for any reason, could result in significant production
delays, which would have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition. Terrorist attacks, actual or threatened
acts of war or the escalation of current hostilities, or any other military or trade disruptions impacting our domestic or foreign suppliers of components
of our products, may impact our operations by, among other things, causing supply chain disruptions and increases in commodity prices, which could
adversely affect our raw materials or transportation costs. As we attempt to grow our operations, the potential for particular types of natural or
man-made disasters, political, economic, or infrastructure instabilities, or other country or region-specific business continuity risks increases. These
events also could cause or act to prolong an economic recession or depression in the U.S. or abroad, such as the current business disruption and related
financial impact resulting from the global COVID-19 health crisis. To the extent these events also impact one or more of our suppliers or result in the
closure of any of their facilities or our facilities, we may be unable to fulfill our other contracts. Furthermore, we cannot ensure that provisions in our
customer or supplier contracts will be legally sufficient to protect us if we are sued and our errors and omissions and product liability insurance coverage
may not provide coverage, may not be adequate, may not continue to be available on reasonable terms or in sufficient amounts to cover one or more
large claims, or the insurer may disclaim coverage as to some types of future claims. The successful assertion of any large claim against us could
seriously harm our business. Even if not successful, these claims may result in significant legal and other costs, be a distraction to our management, and
harm our reputation.

Net earnings and net assets could be materially affected by an impairment of goodwill.

We do not currently have a significant amount of goodwill recorded on our consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2021, but we anticipate
that we will record goodwill in the future in connection with future acquisitions. We are required at least annually to test the recoverability of goodwill.
The recoverability test of goodwill is based on the current fair value of our identified reporting units. Fair value measurement requires assumptions and
estimates of many critical factors, including revenue and market growth, operating cash flows, and discount rates. If general market conditions
deteriorate in portions of our business, we could experience a significant decline in the fair value of reporting units. This decline could lead to an
impairment of all or a significant portion of the goodwill balance, which could materially affect our GAAP net earnings and net assets.

The historical financial results of Footprint and our unaudited pro forma financial information included elsewhere in this proxy statement/
prospectus may not be indicative of what our actual financial position or results of operations would have been.

The historical financial results of Footprint included in this proxy statement/prospectus do not reflect the financial condition, results of operations,
or cash flows we would have achieved as a combined company during the periods presented or that we will achieve in the future. This is primarily the
result of the following factors:

. we will incur additional ongoing costs as a result of the Business Combination, including costs related to public company reporting,
investor relations, and compliance with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act; and

. our capital structure is different from that reflected in Footprint’s historical financial statements prior to the Business Combination.
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Similarly, our unaudited pro forma financial information in this proxy statement/prospectus is presented for illustrative purposes only.
Accordingly, such pro forma financial information may not be indicative of our future operating or financial performance, and our actual financial
condition and results of operations may vary materially from our pro forma results of operations and balance sheet contained elsewhere in this proxy
statement/prospectus.

Risks Related to the Company and the Business Combination

P

Unless the context requires otherwise, references to “we,” “our” and “us” in this section are to the business and operations of the Company prior
to the Business Combination and the business and operations of the Post-Combination Company as directly or indirectly affected by the Company
following the Business Combination. In addition, you should read and consider the risks associated with the business of the Company because these
risks may also affect the Post-Combination Company. Please see the section titled “Where You Can Find More Information” in this proxy statement/
prospectus.

Our Initial Stockholders have agreed to vote in favor of the Business Combination described in this proxy statement/prospectus, regardless of how
our Public Stockholders vote.

Unlike many other blank check companies in which the founders agree to vote their founder shares in accordance with the majority of the votes
cast by the holders of public stock in connection with an initial business combination, our Initial Stockholders have agreed to vote any shares of
Common Stock owned by them in favor of the Business Combination Proposal. As of the date hereof, our Initial Stockholders own shares equal to 20%
of our issued and outstanding shares of Common Stock. As a result, approximately 38% of our Common Stock held by Public Stockholders will need to
vote in favor of the Business Combination Proposal for the Business Combination Proposal to be approved (assuming all of the outstanding shares of
Common Stock are represented in person via the virtual meeting platform or by proxy, are entitled to vote at the Special Meeting and cast votes on the
Business Combination Proposal). Accordingly, it is more likely that the necessary stockholder approval will be received for the Business Combination
than would be the case if our Initial Stockholders agreed to vote any shares of Common Stock owned by them in accordance with the majority of the
votes cast by our Public Stockholders.

Because the Post-Combination Company will become a publicly listed company by virtue of a merger as opposed to an underwritten initial public
offering (which uses the services of one or more underwriters), less due diligence on the Post-Combination Company may have been conducted.

The Post-Combination Company will become a publicly listed company upon the completion of the Business Combination. The Business
Combination and the transactions described in this proxy statement/prospectus differ from an underwritten initial public offering. In a traditional
underwritten initial public offering, underwriters typically conduct a certain amount of due diligence on the company being taken public in order to
establish a due diligence defense against liability claims under federal securities laws. Because the Company is already a publicly listed company, an
underwriter has not been engaged. However, management and the board of directors of the Company, as well as private investors, conducted due
diligence. This due diligence, however, may be different than the due diligence undertaken by an underwriter in a traditional initial public offering. Our
Sponsor may have an inherent conflict of interest because its shares and warrants will be worthless if a business combination is not completed with
Footprint or another company during a prescribed period of time. Therefore, there could be a heightened risk of an incorrect valuation of the Post-
Combination Company’s business, which could cause potential harm to investors.
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Our Sponsor, certain members of our Board and our officers have interests in the Business Combination that are different from or are in addition to
other stockholders in recommending that stockholders vote in favor of approval of the Business Combination Proposal and approval of the other
proposals described in this proxy statement/prospectus.

When considering our Board’s recommendation that our stockholders vote in favor of the approval of the Business Combination Proposal, our
stockholders should be aware that our directors and officers have interests in the Business Combination that may be different from, or in addition to, the
interests of our stockholders. These interests include:

the fact that our Initial Stockholders have agreed not to redeem any of the Founder Shares in connection with a stockholder vote to
approve a proposed initial business combination;

the fact that our Initial Stockholders have agreed to waive their rights to conversion price adjustments with respect to any Founder Shares
they may hold in connection with the consummation of the Business Combination. Therefore, Class F Shares held by the Initial
Stockholders will convert on a one-for-one basis in connection with the consummation of the Business Combination;

the fact that our Sponsor paid an aggregate of $25,000 for 8,625,000 initial founder shares at approximately $0.003 per share, which will
become worthless if we fail to complete an initial business combination by March 1, 2023. In particular, in exchange for serving on the
Board, each of our independent directors, Messrs. Bort, Rea and Patton, received a nominal economic interest through the transfer from
our Sponsor of 25,000 Founder Shares at their original purchase price of $0.003 per share. If the Company fails to complete an initial
business combination by March 1, 2023, these Founder Shares will become worthless. As a result, our independent directors may have a
conflict of interest in determining whether a particular business is an appropriate business with which to effectuate the Company’s initial
business combination;

the fact that after giving effect to the forfeiture of up to 1,501,650 shares of Class F Stock pursuant to the Waiver and Share Surrender
Agreement, the remaining 7,123,350 Founder Shares will have a significantly higher value at the time of the Business Combination, which
if unrestricted and freely tradable would be valued at approximately $71 million (however, given the restrictions on such shares, we
believe such shares have a lesser value);

the fact that, given the differential in the purchase price that our Sponsor paid for the Founder Shares as compared to the price of the
Public Units sold in the Company IPO and the substantial number of Common Stock that our Sponsor will receive upon conversion of the
Founder Shares in connection with the Business Combination, our Sponsor and its affiliates may earn a positive rate of return on their
investment even if Common Stock trades below the price initially paid for the Public Units in the Company IPO and the Public
Stockholders experience a negative rate of return following the completion of the Business Combination;

the fact that our Initial Stockholders have agreed to waive their rights to liquidating distributions from the Trust Account with respect to
their Founder Shares if we fail to complete an initial business combination by March 1, 2023;

the fact that our Sponsor paid an aggregate of approximately $8,900,000 for its 2,966,666 Private Placement Warrants to purchase shares
of Class A Stock, and that such Private Placement Warrants will expire worthless if an initial business combination is not consummated by
March 1, 2023. The Private Placement Warrants are identical to the Public Warrants sold as part of the Public Units issued in the Company
IPO except that, so long as they are held by our Sponsor or its permitted transferees: (i) they will not be redeemable by us (except as set
forth under “Description of Securities—Warrants—Public Warrants—Redemption of Public Warrants for Cash” and “—Redemption of
Public Warrants for Class A Stock™); (ii) they (including the Class A Stock issuable upon exercise of these warrants) may not, subject to
certain limited exceptions, be transferred, assigned or sold by our Sponsor until 30 days after the completion of an initial business
combination; (iii) they may be exercised by the holders
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on a cashless basis; and (iv) they are subject to registration rights. For additional information regarding the Private Placement Warrants
and the Public Warrants, please see “Description of Securities—Warrants—Public Warrants—Redemption of Public Warrants for Cash”
and “—Redemption of Public Warrants for Class A Stock”;

the continued right of our Sponsor to hold our Class A Stock and the shares of Class A Stock to be issued to our Sponsor upon exercise of
its Private Placement Warrants following the Business Combination, subject to certain lock-up periods;

the fact that if the Trust Account is liquidated, including in the event we are unable to complete an initial business combination within the
required time period, our Sponsor has agreed to indemnify us to ensure that the proceeds in the Trust Account are not reduced below
$10.00 per public share, or such lesser per public share amount as is in the Trust Account on the liquidation date, by the claims of
prospective target businesses with which we have entered into an acquisition agreement or claims of any third party (other than our
independent public accountants) for services rendered or products sold to us, but only if such a vendor or target business has not executed
a waiver of any and all rights to seck access to the Trust Account;

the continued indemnification of our existing directors and officers and the continuation of our directors’ and officers’ liability insurance
after the Business Combination;

the fact that our Sponsor, officers and directors will lose their entire investment in us and will not be reimbursed for any out-of-pocket
expenses if an initial business combination is not consummated by March 1, 2023;

the fact that our Sponsor made available to the Company a loan of up to $4,000,000 pursuant to a promissory note, of which $1,350,000
was advanced by our Sponsor to the Company as of December 31, 2021, and that the note will mature on the earlier of February 11, 2023
and the date on which the Company consummates an initial business combination (and as such, such loan is expected to be repaid in
connection with the closing of the Business Combination);

the fact that our Sponsor, officers and directors would hold the following number of shares in the Post-Combination Company at the
closing of the Business Combination:

Number of shares of Value of Common
Name of Person/Entity Common Stock Stock®
Gores Sponsor VIII LLC-® 16,548,350 $ 165,483,500
Alec Gores® 16,548,350 $ 165,483,500
Mark Stone — —
Andrew McBride — —
Randall Bort 25,000 $ 250,000
Jeffrey Rea 25,000 $ 250,000
William Patton 25,000 $ 250,000

Assumes a value of $10.00 per share, the deemed value of the Common Stock in the Business Combination.

Represents shares held by the Sponsor which is controlled indirectly by Mr. Gores. Mr. Gores may be deemed to beneficially own 7,123,350 shares of Class F Stock and 9,500,000
shares of Class A Stock to be purchased under the Sponsor Subscription Agreement, provided, however, that the Sponsor may choose to assign its commitment to acquire such shares
pursuant to the Sponsor Subscription Agreement. Voting and disposition decisions with respect to such securities are made by Mr. Gores. Mr. Gores disclaims beneficial ownership of
these securities except to the extent of any pecuniary interest therein.

the fact that, at the closing of the Business Combination, we will enter into the Registration Rights Agreement with the Registration Rights
Holders, which provides for registration rights to Registration Rights Holders and their permitted transferees;

the fact that our Initial Stockholders have agreed to vote any shares of Common Stock owned by them in favor of the Business
Combination Proposal;
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. the fact that we entered into the Subscription Agreements with our Sponsor and certain investors, pursuant to which our Sponsor and the
investors have committed to purchase an aggregate of 31,055,000 shares of Class A Stock in a private placement for $10.00 per share on
the date of Closing, and our Sponsor has the right to assign its commitment to acquire such Class A Stock in advance of the closing of the
Business Combination; and

. the fact that we will reimburse our Sponsor for the fees and expenses it incurs in connection with the Business Combination.

In the aggregate, the Sponsor and its affiliates have approximately $94,400,000 at risk that depends upon the completion of a business
combination. Specifically, approximately $85,500,000 of such amount is the value of the Sponsor’s and its affiliates’ Class F Stock (assuming a value of
$10.00 per share, the deemed value of the Common Stock in the Business Combination), and approximately $8,900,000 of such amount is the value of
the Sponsor’s Private Placement Warrants (based on the purchase price of $3.00 per Private Placement Warrant). There are no fees contingent upon a
business combination payable to the Sponsor’s affiliates upon consummation of the Business Combination. The foregoing interests present a risk that
the Sponsor and its affiliates will benefit from the completion of a business combination, including in a manner that may not be aligned with Public
Stockholders. As such, the Sponsor may be incentivized to complete an acquisition of a less favorable target company or on terms less favorable to
Public Stockholders rather than liquidate.

Our Sponsor, directors or officers or their affiliates may elect to purchase shares from Public Stockholders, which may influence a vote on a
proposed Business Combination and the other proposals described in this proxy statement/prospectus and reduce the public “float” of our Class A
Stock.

Our Sponsor, directors or officers or their affiliates may purchase shares in privately negotiated transactions or in the open market either prior to or
following the completion of the Business Combination, although they are under no obligation to do so. Such a purchase may include a contractual
acknowledgement that such stockholder, although still the record holder of our shares, is no longer the beneficial owner thereof and therefore agrees not
to exercise its redemption rights. In the event that our Sponsor, directors, officers or their affiliates purchase shares in privately negotiated transactions
from Public Stockholders who have already elected to exercise their redemption rights, such selling stockholders would be required to revoke their prior
elections to redeem their shares. The purpose of such purchases could be to vote such shares in favor of the Business Combination and thereby increase
the likelihood of obtaining stockholder approval of the Business Combination or to satisfy closing conditions in the Merger Agreement regarding
required amounts in the Trust Account where it appears that such requirements would otherwise not be met. This may result in the completion of the
Business Combination that may not otherwise have been possible.

In addition, if such purchases are made, the public “float” of our Class A Stock and the number of beneficial holders of our securities may be
reduced, possibly making it difficult to obtain or maintain the quotation, listing or trading of our securities on Nasdaq or another national securities
exchange or reducing the liquidity of the trading market for our Class A Stock.

Our Public Stockholders will experience dilution as a consequence of, among other transactions, the issuance of Class A Stock as consideration in
the Business Combination. Having a minority share position may reduce the influence that our current stockholders have on the management of the
Post-Combination Company.

The issuance of additional shares of Post-Combination Company Stock in the Business Combination (including the PIPE Investment) will dilute
the equity interests of our existing stockholders and may adversely affect prevailing market prices for our Public Shares and/or Public Warrants. Our
Public Stockholders who do not redeem their Public Shares may experience dilution from several additional sources to varying degrees in connection
with and after the Business Combination. The impact of dilution from the issuance of shares in the
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Business Combination (including the PIPE Investment) and the potential impact of dilution from additional sources is discussed below:

M

@

3)

“)

Approximately 161,776,650 shares of Class A Stock are anticipated to be issued to Footprint Securityholders as consideration in the
Business Combination, valued at $10.00 per share. This represents approximately (a) 69.0%, 73.0%, 77.4% or 80.7% of the number of
shares of Post-Combination Company Stock that will be outstanding following the consummation of the Business Combination, assuming
the no redemption scenario, the illustrative redemption scenario, the contractual maximum redemption scenario and the charter redemption
limitation scenario, respectively, and (b) 69.0%, 73.0%, 77.4% or 80.7% of the total voting power of the Post-Combination Company
Stock that will be outstanding following the consummation of the Business Combination, assuming the no redemption scenario, the
illustrative redemption scenario, the contractual maximum redemption scenario and the charter redemption limitation scenario,
respectively.

31,055,000 shares of Class A Stock are expected to be issued in connection with the consummation of the Business Combination to the
Subscribers pursuant to the PIPE Investment, at a price of $10.00 per share. This represents approximately (a) 13.2%, 14.0%, 14.9% or
15.5% of the number of shares of Post-Combination Company Stock that will be outstanding following the consummation of the Business
Combination, assuming the no redemption scenario, the illustrative redemption scenario, the contractual maximum redemption scenario
and the charter redemption limitation scenario, respectively, and (b) 13.2%, 14.0%, 14.9% or 15.5% of the total voting power of the Post-
Combination Company Stock that will be outstanding following the consummation of the Business Combination, assuming the no
redemption scenario, the illustrative redemption scenario, the contractual maximum redemption scenario and the charter redemption
limitation scenario, respectively.

Up to 17,584,125 shares of Class A Stock may be issuable as contingent consideration in the Business Combination in respect of Earn Out
Shares. Under the Merger Agreement, the Footprint Stockholders and holders of Assumed Warrants, if any, will be entitled to receive Earn
Out Shares if the daily volume weighted average price (based on such trading day) of one share of Common Stock exceeds certain
thresholds for a period of at least 20 days out of 30 consecutive trading days, as adjusted, at any time during the 5 year period beginning
on the 180th day following the closing of the Business Combination (the “Common Share Price”). The Earn Out Shares, which are not
reflected in the shares represented in the no redemption scenario, the illustrative redemption scenario, the contractual maximum
redemption scenario or the charter redemption limitation scenario described herein, will be issued as follows: (a) a one-time issuance of
Earn Out Shares equal to the Securityholder Earn Out Tranche Amount if the Common Share Price is greater than $13.00; (b) a one-time
issuance of Earn Out Shares equal to the Securityholder Earn Out Tranche Amount if the Common Share Price is greater than $15.50; (c) a
one-time issuance of Earn Out Shares equal to the Securityholder Earn Out Tranche Amount if the Common Share Price is greater than
$18.00; (d) a one-time issuance of Earn Out Shares equal to the Securityholder Earn Out Tranche Amount if the Common Share Price is
greater than $20.50; (e) a one-time issuance of Earn Out Shares equal to the Securityholder Earn Out Tranche Amount if the Common
Share Price is greater than $23.00; (f) a one-time issuance of Earn Out Shares equal to the Securityholder Earn Out Tranche Amount if the
Common Share Price is greater than $25.50; and (g) a one-time issuance of Earn Out Shares equal to the Securityholder Earn Out Tranche
Amount if the Common Share Price is greater than $28.00.

The Company Warrants, comprised of Public Warrants to purchase 4,312,500 shares of Class A Stock and Private Placement Warrants to
purchase 2,966,666 shares of Class A Stock, will be outstanding following the Business Combination. The Public Warrants, which will not
be redeemed in connection with the redemption by a Public Stockholder of a Public Share, will be exercisable at any time commencing on
the later of 30 days after the completion of the Business Combination and March 1, 2022. The shares of Class A Stock underlying the
Public Warrants represent approximately (a) 1.8%, 1.9%, 2.0% or 2.1% of the number of shares of Post-Combination Company Stock that
will be outstanding immediately following the consummation of the Business Combination, assuming the no
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redemption scenario, the illustrative redemption scenario, the contractual maximum redemption scenario and the charter redemption
limitation scenario, respectively, and (b) 1.8%, 1.9%, 2.0% or 2.1% of the total voting power of the Post-Combination Company Stock
immediately following the consummation of the Business Combination, assuming the no redemption scenario, the illustrative redemption
scenario, the contractual maximum redemption scenario and the charter redemption limitation scenario, respectively. The 2,966,666
Private Placement Warrants outstanding following the Business Combination are not redeemable by the Post-Combination Company
pursuant to the Company’s right to redeem the Public Warrants at $0.01 per Public Warrant under certain circumstances so long as they are
held by the Sponsor or its permitted transferees. Otherwise, the Private Placement Warrants have terms and provisions that are identical to
those of the Public Warrants sold as part of the Public Units in the Company IPO, including as to exercise price, exercisability and exercise
period, except that the Private Placement Warrants may be exercised for cash or on a cashless basis so long as they are held by the Sponsor
or its permitted transferees and are entitled to certain registration rights. If the Private Placement Warrants are held by holders other than
the Sponsor or its permitted transferees, the Private Placement Warrants will be redeemable by the Post-Combination Company and
exercisable by the holders on the same basis as the Public Warrants included in the Public Units sold in the Company IPO. The Private
Placement Warrants may not be transferred or sold by the Sponsor (other than to its permitted transferees) until 30 days following the
consummation of the Business Combination. The shares of Class A Stock underlying the Private Placement Warrants represent
approximately (x) 1.2%, 1.3%, 1.4% or 1.5% of the number of shares of Post-Combination Company Stock that will be outstanding
immediately following the consummation of the Business Combination, assuming the no redemption scenario, the illustrative redemption
scenario, the contractual maximum redemption scenario and the charter redemption limitation scenario, respectively, and (y) 1.2%, 1.3%,
1.4% or 1.5% of the total voting power of the Post-Combination Company Stock immediately following the consummation of the
Business Combination, assuming the no redemption scenario, the illustrative redemption scenario, the contractual maximum redemption
scenario and the charter redemption limitation scenario, respectively.

The Post-Combination Company will reserve approximately 10.0% of the number of outstanding shares of the Post-Combination
Company Stock immediately following the Business Combination plus 6,679,108 shares of Post-Combination Company Stock underlying
Rollover Options, pursuant to the Incentive Plan, and 7.4% of the number of outstanding shares of the Post-Combination Company Stock
immediately following the Business Combination pursuant to the Performance Plan and expects to grant equity awards under each of the
Incentive Plan (excluding 6,679,108 shares of Post-Combination Company Stock underlying the Rollover Options) and the Performance
Plan. The granted awards, when vested and settled or exercisable, may result in the issuance of additional shares up to the amount of the
share reserve under the Incentive Plan and the Performance Plan, respectively.

We refer to the sources of dilution described above in clauses “(4)” and “(5)” of this risk factor as the “Additional Dilution Sources.” We
refer to the sources of dilution described above in clauses “(1)” “(2)” and “(3),” together with the Additional Dilution Sources, as the
“Cumulative Dilution Sources.” Based on the assumptions regarding the Cumulative Dilution Sources set forth above, including the
Additional Dilution Sources, we estimate that:

» in the no redemption scenario, Public Stockholders’ ownership of the Company would be reduced from 80% of the Common Stock
prior to the Business Combination to (i) 14.7% of the Post-Combination Company’s Stock (and voting power) following the
Business Combination without giving effect to any dilution from the Additional Dilution Sources or (ii) 11.3% of the Post-
Combination Company’s Stock (and voting power) following the Business Combination assuming the estimated maximum dilutive
effect of the Additional Dilution Sources;

» in the illustrative redemption scenario, Public Stockholders’ ownership of the Company would be reduced from 80% of the
Common Stock prior to the Business Combination to (i) 9.8% of the Post-Combination Company’s Stock (and voting power)
following the Business Combination
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without giving effect to any dilution from the Additional Dilution Sources or (ii) 7.5% of the Post-Combination Company’s Stock
(and voting power) following the Business Combination assuming the estimated maximum dilutive effect of the Additional Dilution
Sources;

*  in the contractual maximum redemption scenario, Public Stockholders’ ownership of the Company would be reduced from 80% of
the Common Stock prior to the Business Combination to (i) 4.3% of the Post-Combination Company’s Stock (and voting power)
following the Business Combination without giving effect to any dilution from the Additional Dilution Sources or (ii) 3.3% of the
Post-Combination Company’s Stock (and voting power) following the Business Combination assuming the estimated maximum
dilutive effect of the Additional Dilution Sources; and

» in the charter redemption limitation scenario, Public Stockholders’ ownership of the Company would be reduced from 80% of the
Common Stock prior to the Business Combination to (i) 0.2% of the Post-Combination Company’s Stock (and voting power)
following the Business Combination without giving effect to any dilution from the Additional Dilution Sources or (ii) 0.2% of the
Post-Combination Company’s Stock (and voting power) following the Business Combination assuming the estimated maximum
dilutive effect of the Additional Dilution Sources.

Additionally, the Post-Combination Company may determine, subject to the receipt of any stockholder or stock exchange approvals that may be
required, to issue additional shares of Post-Combination Company Stock or other equity securities of equal or senior rank in connection with privately
negotiated transactions following the consummation of the Business Combination.

The issuance of additional shares of Post-Combination Company Stock (or other equity securities of equal or senior rank), including through any
of the Cumulative Dilution Sources, could have the following effects for holders of Public Shares who elect not to redeem their shares:

. your proportionate ownership interest in the Post-Combination Company will decrease;
. the relative voting strength of each previously outstanding share of Post-Combination Company Stock will be diminished; or
. the market price of the Post-Combination Company Stock and the Public Warrants may decline.

If a Public Stockholder exercises its redemption rights, such exercise will not result in the loss of any warrants that it may hold. We cannot predict
the ultimate value of the Company Warrants following the consummation of the Business Combination, but assuming that 100% or 34,500,000 shares of
Class A Stock held by our Public Stockholders were redeemed, the 4,312,500 retained outstanding Public Warrants would have an aggregate value of
$[e], based on the price per Public Warrant of $[e] on [e], 2022, the most recent practicable date prior to the date of this proxy statement/prospectus. In
addition, on [e], 2022, the most recent practicable date prior to the date of this proxy statement/prospectus, the price per share of Class A Stock closed at
$[®]. If the shares of Class A Stock are trading above the exercise price of $11.50 per warrant, the warrants are considered to be “in the money” and are
therefore more likely to be exercised by the holders thereof (when they become exercisable). This in turn increases the risk to non-redeeming
stockholders that the warrants will be exercised, which would result in immediate dilution to the non-redeeming stockholders.

In each of the no redemption, illustrative redemption, contractual maximum redemption and charter redemption limitation scenarios as described
below, the residual equity value owned by non-redeeming stockholders, taking into account the respective redemption amounts, is assumed to remain
the deemed value of $10.00 per share as illustrated in the sensitivity table below. As a result of such redemption amounts and the assumed $10.00 per
share value, the implied total equity value of the Company following the Business Combination (including the PIPE Investment), assuming no dilution
from any Additional Dilution Sources, would be (a) $2,345 million in the no redemption scenario, (b) $2,217 million in the illustrative redemption
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scenario, (¢) $2,089 million in the contractual maximum redemption scenario and (d) $2,005 million in the charter redemption limitation scenario.
Additionally, the sensitivity table below sets forth (x) the potential additional dilutive impact of each of the Additional Dilution Sources in each

redemption scenario, as described further in Notes 9 through 14 below, and (y) the effective underwriting fee incurred in connection with the Company

IPO in each redemption scenario, as further described in Note 15 below.

Contractual Charter
No Illustrative Maximum Redemption
Redemption % of Redemption % of Redemption % of Limitation % of

Holders Scenario® Total(19 Scenario® Total(19 Scenario® Total(19 Scenario® Total(16)
Public Stockholders 34,500,000 14.7% 21,722,102 9.8% 8,944,204 4.3% 499,956 0.2%
Initial Stockholders (including

Sponsor)®) 16,623,350 7.1% 16,623,350 7.5% 16,623,350 8.0% 16,623,350 8.3%
Subscribers (Aggregate; excluding

Sponsor)© 21,555,000 9.2% 21,555,000 9.7% 21,555,000 10.3% 21,555,,000 10.8%
Footprint Equity Holders(® 161,776,650 69.0% 161,776,650 73.0% 161,776,650 77.4% 161,776,650 80.7%
Total Shares Outstanding Excluding

Earn out Shares and Warrants 234,455,000 100% 221,677,102 100% 208,899,204 100% 200,454,956 100%
Total Equity Value Post-

Redemptions and PIPE

Investment ($ in millions) $ 2,345 $ 2,217 $ 2,089 $ 2,005
Per Share Value $ 10.00 $ 10.00 $ 10.00 $ 10.00

Contractual Charter
No Illustrative Maximum Redemption
Redemption % of Redemption % of Redemption % of Limitation % of

Additional Dilution Sources Scenario® Total®16) Scenario® Total®16) Scenario® Total®)(16) Scenario® Total®)(16)
Earn Out Shares to Footprint

Securityholders® 16,530,683 6.6% 15,629,754 6.6% 14,728,824 6.6% 14,133,447 6.6%
Company Warrants Public

Warrants(10 4,312,500 1.8% 4,312,500 1.9% 4,312,500 2.0% 4,312,500 2.1%
Private Warrants(!D 2,966,666 1.2% 2,966,666 1.3% 2,966,666 1.4% 2,966,666 1.5%
Equity Incentive Plans Incentive

Plan(12) 29,456,697 8.9% 28,178,907 8.8% 26,901,118 8.8% 26,056,693 8.8%
Performance Plan(3) 18,637,567 7.4% 17,621,812 7.4% 16,606,056 7.4% 15,934,797 7.4%
Total Additional Dilutive Sources('¥) 65,225,005 21.8% 62,030,531 21.9% 58,836,056 22.0% 56,724,994 22.1%
Deferred Discount
Effective Deferred Discount(15) 12,075,000 3.5% 12,075,000 5.6% 12,075,000 13.5% 12,075,000 241.5%

1) This scenario assumes that no Class Stock is redeemed from our Public Stockholders.
2) This scenario assumes that approximately 12,777,898 shares of Class A Stock are redeemed from our Public Stockholders.

3) This scenario assumes that approximately 25,555,796 shares of Class A Stock are redeemed from our Public Stockholders, which, based on the amount of $345,030,739 in the Trust
Account as of December 31, 2021, represents the maximum amount of redemptions that would still enable us to have sufficient cash to satisfy the cash closing conditions in the

Merger Agreement.

“4) This scenario assumes that approximately 34,000,044 shares of Class A Stock are redeemed from our Public Stockholders, which, based on the amount of $345,030,739 in the Trust
Account as of December 31, 2021, represents the maximum amount of redemptions that would still enable us to have sufficient cash to satisfy the provision in the Current Company

Certificate that prohibits us from redeeming shares of our Class A Stock in an amount that would result in our failure to have net tangible assets exceeding $5,000,000.
5) This row includes 9,500,000 shares of Class A Stock to be purchased by the Sponsor in the PIPE Investment pursuant to the Sponsor Subscription Agreement.

(6) This row reflects the aggregate of 21,555,000 shares of Class A Stock to be purchased by the Subscribers, and excludes 9,500,000 shares of Class A Stock to be purchased by the

Sponsor as part of the PIPE Investment pursuant to the Sponsor Subscription Agreement.

(7) This row assumes (a) inclusion of the Rollover Options, assuming an Option Exchange Ratio equal to the Per Share Footprint Common Stock Consideration and excluding any

additional Discounted Earn Out Option Amount, which will be determined on or prior to the
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consummation of the Business Combination (please see the section titled “Summary—Treatment of Footprint Equity Awards”) and (b) the exercise of all outstanding Footprint
Warrants and the conversion of all outstanding Footprint Convertible Notes into Class A Stock in connection with the consummation of the Business Combination. This row excludes
the Earn Out Shares identified in the row titled “Earn Out Shares to Footprint Securityholders” that may be issuable to Footprint Securityholders upon the realization of all of the
benchmark share prices in the earn out.

The Percentage of Total with respect to each Additional Dilution Source set forth below, including the Total Additional Dilution Sources, includes the full amount of shares issued
with respect to the applicable Additional Dilution Source in both the numerator and denominator. For example, in the illustrative redemption scenario, the Percentage of Total with
respect to the Performance Plan would be calculated as follows: (a) 17,621,812 shares issued pursuant to the Performance Plan (for more information about the Performance Plan, see
the section titled “Proposal No. 6—The Performance Plan Proposal”); divided by (b) (i) 221,677,102 shares (the number of shares outstanding prior to any issuance pursuant to the
Performance Plan) plus (ii) 17,621,812 shares issued pursuant to the Performance Plan.

This row assumes that all Earn Out Shares potentially issuable to Footprint Securityholders (upon the realization of all of the benchmark share prices in the earn out) are issued to
Footprint Securityholders and assumes that no additional shares of Post-Combination Company Stock are issued between the closing of the Business Combination and the realization
of all of the benchmark share prices in the earn out. The Earn Out Shares in this row include only the Securityholder Allocable Amount (i.e., the Earn Out Shares issuable to Footprint
Securityholders) and do not include the Plan Allocable Amount and the calculations of the Securityholder Allocable Amount and the Plan Allocable Amount are based on the
capitalization of Footprint as of March 31, 2022. Percentages in this row represent (a) the Earn Out Shares set forth in the applicable column divided by (b) (i) the amounts included in
the row titled “Total Shares Outstanding Excluding Earn Out Shares and Warrants” plus (ii) the Earn Out Shares set forth in the applicable column.

This row assumes exercise of all Public Warrants to purchase 4,312,500 shares of Class A Stock. Percentages in this row represent (a) the 4,312,500 shares of Class A Stock
underlying the Public Warrants divided by (b) (i) the amounts included in the row titled “Total Shares Outstanding Excluding Earn Out Shares and Warrants” plus (ii) 4,312,500 shares
of Class A Stock underlying the Public Warrants.

This row assumes exercise of all Private Placement Warrants to purchase 2,966,666 shares of Class A Stock. Percentages in this row represent (a) the 2,966,666 shares of Class A
Stock underlying the Private Placement Warrants divided by (b) (i) the amounts included in the row titled “Total Shares Outstanding Excluding Earn Out Shares and Warrants” plus
(ii) 2,966,666 shares of Class A Stock underlying the Private Placement Warrants.

This row (a) assumes the issuance of all shares of Post-Combination Company Stock reserved for issuance under the Incentive Plan, which equals 29,456,697 shares of Post-
Combination Company Stock in the no redemption scenario, 28,178,907 shares of Post-Combination Company Stock in the illustrative redemption scenario, 26,901,118 shares of
Post-Combination Company Stock in the contractual maximum redemption scenario or 26,056,693 shares of Post-Combination Company Stock in the charter redemption limitation
scenario, in each case, following the consummation of the Business Combination and (b) is based on the capitalization of Footprint as of March 31, 2022. Percentages in this row
represent (a) (i) the foregoing share amounts, as applicable, minus (ii) 6,679,108 shares of Post-Combination Company Stock underlying Rollover Options (such difference, the
“Incentive Plan Dilutive Amount”) divided by (b) (i) the amounts included in the row titled “Total Shares Outstanding Excluding Earn Out Shares and Warrants” plus (ii) the
applicable Incentive Plan Dilutive Amount.

This row assumes the issuance of all shares of Post-Combination Company Stock reserved for issuance under the Performance Plan, which equals 18,637,567 shares of Post-
Combination Company Stock in the no redemption scenario, 17,621,812 shares of Post-Combination Company Stock in the illustrative redemption scenario, 16,606,056 shares of
Post-Combination Company Stock in the contractual maximum redemption scenario or 15,934,797 shares of Post-Combination Company Stock in the charter redemption limitation
scenario, in each case, following the consummation of the Business Combination. Percentages in this row represent (a) the foregoing share amounts, as applicable, divided by (b) (i)
the amounts included in the row titled “Total Shares Outstanding Excluding Earn Out Shares and Warrants” plus (ii) 18,637,567 shares of Post-Combination Company Stock in the no
redemption scenario, 17,621,812 shares of Post-Combination Company Stock in the illustrative redemption scenario, 16,606,056 shares of Post-Combination Company Stock in the
contractual maximum redemption scenario or 15,934,797 shares of Post-Combination Company Stock in the charter redemption limitation scenario. For more information about the
Performance Plan, see the section titled “Proposal No. 6—The Performance Plan Proposal.”

This row assumes the issuance of all shares of Post-Combination Company Stock in connection with each of the Additional Dilution Sources (other than 6,679,108 shares of Post-
Combination Company Stock underlying Rollover Options under the Incentive Plan which is not dilutive as such Rollover Options are accounted for in the row titled “Footprint
Equity Holders™), as described further in Notes 8 through 13 above, which equals 65,225,005 shares of Post-Combination Company Stock in the no redemption scenario, 62,030,531
shares of Post-Combination Company Stock in the illustrative redemption scenario, 58,836,056 shares of Post-Combination Company Stock in the contractual maximum redemption
scenario or 56,724,994 shares of Post-Combination Company Stock in the charter redemption limitation scenario, in each case, following the consummation of the Business
Combination. Percentages in this row represent (a) the foregoing share amounts, as applicable, divided by (b) (i) the amounts included in the row titled “Total Shares Outstanding
Excluding Earn Out Shares and Warrants” plus (ii) 65,225,005 shares of Post-Combination Company Stock in the no redemption scenario, 62,030,531 shares of Post-Combination
Company Stock in the illustrative redemption scenario, 58,836,056 shares of Post-Combination Company Stock in the contractual maximum redemption scenario or 56,724,994 shares
of Post-Combination Company Stock in the charter redemption limitation scenario.

Reflects the Deferred Discount of $12,075,000 incurred in connection with the Company IPO. The level of redemption impacts the effective Deferred Discount incurred in connection
with the Company IPO. In the no redemption scenario, the effective Deferred Discount is based on $345,030,739 in the Trust Account. In the illustrative redemption scenario, the
effective Deferred Discount is based on $217,240,374 in the Trust Account. In the contractual maximum redemption scenario, the effective Deferred Discount is based on
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$89,450,009 in the Trust Account. In the charter redemption limitation scenario, the effective Deferred Discount is based on $5,000,005 in the Trust Account.
(16)  Percentages may not sum due to rounding.

The foregoing table is provided for illustrative purposes only and there can be no assurance that the Post-Combination Company Stock will trade
at the illustrative per share values set forth therein, regardless of the levels of redemption.

For more information, please see the sections titled “Summary—Impact of the Business Combination on the Company s Public Float” and
“Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Information.”

We have no operating history and are subject to a mandatory liquidation and subsequent dissolution requirement. As such, there is a risk that we
will be unable to continue as a going concern if we do not consummate an initial business combination by March 1, 2023. Unless we amend our
Current Company Certificate and amend certain other agreements into which we have entered to extend the life of the Company, if we are unable to
effect an initial business combination by March 1, 2023, we will be forced to liquidate and our warrants will expire worthless.

We are a blank check company, and as we have no operating history and are subject to a mandatory liquidation and subsequent dissolution
requirement, there is a risk that we will be unable to continue as a going concern if we do not consummate an initial business combination by March 1,
2023. Unless we amend the Current Company Certificate to extend the life of the Company and certain other agreements into which we have entered, if
we do not complete an initial business combination by March 1, 2023, we will: (i) cease all operations except for the purpose of winding up; (ii) as
promptly as reasonably possible but not more than ten business days thereafter, redeem the Public Shares, at a per-share price, payable in cash, equal to
the aggregate amount then on deposit in the Trust Account including interest not previously released to us to fund Regulatory Withdrawals and/or its
franchise and income taxes (less up to $100,000 of interest to pay dissolution expenses) divided by the number of then outstanding Public Shares, which
redemption will completely extinguish Public Stockholders’ rights as stockholders (including the right to receive further liquidating distributions, if
any), subject to applicable law; and (iii) as promptly as reasonably possible following such redemption, subject to the approval of our remaining
stockholders and our Board, dissolve and liquidate, subject in each case to our obligations under the DGCL to provide for claims of creditors and the
requirements of other applicable law. In the event of such distribution, it is possible that the per share value of the residual assets remaining available for
distribution (including Trust Account assets) will be less than the initial public offering price per Public Unit in the Company IPO. In addition, unless
we amend the Current Company Certificate to extend the life of the Company (which requires the affirmative vote of 65% of all then outstanding shares
of Class A Stock) and certain other agreements into which we have entered, if we fail to complete an initial business combination by March 1, 2023,
there will be no redemption rights or liquidating distributions with respect to our Public Warrants or the Private Placement Warrants, which will expire
worthless. We expect to consummate the Business Combination and do not intend to take any action to extend the life of the Company beyond March 1,
2023 if we are unable to effect an initial business combination by that date.

Even if we consummate the Business Combination, there is no guarantee that the Public Warrants will ever be in the money, and they may expire
worthless and the terms of the Public Warrants may be amended.

The exercise price for the Public Warrants is $11.50 per share of Class A Stock. There is no guarantee that the Public Warrants will ever be in the
money prior to their expiration, and as such, the Public Warrants may expire worthless.

Our ability to successfully effect the Business Combination and to be successful thereafter will be dependent upon the efforts of our key personnel,
including the key personnel of Footprint whom we expect to stay with the Post-Combination Company. The loss of key personnel could negatively
impact the operations and profitability of the Post-Combination Company and its financial condition could suffer as a result.

Our ability to successfully effect the Business Combination is dependent upon the efforts of our key personnel and the key personnel of Footprint.
Footprint’s success depends to a significant degree upon the
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continued contributions of senior management, certain of whom would be difficult to replace. Departure by certain of Footprint’s officers could have a
material adverse effect on Footprint’s business, financial condition, or operating results. The services of such personnel may not continue to be available
to the Post-Combination Company.

We may waive one or more of the conditions to the Business Combination.

We may agree to waive, in whole or in part, one or more of the conditions to our obligations to complete the Business Combination, to the extent
permitted by the Current Company Certificate and our current bylaws and applicable laws. We may not waive the condition that our stockholders
approve the Business Combination. Please see the section titled “Proposal No. I—The Business Combination—Conditions to Closing of the Business
Combination” for additional information.

The exercise of discretion by our directors and officers in agreeing to changes to the terms of or waivers of closing conditions in the Merger
Agreement may result in a conflict of interest when determining whether such changes to the terms of the Merger Agreement or waivers of
conditions are appropriate and in the best interests of our stockholders.

In the period leading up to the closing of the Business Combination, other events may occur that, pursuant to the Merger Agreement, may lead us
to amend the Merger Agreement, to consent to certain actions or to waive rights that we are entitled to under the Merger Agreement. Such events could
arise because of changes in the course of Footprint’s business, a request by Footprint to undertake actions that would otherwise be prohibited by the
terms of the Merger Agreement or the occurrence of other events that would have a material adverse effect on Footprint’s business and would entitle us
to terminate the Merger Agreement. In any of such circumstances, it would be in our discretion, acting through our Board, to amend the Merger
Agreement, grant our consent or waive our rights. The existence of the financial and personal interests of the directors described elsewhere in this proxy
statement/prospectus may result in a conflict of interest on the part of one or more of the directors between what he or she may believe is best for the
Company and our stockholders and what he or she may believe is best for himself or herself or his or her affiliates in determining whether or not to take
the requested action. As of the date of this proxy statement/prospectus, we do not believe there will be any amendments, changes or waivers that our
directors and officers would be likely to make after stockholder approval of the Business Combination has been obtained. While certain changes could
be made without further stockholder approval, if there is a change to the terms of the Business Combination that would have a material impact on the
stockholders, we will be required to circulate a new or amended proxy statement/prospectus or supplement thereto and resolicit the vote of our
stockholders with respect to the Business Combination Proposal.

We and Footprint will incur significant transaction and transition costs in connection with the Business Combination.

We and Footprint have both incurred and expect to incur significant, non-recurring costs in connection with consummating the Business
Combination and operating as a public company following the consummation of the Business Combination, including the Deferred Discount. We and
Footprint may also incur additional costs to retain key employees. All expenses incurred in connection with the Merger Agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereby (including the Business Combination), including all legal, accounting, consulting, investment banking and other fees, expenses
and costs, will be for the account of the party incurring such fees, expenses and costs or paid by us following the closing of the Business Combination.

Our transaction expenses as a result of the Business Combination are currently estimated at approximately $45,000,000, including the
$12,075,000 Deferred Discount. The amount of the Deferred Discount will not be adjusted for any shares that are redeemed in connection with an initial
business combination. The per-share amount we will distribute to stockholders who properly exercise their redemption rights will not be reduced by the
Deferred Discount and after such redemptions, the per-share value of shares held by non-redeeming
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stockholders will reflect our obligation to pay the Deferred Discount. As such, the Deferred Discount would represent approximately 3.5%, 5.6%, 13.5%
and 241.5% of the value of the cash remaining in the Trust Account assuming the no redemption scenario, the illustrative redemption scenario, the
contractual maximum redemption scenario and the charter redemption limitation scenario, respectively (based on Trust Account balances of
$345,030,739, $217,240,374, $89,450,009 and $5,000,005 in the no redemption scenario, illustrative redemption scenario, contractual maximum
redemption scenario and charter redemption limitation scenario, respectively).

If we are unable to complete an initial business combination, our Public Stockholders may receive only approximately $10.00 per share on the
liquidation of the Trust Account (or less than $10.00 per share in certain circumstances where a third party brings a claim against us that our
Sponsor is unable to indemnify), and our warrants will expire worthless.

Unless we amend our Current Company Certificate (which requires the affirmative vote of 65% of all then outstanding shares of Class A Stock)
and amend certain other agreements into which we have entered to extend the life of the Company, if we are unable to complete an initial business
combination by March 1, 2023, our Public Stockholders may receive only approximately $10.00 per share on the liquidation of the Trust Account (or
less than $10.00 per share in certain circumstances where a third-party brings a claim against us that our Sponsor is unable to indemnify (as described
herein)) and our warrants will expire worthless.

If third parties bring claims against us, the proceeds held in the Trust Account could be reduced and the per-share redemption amount received by
stockholders may be less than $10.00 per share.

Our placing of funds in the Trust Account may not protect those funds from third-party claims against us. Although we will seek to have all
vendors, service providers (other than our independent auditors), prospective target businesses or other entities with which we do business execute
agreements with us waiving any right, title, interest or claim of any kind in or to any funds held in the Trust Account for the benefit of our Public
Stockholders, such parties may not execute such agreements, or even if they execute such agreements they may not be prevented from bringing claims
against the Trust Account, including, but not limited to, fraudulent inducement, breach of fiduciary responsibility or other similar claims, as well as
claims challenging the enforceability of the waiver, in each case in order to gain advantage with respect to a claim against our assets, including the funds
held in the Trust Account. If any third party refuses to execute an agreement waiving such claims to the funds held in the Trust Account, our
management will perform an analysis of the alternatives available to it and will only enter into an agreement with a third-party that has not executed a
waiver if management believes that such third party’s engagement would be significantly more beneficial to us than any alternative.

Examples of possible instances where we may engage a third party that refuses to execute a waiver include the engagement of a third party
consultant whose particular expertise or skills are believed by management to be significantly superior to those of other consultants that would agree to
execute a waiver or in cases where management is unable to find a service provider willing to execute a waiver. In addition, there is no guarantee that
such entities will agree to waive any claims they may have in the future as a result of, or arising out of, any negotiations, contracts or agreements with us
and will not seek recourse against the Trust Account for any reason. Upon redemption of our Public Shares, if we are unable to complete our initial
business combination within the prescribed timeframe, or upon the exercise of a redemption right in connection with our initial business combination,
we will be required to provide for payment of claims of creditors that were not waived that may be brought against us within the ten years following
redemption. Accordingly, the per-share redemption amount received by Public Stockholders could be less than the $10.00 per share initially held in the
Trust Account, due to claims of such creditors.

Our Sponsor has agreed that it will be liable to us if and to the extent any claims by a vendor (other than our independent public accountants) for
services rendered or products sold to us, or a prospective target business with which we have entered into a transaction agreement, reduce the amount of
funds in the Trust Account to
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